

Franklin Family Researchers United Volume 2 April 1992

2nd Edition, re-paginated by Ben Franklin, 3 Aug 1999 Note: There are several references to "IO" as a state abbreviation. This is not currently an abreviation of any state. It could be either Iowa (USPS abbreviation "IA") or Idaho (USPS abbreviation "ID"). Additionally, it is associated with a "Washington County". There are Washington Counties in both states. Another hint is that it refers to dates in 1843. Idaho did not exist in 1843 (Idaho became a state in 1890), therefore I am guessing that "IO" refers to Iowa

About The Cover

(Sketch of house submitted by Ch (MAJ) Dan Franklin, 5257 B McNeil South, Ft Bliss, TX. 79906; write up composed by Millie Franklin)

Ralph Morris "Rafe" Franklin (b in Livingston, TX Aug 18, 1857 - d 25 Feb 1934 Buna, Jasper County, TX at his home). He is buried in the Morse Cemetery in Gum Slough near Buna, TX. He was the fifth child of 9 children b to James Isaiah and Mary Ann Hargrove Franklin. Ralph had 4 brothers; William Green, Thomas Benjamin, Allen and an infant brother; 6 sisters; Samanthy, Caroline, Sarah, Liddy, Alice and Dosha. Ralph Morris was named after his grandfather.

His parents, James Isaiah and Mary Ann, resided in West Texas tending a stage coach inn for several years. They feared their children were growing up like wild Indians, as that area was pretty fierce in those days, so they packed them up and moved east into the Livingston, TX area where we believe Ralph Morris was born. This area was more civilized.

Due to such a larger family, Ralph Morris had to leave his parents' home and make his way in the world at a young age. He migrated to Jasper County, TX near Buna, where he met and married his first wife, Cathrine Morse, in 1875 at the tender young age of 18 yrs.

Ralph & Cathrine parented three sons, Alvin, David and Pearly; one daughter, Aranna (Aunt Aero). David and Pearly died when very young. Ralph Morris lost his wife, Cathrine, in 1884, after nine years of marriage.

Following Cathrine's untimely death, Ralph Morris married Elizabeth Hickman two years later, in 1886. Elizabeth was crippled from a childhood illness; subsequently died two years later in childbirth. Their son was stillborn. They are both buried in Buna's Antioch Cemetery. The year was 1888.

Being widowed twice, Ralph Morris met and married Martha Crockett Lowe Crawford, also a widow. They wed March 24, 1889. They settled near Buna and later traded some land for a tract of land near the Gum Slough area. Here they constructed their first and only home and lived out their lives as farmers. This union produced seven daughters and three sons; Sula Oseola, Mary Alice, Sarah Elizabeth, Mattie Emma, Effie Dora, infant son, Dollie Eva, Bessie Marie, Vernon and Ralph Gibson (R G). Ralph Morris was father to fifteen (15) children of his own and stepfather to Caroline Crawford, Martha's daughter by her first marriage. All his children are deceased at this writing, except for his youngest daughter, Bessie Marie Franklin Dunn who resides in Buna.

Ralph Morris and Martha were members of the Primitive ("hardshell") Baptist Church of Gum Slough, where he was a deacon. Grandma Franklin was born Jul 6, 1869 and passed away at her residence in Gum Slough Dec 4, 1946 at the age of 77 yrs. She is buried by her husband in Morse Cemetery in Gum Slough near Buna, TX.

Ralph Morris (Rafe, as folks called him) Franklin's father, James Isaiah, was one of six Franklin brothers, born in and around MS & LA. They were William, Thomas, Daniel, David and Jacob Franklin. Ancestors to these immigrated to the United States from England between the years 1660 and 1680.

The home is a sketch drawn by a grandson - Herbert Duane Ross in 1989. The home has been rebuilt with much of the original lumber. The rebuilt house does not have two fireplaces as shown in the drawing.

Thomas B Franklin - Jemima Morris Franklin

Submitted by Ch (MAJ Dan Franklin, 5257 B McNeil South, Ft Bliss, TX 79906. Dan is compiling a complete pedigree on his direct line complete with pictures in book form to be released very soon. As soon as we get an update on the release of this book we will let you know./ED

Thomas B Franklin (b ca 1760 possibly NC - d 1808 Richland County, SC) believed to have been the son of Henry Franklin & Ailcey Kelly Franklin married Jemima Morris (b ca 1765 Chester County, SC - believed to have d ca 1835 in Rankin County, MS) daughter of Thomas Morris & Elizabeth Gresham Morris ca 1785. Jemima & Thomas Franklin's child:

- 1. Ralph Franklin (b 1798 GA said to have d 1865 in Apple Springs, Trinity County, TX); married #2 on 3 Jun 1819 St Tammany Parish, LA to Tabitha Galloway (d 1835 Rankin County, MS); #3 1836 married Sarah Williams. Ralph & Tabitha's children:
 - (1) James Isaiah Franklin (b 1826 St Helena Parish, LA d 1890 Thornton, Limestone County, TX) married abt 1845 to #1 Mary Ann Hagroves (b 1826, LA d 1870 Boling, Leon County, TX); married #2 Abigail Robbins (b abt 1832 AL. James & Mary Ann's children:
 - A. William Green Franklin (b 20 Mar 1854 Polk County, TX d 24 Jun 1916 Buna, Jasper County, TX buried Morse Cem, Buna, Jasper County, TX) married 29 Sep 1869 Grimes County, TX to Elizabeth "Lizza" Ann Rogers (b 1853 AR d 1913 Limestone County, TX. Their children:
 - (A) Virgil G(reen?) Franklin (b 26 Jul 1878, Erath County, TX d 11 Jun 1955 Cleveland, Liberty County, TX) married 22 Jul 1900 Montgomery County, TX to Lena Carson (b 20 Jan 1882 Rankin County, MS d 14 Aug 1982 Cleveland, Liberty County, TX) daughter of Elbert Hillard Carson & Mary Jane Presley. Their children are:
 - a. Rubert "Rube" Virgil Franklin (b 22 Jul 1905 Buna, Jasper County, TX) married 20 Aug 1927 San Jacinto County, TX to Lula Pate daughter of William Riley Pate & Florence Ransom. They children are:
 - (a) Alvie Earl Franklin (b 28 Sep 1928 Liberty County, TX.) married Minnie Caroline Moody daughter of Henry Allen Moody & Eav Mae Smith. Their children:
 - aa. Danny Roule Franklin (contributor of this family pedegree)
 - B. Ralph Morris "Rafe" Franklin (b 18 Aug 1857 Livingston, Polk County, TX d 25 Feb 1934 Buna, Jasper County, TX buried Morse Cem, Buna) married #1 5 Sep 1875 to Lucy Catherine Morse daughter of John Morse, Sr & Lucy Fosha;#2 Elizabeth Hickman; #3 Martha Crockett Lowe Crawford.

Table of Contents

About The Cover	2
Thomas B Franklin - Jemima Morris Franklin	3
Editor's Message	6
Tidbits From Johnnye	7
Mississippi Memories	9
Quarterly Exchanges	9
The State of Franklin (1784-1789)	10
Index to Texas CSA Pension Files	11
Tuscaloosa County, Alabama 1898 Beat Tax List	13
History of Tuscaloosa County, Alabama Vol II by Lambert	13
1830 Tuscaloosa County, Alabama Census	13
Register of Amnesty Oath taken 1865 Tuscaloosa, Alabama	13
Covington County, Alabama Registered Voters beat 6 June 1867	13
Madison County, Texas Tax Records	14
Willowhole Cemetery, Madison County, Texas	17
Limestone County, Texas Cemetery Surveys	17
Mississippi Index of Wills 1800-1900	19
Monroe County, Mississippi Cemetery Records	19
John Franklin & Mary "Polly" Jarvis	19
Henry Franklin, Sr - Margaret Hensley Franklin	22
Henry Franklin & Margaret Hensley Franklin	24
Franklin - Harrison Bible	25
Warren County, Kentucky Wills & Settlements Will Books A & B 1797-1823	26
General Index to Real Estate Conveyances, Barren County, Kentucky	29
The "Corn Stalk" Milita of Kentucky 1792-1811	33
Bartholomew Stovall - Susannah (Owen ?) Stovall	33
John and Margaret Franklin of Lincoln County, Kentucky	34
Henry Franklin, Sr and Margaret Hensley	34
Wilson Franklin and Elizabeth Perry	36
Samuel Franklin and Letitia Borrows	37
Marriages of Urbana, Champaign County, Ohio	40

p410 PA records which includes East & West Jersey	40
Pennsylvania Marriages prior to 1810	41
1830 Warren County, Ohio Census	41
1840 Champaign County, Ohio Census	41
1850 Champaign County, Ohio Census	42
1860 Yamhill County, Oregon Census	42
1870 Yamhill County, Oregon Census	43
1880 Clackamas County, Oregon Census	43
1880 Washington County, Oregon Census	43
Calendar of Wills 1791-1795 New Jersey	44
Members of the Buell Train 1847 to Oregon	45
David Franklin and Elizabeth (Ayres) Franklin	50
John Franklin and Nancy T (or P) Franklin	54
John Franklin and Frances (Crow?) Franklin	55
1880 Coryell County, Texas Census - Bible Record	56
1880 Milam County, Texas Census	56
Johnson County, Texas Marriage Rec Vol I	56
1860 Johnson County, Texas Census	57
1850 Quachita County, Arkansas Census	57
1852 Calhoun County, Arkansas Deed Bk A p144	58
Rush / Franklin Family Bible	58
Lewis Franklin and Milly Stone	58
Queries	60
Corrections/Suggestions/Soundoff/Announcements	63
Texas 1910 Census	63
Names Index	67
Place Index	77

Editor's Message

We hope that your are enjoying your quarterlies thus far. We have received many positive comments and encourage your input. We can only publish what you want to see if we know what that is...and you share your information with us. It is not our intention to gather all the research ourselves and certainly depend on everyone doing their part.

We have our first <u>success</u> story to pass on to you. One of our Charter Members who lives in MS received valuable infor which allowed her to extend her lineage back another generation. This info was submitted by another researcher living in AL and was just one line of reference. So, one just never knows when that one bit of info will provide that one clue. Thanks Lisa Carmichael for helping our MS Charter member.

We are currently receiving <u>Mississippi Records</u>, PO Box 1647. Gulfport, MS 39502. We received our first quarterly in which they covered 1843 Warren County, MS Tax Rolls; Clay Co Deed Book One; Roster of Confederate Soldiers & Sailors -- Copiah County; Oktibbeha Educatable Children 1885; Case Files of Applications from former Confederates for Presidential Pardons; and Wilkinson Co Deed Book A. There were no Franklin's mentioned in this Quarterly.

We are also receiving <u>Mississippi Memories</u>, PO Box 18991, Shreveport, LA 71138-0991. Their first quarterly covers: Mississippi Supreme Court Cases; Some early newspapers of Southwest Miss; Coker Chapel Cemetery - Lauderdale County; Confederate Military Discharge Papers; Miss Marriage Soundex prior to 1926; Kemper Co 1834 State Tax List and Bible Reocrd of Enoch Sprewell Jones & Susan Abney Jones. Franklin data has been extracted and will appear in our next issue.

If you have allied lines that were in these areas and would like to have these names checked, if you will send \$1.00 per surname names and a SASE, I will be happy to check for you. We will review each quarterly as they are received and certainly pass any Franklin data on to you.

Franklin Family Researchers United Rt 2, Box 212 El Campo, TX 77437

Elaine Franklin Giddens, Johnnye Carlson,
Editor Editor

Rt 2, Box 212 1024 Ross
El Campo, TX 77437 La Marque, TX 77568

Organized in January 1991

Dedicated to the Preservation and Research of the FRANKLIN Surname

Tidbits From Johnnye

I have done it again. I typed the census, printed it out then wiped it out before I made a disk to send Elaine. I'm getting more like the old German everyday. "The more hurrier I go the more behinder I get". I wish some of Elaine's efficiency would rub off on me.

Please! If you haven't sent your lineage (ancestor) chart in, do it soon. An indexed Lineage Book is one of the best ways to get your ancestor names out, also to help you locate collateral lines. If you are sending a chart that has been printed off your computer, please make sure that there is a one inch margin on either side so that when the book is put together, part of your names will not be hidden in the margin. These charts are printed as sent to lessen the chance of an error. They should be neatly typed or printed. I will be glad to type any hand printed charts if requested in a note.

Does anyone use the old State Gazetteers to gather information? I would like to locate as many as possible and would appreciate it if you would ask at your local libraries and let me know what years they have. I think that most states had them.

Houston Public Library Texas Room, 500 McKinny, has Texas State Gazetteers for 1882/83, 1884, 1890/91, (1896/97 cannot be copied on machine) and 1914/15. They give you the information on the towns your ancestors lived in or near for those years. All business owners are listed, planters and farmers too. These are the Franklin planters and farmers that are listed in the 1882/83 issues. The only problem is that there was such a line at the copy machine that these were hand copied and I forget to make a copy of the key sheet. The numbers are the number of acres they farmed, but I don't know what the letters stand for without the key sheet. These are all Franklins so I haven't used the last name and have copied it just the way they are listed in Gazetteer.

Initials or Name	Acres	County	Pg No	Initials or Name	Acres	County	Pg No
BC	320B	Bosque	933	В	225A	Burleson	944
WL	250A	Burnet	946	M	800C	Calahan	952
DJ	1032F	Collin	964	Issac	216B	Collin	964
JB	193E	Collin	964	JL	236C	Collin	964
MM	276A	Cooke	977	Abner	325B	Grayson	1031
WP	1324F	Grimes	1035	Perry	11791 E	Llano	1076
JW	242B	Parker	1092	JA	200B	Red River	1099
JA	447C	Rockwell	1102	A	336C	Tarrant	1113
JH	222B	Wilson	1133				

Galveston Daily News 7th Dec 1867 - Lewis M. Franklin, native of Cincinnati Ohio, died at the home of his brother in law N. Mayblum, (Richmond, Ft Bend county) after short illness of congestion of the brain.

At the Gonzales Public Library I gleaned this bit of info from the TN Genealogical Magazine, *Ansearchin' News*, winter issue 1987.

- Pg 22 Index for Lincoln county Court Minutes 1830-1833 makes references about 80 times to Benjamin, Bernard, David, J., James, John, SF, Wesley or Wm, all Franklins.
- Pg 27 Rock Creek Cemetery, Benton, Polk county TN lists Michael Franklin d: 11 July 1889 age 72 years of age.
- Pg 148 J.D. Franklyn officiant at wedding of Hiram J. Crow and Harriet Davis 23 Sep 1862
- Pg 149 J.L. Franklin m: Mattie Bell 9 Apr 1863 by G.M. Williams
- Pg 163 Joshua Franklin signed petitions to The General Assembly of TN 17 Sep 1812 Anderson county TN.

If I haven't answered your letter, please send me a postcard. Since October 3 I have traveled more than I have been home. Sadly I was able to do very little research on these trips. Have your ever driven through a town on a Saturday or late in the evening that you want to research in. I've been through Carnsville, GA four times like that. I've driven around the town looking, talked to the people at the local convenience store, then reluctantly went on my way to Portsmouth, VA or home, which ever way I was headed. In January I planned my trip to VA so that I could research a bit in NC, SC, GA & AL on the way home. I just didn't reckon with traveling with my daughter's two cats that I was bringing home. These trips add to my disorganization so if I haven't answered your letter by now, please let me know.

If you haven't received an answer from anyone's letter within two months and you are sure you have enclosed an SASE, then drop that person a card. Ask them to use your SASE to let you know if they have nothing for you or if they need more time, you will send another SASE for their file. If they have nothing for you, you can put their file to rest and quit watching for the postman, expecting to hear from them. Just recently I found in a file an SASE from someone that was almost two years old.

Elaine & I hope that every letter you write and every letter you receive will put you closer to your illusive ancestor, also that you will share your experiences with us so that they may be published for the encouragement of others. If you haven't sent us anything on your family or a query, do it soon. Only YOU can let others know what you need or what you have to share. If you haven't heard from a query you have sent, then send a short query with new info on the same person.

In ancient times there was a prayer for "The Stranger within our gates", but we don't want you to remain strangers. Elaine & I want you to become friends and cousins, not only to us but to each other. A family quarterly is not a money making project, but could be likened to a pot luck dinner. It is not so much what we as hostess prepare, but what YOU contribute and what YOU respond to, that will make this continue to be a successful family publication.

Till we get together again, Johnnye

Mississippi Memories

The following publications cover subject matter in which you may be interested. No Franklins named, however, if you have allied lines whom you feel may be mentioned - send \$1.00 per surname & a SASE - and I will look for you.

Mississippi Memories, Vol I #1, covers: Clippings from Tishomingo Democrat - Tishomingo County; 1844 Tax Roll - Newton County; Sharon Cemetery - Madison County; Mississippians in Steamboat Disaster; Hopewell Baptist Church - Copiah County; Probate Dockets & Will Packets Index - Copiah County; Mississippi Marriages Soundex and Mississippi Central Railroad Papers 1862-1868.

Mississippi Memories, Vol I #2 covers: Probate Dockets & Will Packets Index, Copiah County; Mississippi Confederate Companies; Spring Hill Institute, Lauderdale County; Masonic Lodge #215 Osyka, Pike County; Stump Bridge Cemetery - Madison County; 1890 Soldiers Schedule, Benton County; 1822 Birth/Death Register, Claiborne County; 1790-1873 Mississippi Patents; Mississippi Marriage Soundex, 1844 Tax Roll - Newton County; and Sharon Cemetery, Madison County.

Mississippi Memories, Vol 1 #3 covers: Mississippi Supreme Court Cases; Probate Dockets & Will Packets Index - Copiah County; Henry Cemetery, Alcorn County; Mississippi Patents; Mississippi Convederate Rifles; Salem Baptist Church - Jefferson County; Historic Cottage for Sale - Lawrence County; Mississippi Marriages Soundex; Stephen Goins - Choctaw Nation; Feamster Grave Marker - Madison County. (con'd pg 48)

Quarterly Exchanges

We have agreed to exchange quarterlies with the Baton Rouge Genealogical & Historical Society, PO Box 80565 S.E. Station, Baton Rouge, LA 70898-0565 who celebrated their 30th anniversary in Dec 1991. They announce in Vol XI, No. 3 Summer 1991 their microfilm holdings have been broadened with the acquisition of the following 19th Century Baton Route Newspapers: Republic 1822-1823; Baton Rouge Gazette 1827-1835 and 1837-1853; Daily Comet and Morning Comet 1852-1856; Weekly Comet 1853-1855; Daily Gazette and Comet 1856-1860; Weekly Gazette and Comet 1856-1868; Baton Rouge Tri-Weekly Gazette & Comet 1865-1868; Louisiana Capitolian 1879-1882; Weekly Truth 1882-1886. These holdings are not all inclusive, as several issues are not available to be microfilmed.

They have recently purchased the 11 volume *Omni Gazetter of the United States*. Nearly 1,500,000 American place names are arranged by geographic regions and may be accessed by a master index volume. Included are populated places (villages, townships, districts, etc.), natural features (valleys, springs, woods, etc.), and structures, facilities, and locals (such as churches, parks, cemeteries, and battlefields). If you are trying to locate an obscure or not so obscure place, the *Omni Gazetter* can probably tell you where it is, down to the latitude and longitude.

Volume XI, No. 4 Fall 1991 announces a new genealogy column. "Roots 'n Records", which has begun in several Mississippi newspapers. Queries, family information or materials with a Mississippi connection are welcomed. Write to the following newspapers or Joyce Shannon Bridges, 1413 Fernwood Lane, Shreveport, LA 71108. *Port Gibson Reveille*, PO Box 1002, Port Gibson,

MS 39150-1002; *Woodville Republican*, PO box 696, Woodville, MS 39669; *Magee Courier*, PO Box 338, Magee, MS 39111.

Mrs. Evelyn Lambert, President of the Baton Rouge Genealogical & Historical Society, 1080 Elizabeth Drive, Baton Rouge, LA 70815, shares the following info with us to help in our research efforts when in the Baton Rouge, LA area:

- East Baton Rouge Library System has ten branch Libraries.
- The Centroplex Branch. This is located at 120 St Louis (across from the Old State Capitol) and has, by far, the largest collection of genealogical materials. You will find several books that the Baton Rouge Catholic Archives have published on their holdings.
- The Middleton Library. This is part of Louisiana State University and houses the Louisiana Room, old newspaper files from around the state, government manuscripts and documents, etc.
- Hill Memorial Library Building This is part of Louisiana State University and houses the the Lower Mississippi Valley Collection.
- Louisiana State Library. This is located near the "New" State Capitol on third St (now Riverside Mall) is the Ask about their lending policy to out-of-towners. Parking is behind the building - go around the corner.
- The Catholic Archives. Before the Louisiana Purchase in 1802, Louisiana was under the rule of "His Catholic Majesty" the King of France & Spain. early records of baptism, marriages and deaths are found in the Catholic Archives. No other churches were allowed in the Territory. In Baton Rouge, The address is The Catholic Diocese, 1800 S Acadian Thruway, PO Box 2028, Baton Rouge, LA 70821. There is a fee to research. If your ancestors lived in Louisiana prior to the time it became a State in 1812, their records probably will be in the Catholic Diocese where they resided. Non-Catholics are recorded as such.
- Clerk-of-Court Records. Do not overlook these records in the Centraplex parking building.

If you have a Society in mind with whom you feel we could exchange quarterlies and would be advantageous to our members, please send name & address and we will contact them.

The State of Franklin $(1784-1789)^1$

The State of Franklin, a short-lived state was organized by settlers in the western lands of North Carolina (now Tennessee). Early settlers west of the Appalachians were far from the established governments along the seaboard, and they were faced with problems with which the Easterners in control of the state were little concerned.

Frontiersmen in the region had created a government called the Watauga Association in 1772. In 1784, when North Carolina ceded its western lands to the Continental Congress, the



^{1.} William D Halsey, Editorial Director, *Collier's Encyclopedia*, Crowell Collier and MacMillan, Inc (1967) Vol 10 pg 330.

settlers in the Tennessee Valley, incensed over this seeming indifference to their plight, organized themselves into the "state of Franklin."

A convention met in August 1784, declared the independence of the state, and called a constitutional convention for December. By that time North Carolina had withdrawn its act of cession, but the convention met nevertheless. It adopted a constitution largely modeled on that of North Carolina and requested admission to the Union. The Continental Congress ignored the request.

In November 1785 another convention met to consider the constitution adopted the year before. By this time bitter division was apparent, and an entirely new constitution was proposed; it was highly democratic, its provisions including the referendum of general legislation to the voters for approval.

Land speculators, led by Franklin's governor, John Sevier, were bitterly opposed to a government which might deprive them of their land grants; they engaged in an aggressive political campaign and the proposed constitution was rejected.

North Carolina appointed officials for the region, a pro-North Carolina party was formed and the state of Franklin began to break up.

By 1789 North Carolina had regained full control. It promptly ceded the area to the new federal government. In 1790 it became part of the new territory south of the Ohio River, and in 1796 it was admitted to the Union as the state of Tennessee.

The Family Tree Newsletter will publish free Queries in their "Missing McPersons" column. Send queries to Ellen Payne Odem Genealogical Library, c/o Beth Gay, Editor, PO Box 1110, Moultrie, GA 31776. If you wish to receive a copy of their newsletter just call or write. No charge - although postage donations are appreciated.

Index to Texas CSA Pension Files²

These Pension Applications are <u>wonderful</u> genealogical resources and can be ordered from the Texas State Library and Historical Commission, 1201 Brazos, Austin, TX 78701. The State charges a minimal amount for coping all pages in these pension files and the info can be of significant value, especially if affidavits were collected to prove eligibility for a Pension. The above referenced book is a part of my resource library and I will be happy to search allied lines for your upon your request./ED

Franklin	Pension #	County	Spouse	Spouse Pension
Ben,	A-50141	Brazos		
D. Benjamin,	A-25292	Nacogdoches		
D. Benjamin (Mrs)	A-30222	Nacogdoches	h D. Benjamin	P-25292

^{2.} Virgil D White *Index to Texas CSA Pension Files*, The National Historical Publishing Company, 209 Greeson Hollow Road, PO Box 539, Waynesboro, TN 38485 (1989), pp 155, 156

Franklin	Pension #	County	Spouse	Spouse Pension
Daniel E.	A-08460	San Saba		
Fannie Ann	A-21437	Henderson	h William Cain	P-06307
Frances Rebecca	A-49369	Mitchell	h James Allen	
George Washington (Mrs)	A-47502	Fannin	h George Washington	
Jesse Sanford	A-12002	Kaufman		
John C.	A-14308	Lee		
John H.	A-36641	Nueces		
Lizzie	A-37550	San Saba	h Daniel E.	P-08460
M.C. (Mrs)	A-35461	Dallas	h Francis Marion	
M.E.S. (Mrs)	A-10169	Navarro	h R.G.	P-03112
Martha E.	A-10454	Polk	h T.J.	
Martha Elizabeth	A-45988	Falls	h John Abraham	
Mary,	A-28772	Bell	h James Johnson	
Mary C.	A-19467	Parker	h Thomas Harrison	P-03310
Mollie	A-33116	Tarrant	h James Weeden	
N. H. (Mrs)	A-08547	Erath		
N.J.	A-Rej	Comanche		
N.S. (Mrs)	A-49811	Kaufman	h William Augusta,	
Nancy E.	A-17195	Kaufman	h Jesse Sanford,	P-12002
Nathaniel Johnson (Mrs)	A-39445	Comanche	h Nathaniel Johnson	
O.B.	A-34890	Titus		
R.G.	A-03112	Navarro		
Robert Henry	A-06006	Morris		
Robert Morris	A-38754	Galveston		
Sarah Shields	A-38910	Galveston	h Robert Morris	P-38754
Susan Jane	A-40845	El Paso	h Sol	
T.J.	A-07031	Polk		
Thomas Harrison	A-03310	Parker		
W.W.	A-43286	Grayson		
William Cain	A-06307	Henderson		
William M	A-Rej	Frio		

Tuscaloosa County, Alabama 1898 Beat Tax List

Submitted by Ira Franklin, 1316 Colonial Way, Alabaster, AL 35007)

1	Name	Township	Range
Franklin,	JТ	20	9
	JЈ	19	11
	I M	19	11
	ΑT	22	12
	JО	21	11

History of Tuscaloosa County, Alabama Vol II by Lambert

Submitted by Ira Franklin, 1316 Colonial Way, Alabaster, AL 35007)

Constable Commissions: Franklin, Isiah, 17 Mar 1838.

1830 Tuscaloosa County, Alabama Census

Submitted by Ira Franklin, 1316 Colonial Way, Alabaster, AL 35007)

Franklin, Josiah Owens

Register of Amnesty Oath taken 1865 Tuscaloosa, Alabama

Submitted by Ira Franklin, 1316 Colonial Way, Alabaster, AL 35007. Recorded in mortgage book #1 1850-1868 beginning pg 66, Aug 1865.

Franklin,	William
	JW
	WH
	S A
	DΒ

Covington County, Alabama Registered Voters beat 6 June 1867

Submitted by Ira Franklin, 1316 Colonial Way, Alabaster, AL 35007.

Name		Date	Color	Page
Franklyn,	WH	6/21	W	18
	J W	6/22	W	31
	GT	6/24	W	32
	J A	6/24	\mathbf{W}	37
	JL	6/24	\mathbf{W}	39

Note: the first 4 above are brothers, this is only place I have found their name spelled other than Franklin.

Madison County, Texas Tax Records

(submitted by Ch (MAJ) Dan Franklin, 5257 B McNeil South, Ft Bliss, TX 79906) Madion County, Texas was created 1854 from Leon, Grimes, and Walker Counties

Year	Franklin	Abs No.	Org Grantee	Acres	Value
1860-1865	None				
1867	B.F.				
1868	George				
	Benj. F.				
1869	None				
1870	D.F.				
1871	D.F.				
	B.F.				
	В	22	Payne, John	211	\$561
1872	B. B.				
	В	169	D. Toner	40	200
		22	Payne, John	211	266
1873	Babe	22	Payne, John	211	106
		169	D. Toner	40	200
	BF				
1874	BF				
	W P	22	Payne John	148	222
	Babe	27	Jno Payne	211	
		169	Dave Toner 40	251	411
	Thos D				
1875	Franklin, W P	22	J Payne	148	
		65	V Flevso (?) 563 711	429	
	Babe	22	J Payne	211	211
	BF				
1876	Franklin, W P	91	Evan Edward	563	188
	BF				
	ΤH	25	John Payne	148	296
	Babe	25	John Payne	211	400
1877	BF		L.M.H. Washington	59	147
	ΤΗ	22	John Payne	149	300
	В	22	John Payne	211	422
1878	BF	235	L.M.H. Washington	59	142

FFRU Vol 2 - Page 14 (2nd Edition)

Year	Franklin	Abs No.	Org Grantee	Acres	Value
	ТН	25	John Payne	148 2/3	297
	В	25	John Payne	211	422
1879	BF	74	Jas Christian	320	480
		241	L.M.H. Washington	59	147
1880	BF	25	Jno Payne	209	500
		74	John Christian	320	640
		241	L.M.H.Washington	59	425
	В	25	Jno Payne	211	422
		241	L.M.H. Washington	22	22
1881	J M	25	Payne, Jno	148 2/3	500
	W M	113	Hill, WJC	160	320
	BF	241	Washington, LMH	59	500
		74	Christian, James	320	960
		25	Payne, John	209	500
	В	25	Payne, John	211	400
1882	W M	113	WJC Hill	160	300
	BF	241	LMH Washington	59	700
		25	John Payne	209	500
1883	BF	241	LMH Washington	57	700
		74	Jas Christian	320	960
		25	J. Payne	209	500
1883	J A				
	J D				
	W M	113	Wm JC Hill	109	250
1884	J A				
	BF	241	LMH Washington	59	300
		25	J Payne	209	530
		74	J Christian	320	960
	W M	113	WJC Hill	108	300
1885	B F ^a	241	LMH Washington	90	1000
		74	James Christian	320	800
		266	J Vaughn	902	1350
		25	J Payne	209	420
	W M	113	WJC Hill	109	300
1886	BF	74	Jas Christian	320	800

FFRU Vol 2 - Page 15 (2nd Edition)

Year	Franklin	Abs No.	Org Grantee	Acres	Value
		241	LMH Washington	88 1/2	1000
		236	J T Vaughn	902	1350
		25	J Payne	68	100
	W M	113	WJC Hill	109	300
	Steve				
1887	W M	113	WJC Hill	107	350
	BF	241	LHM Washington	88 1/2	1000
		74	Jas Christian	320	800
		236	J T Vaughn	902	2000
		35	J Payne	68	100
	Steve				
1888	BF	241	LMH Washington	88	1250
		74	Jas Christian	320	800
		236	J T Vaughn	902	2250
		25	J Payne	68	70
	W M	113	WJC Hill	109	400
	Steve				
1889	Steve				
	BF	241	LMH Washington	88 1/2	1250
		74	J Christian	320	800
		226	J Vaughn	902	2250
	W M	113	WJC Hill	109	400
1890	W M	113	WJC Hill	109	400
	Steve				
Non-Resident:					
	Andy of Tyler Co	128	Keton Jones	200	200
	B F Hardeman	226	J T Vaughn	465	1170
1891	Steve		_		
	JW (Jr)				
Non-Resident:					
1891					
	B F Hardeman	226	J T Vaughn	465	1170
1892	None				

Year	Franklin	Abs No.	Org Grantee	Acres	Value
Non-Resident:					
	B F Hardeman	226	J Vaughn	217	380
1893					
	Andrew				
Non-Resident:					
	B F Hardeman	226	J Vaughn	217 1/4	380
1894	Andrew	5	Balillo, G	160	240
	G W				
	JВ				
	GH				
1895	G W	31	Townsend, J	40	80
	Andrew				
1896	A				
	GH				
1897	None				
1898	GH				
	Andrew	5	Badillo, G	160	240

a. In 1885 B. F. Franklin is listed with the following taxable property: 3 carriages, \$75; 8 horses/mules, \$200; 48 cattle, \$480; 125 sheep, \$187; 25 goats, \$37.

Willowhole Cemetery, Madison County, Texas

compiled by Allie Mae Whitley and Mary Evalyn Collie Cooper, 1981 printed in Bryan, TX. (contact Dan for the location of this publication/ED)

p.19 Franklin, Emma Blout 29 Feb 1908 (wife of George Franklin)

p.20 Franklin, Mary J 26 Nov 1877-4 Nov 1880 (daughter of B and Mary Franklin)Franklin, George 13 Dec 1901-12 Jul 1968 (husband of Emma Blout Franklin)

Limestone County, Texas Cemetery Surveys

Limestone County was created from Robertson Co. (Submitted by Dan Franklin with the permission of Mary Catherine Moody, 1507 Cochise Drive, Arlington, TX 76012-4321)

Armour Cemetery (page 17)

Franklin, George 01-08-1825/1916

Sallie Stafford 1828/1911

Faulkenberry Cemetery (page 122)

Franklin, William Manuel 1848/1918 Frane Jane (McMahan) no dates Freddie Whittle no dates

Faulkenberry Cemetery (page 155)

Franklin, Fred E 1916/1975

Tom O 08-01-1899/06-30-1966 Emma M 10-07-1889/03-20-1962

Faulkenberry (Grosebeck) (page 157)

Franklin, J B 1876/1948 Emma G 1879/1970

J Conrad 10-13-1905/01-02-1963

Fort Parker Memorial Park (page 189)

Franklin, Charles H 02-07-1882/09-08-1951 Maggie Jane 10-13-1900/11-16-1951

Fort Parker Memorial Park (page 199)

Franklin, Nettie D 02-14-1870/03-17-1960 Lewis M 04-30-1885/05-07-1946

Lost Prairie Cemetery (page 295)

Franklin, Cathie 10-22-1864/12-13-1882 wife of T B

Henry 12-09-1878/09-00-1883 son of T H & N L

J C 08-18-1897/01-27-1918

J M 04-10-1856/11-03-1941 Father

Mary Jane b/d 07-18-1885 daughter of J M & M M

T B 11-21-1860/11-21-1882

Mexia Cemetery (page 404)

Franklin, J C 03-31-1887/03-11-1973 Ora 09-01-1888/01-08-1970

Tehuacana Cemetery (page 506)

Franklin, Margaret 1910/1947

Point Enterprise Cemetery (page 593)

Franklin, Dr. James A, Jr 02-27-1907/07-24-1974

Ruth N 04-06-1910/

Mississippi Index of Wills 1800-1900³

Copied by Elaine F Giddens, Rt 2, Box 212, El Campo, TX 77437 on 1/26/92. Book on location at the Huntsville Public Library, Huntsville, TX 77340

N	lame	County	Will Book & Pg #	Date
Franklin,	Hardin P	Marshall	Will Bk 8 pg 44	1851
	Rebecca	Adams	Will Bk 1 pg 298	1823
	Stepany	Leake	Will Bk 1 pg 94	1879

Monroe County, Mississippi Cemetery Records⁴

Copied by Elaine F Giddens on 1/26/92. Book on location at the Huntsville Public Library, Huntsville, TX 77340

Name	Dates	Notes		
Tranquil Church Cemetery - 10 miles N of Aberdeen				
Franklin, Maud Bristow	b 1877 d 1879	daughter of H M & A H Franklin		
Franklin, Henry M	b 5 Jun 1850 d 18 Jan 1899			
Franklin, Hal	b 6 Jan 1882 d 03 Mar 1912			
Smithville Cemetery - hwy 25 near Itawamba				
Franklin, E., Col.	d 10 Feb 1858	26 yrs 5 mo's old		
Old Fellows Rest Cemetery, Aberdeen				
Franklin, Augusta Fuller	b 6 Nov 1853 d 15 Sep 1932	wifeof H M Franklin		
Franklin, J T	b 8 Apr 1862 d 22 Feb 1913			
Franklin, E S	b 6 Sep 1891 d 11 Mar 1937			
Franklin, Geo E	b 28 Jul 1865 d 18 Jan 1927			

John Franklin & Mary "Polly" Jarvis

(Submitted by Dolores Franklin (Mrs James H), Rt 1, Box 45-A, Porter, OK 74454)

John Franklin (b ca 1787 NC - d 1870/80 Washington County, AR) married #1: Jan 1817 (Bond 30 Dec 1816) Surry County, NC to Mary "Polly" Jarvis (born 1794/1804 NC - died ca 1826 White County, TN); #2: 1827-30 to Mrs. Margaret (Shockley) Goad widow of James Goad who d 1827. John & Mary "Polly" Franklin's children:

^{3.} Compiled by Betty Couch Wiltshire (1989), Heritage Books, Inc, 1540 E Pointer Ridge Place, Maryland 20716.

^{4.} Dr W.A. Evans, Lowndes Co Dept of Archives & History, Columbus, MS (1980)

- 1. male (b 1817 TN)
- 2. female (b 1819 TN)
- 3. female (b 1820-21 TN)
- 4. Daniel Jarvis Franklin (b 10 May 1822 White County, TN d 18 Dec 1890 Collin County, TX) married #1: ca 1840 in AR to? Bounds daughter of Thomas Bounds; #2 10 May 1849 Collin County, TX to Rachel Jane Davidson (b 1830 TN d 26 Oct 1870 TX buried D.J. Franklin Cem, Collin County, TX) daughter of Lorenzo Dow Davidson & Isabel? Davidson; #3 14 Nov 1874 Collin County, TX to AnVolene V Hughes (b 1830 TN d 1925 TX) wife of George Hughes who d Sep 1862 Wilson County, TN.

Daniel migrated from Arkansas to TX prior to 1 Jul 1845 (Peters Colony). He served as a private in the Mexican War Feb 1848 to Feb 1849 in Bell's Texas Calvary. Other sources: 1850, 1860, 1870 Collin County, TX Census.

Daniel & ? (Bounds) Franklin's children were:

(1) Poston Bounds Franklin (b 7 Dec 1841 AR - d 31 Oct 1917 buried Horn Cem, Collin County, TX.)

Daniel & Rachel Franklin's children were:

- (1) Jessie Franklin (b 1851 Collin County, TX d 1851 Collin County, TX buried D J Franklin Cem, Collin County, TX).
- (2) John William Franklin (b 1853 Collin County, TX d 15 Aug 1861 Collin County, TX buried D J Franklin Cem, Collin County, TX).
- (3) James A J "Jim" Franklin (b 15 Feb 1854 Collin County, TX d 29 Mar 1905 buried Bethlehem Cem, Collin County, TX) married ca 1876 to Mary "Mollie"?.
- (4) Margaret B Franklin (b 1857 Collin County, TX d 1877) married? Clay.
- (5) Sarah Ann Franklin (b 1858 Collin County, TX)
- (6) Mary Ellen Cornelia Franklin (b 1861 Collin County, TX d 1951 buried D J Franklin Cem, Collin County, TX) married Dr Carig Tipton Lewis.
- (7) Lavra Franklin (b 1863 Collin County, TX) married Joe Peck.
- (8) Jarvis Franklin (b 1865 d Payton, AZ).
- (9) Joseph Franklin (b 1867 Collin County, TX).
- (10) Lorenzo Dow Franklin (b 9 Dec 1869 Collin County, TX d 12 Jan 1948 buried Pecan Grove Cem, Collin County, TX) married ca 1893 to Lula Margaret Scott.
- (11) Martha C Franklin (b 26 Oct 1870 Collin County, TX d 25 Nov 1872 buried D J Franklin Cemetery).

Daniel & Anvolene Franklin's children:

- (1) infant son b 17 Aug 1875 d 18 Aug 1875 buried D J Franklin Cem, Collin County, TX
- (2) Lula C Franklin (b 22 Feb 1879 d 21 Mar 1893 buried D J Franklin Cem, Collin County, TX.

5. Elizabeth Franklin (b 24/27 Dec 1824 White County, TN - d 14 Mar 1890 Washington County, AR buried Ganderville Cem, Washington County, AR) married #1 (as his second wife) 1840 AR to James Little (b 1801 GA - d 1845). #2 15 Dec 1850 to Prillyn Francis Asbury Babb.

Children are:

- (1) Ewen Marion Little (b 5 Jun 1843 Washington County, AR d 12 Jan 1903 Washington County, AR buried Granderville Cem, Washington County, AR) married 18 Jun 1869 to Sarah E Beatty.
- (2) Ambrose Hundley Sevier Little (b 22 Apr 1845 Washington County, AR d 3 Mar 1919 Washington County, AR buried Granderville Cem) married 10 Jun 1866 to Sarah Jane Graham.
- (3) Dewitt Clinton Babb (went by name Little) (b 12 Jan 1854 d 23 Sep 1919) married #1 14 Oct 1875 to Eddie Oleva Fortner #2 14 Jan 1911 to Ida Lewis.
- 6. Jesse W Franklin (b 26 May 1826 White County, TN d 14 Feb 1901 Springtown, Parker County, TX) married #1 21 Jan 1851 Collin County, TX to Narcissa Jane Davidson; #2 20 July 1853 McKinney, Collin County, TX to Harriett Henrietta Hart (b 17 Feb 1832 Howard County, MO d 22 Mar 1903 Springtown, TX buried Springtown Cemetery, Parker County, TX) daughter of Caleb Hart & Sarah Lawson Hart. Jesse migrated to TX before 1 Jul 1848 as a single man (Peters Colony). He served as a private in the Mexican War 30 May 3 Sep 1846; 4th Sgt in the Civil War 1 Feb 1864 for 25 days. He was a Mason Eureka Lodge #371 Veal Station Parker County, TX. Other sources: 1850, 1860, 1870, 1880 & 1900 Parker County, TX Census.

Jesse & Harriet Franklin's children:

- (1) Ambrose Hundley Sevier Franklin (b 17 Jun 1854 Collin County, TX d 11 Jan 1913 buried Wanette, OK Cemetery) married 24 Mar 1877 Springtown, Parker County, TX to Matilda Louise Jaye.
- (2) Mary C "Polly" Franklin (b 1856 Springtown, TX d ca 1885 TX) married 27 Jan 1881 to John W "Frank" Rowe.
- (3) Daniel Caleb Franklin (b 21 Dec 1858 Springtown, Parker County, TX d 16 May 1925 Porter, OK buried Greenhill Cem, Muskogee, OK) married 1 Dec 1892 Grayson County, TX to Melissa Agnes Wiles (b 19 May 1870 Old Dallas, Polk County, AR d 2 Apr 1952 Muskogee, OK).

Their child:

A. Jesse Howard Franklin (b 20 Mar 1895 Willis, Marshall County, OK - d 27 Mar 1970 Porter, Wagoner County, OK) married 1 Jan 1927 Muskogee County, OK to Gracie Ivalee White (b 5 Jun 1900 Asher, Madison County, AR - d 17 Dec 1960 Muskogee, OK.

Their child:

(A) James Howard Franklin (b 26 Oct 1929 Muskogee, Muskogee County, OK) married 21 Jan 1955 Tulsa, OK to Delores Sue Tibbs.

- (4) Jesse Lawson Franklin (b 1861 Springtown, TX d Clay County, TX) married #1: 31 Mar 1887 Parker County, TX to B.Z. "Belle" Bowen; #2: 12 Feb 1904 to Viola Stephenson.
- (5) Harriet Alice Franklin (b Jun 1864 Springtown, TX) married 22 Sep 1889 Parker County, TX to Jessie Houston Carpenter.
- (6) John H Franklin (b 1866 Springtown, Parker County, TX) married #1: 11 Dec 1890 to B.E. Kidwell; #2: 21 Jan 1894 Wise County, TX to Addie Hurdt.
- (7) Benjamin W Franklin (b 4 Oct 1868 Springtown, Parker County, TX d 29 Nov 1947 Weatherford, Parker County, TX) married 4 Nov 1888 Weatherford, Parker County, TX to Elizabeth Barnard.
- (8) Benton Collier Franklin (b Mar 1873 Springtown, Parker County, TX d Vernon, Wilbarger County, TX) married 25 Oct 1893 Parker County, TX to Lavada Kidwell.
- (9) Clarissa "Clercy" Franklin (b 14 Sep 1875 Springtown, Parker County, TX d 5 Jan 1917 Parker County, TX) married #1 3 Dec 1893 Parker County, TX to Sidney Murphy; #2: Frank Shawn.

Sources: 1820 & 1830 White County, TN Census; 1821-1835 White County, TN Tax books; 1837 & 1840 Madison County, AR Tax Books; 1840, 1850 & 1860 Madison County, AR Census; 1870 Washington County, AR Census with daughter Elizabeth

Henry Franklin, Sr - Margaret Hensley Franklin

(submitted by Gertrude Williams, Rt 2, Box 30, Hale Center, TX 79041) Several Members have submitted widely-differing, conflicting information on the following family. We do not assume the responsibility of determining the authenticity of research, therefore, we are publishing each members submitted materials. It will be their responsibility to attempt to reach a positive conclusion. We would like to be informed of any positive determinations so that we can pass this information on to our other subscribers./ed

Henry Franklin, Sr (b ca 1728 - d Will Apr 1792 recorded Amherst County, VA; probated Sept 1792 buried Amherst County, VA) resided in Albermarle County, VA; was <u>possibly</u> the son of Edward Franklin. He was in 2nd VA State Regiment and married Margaret Hensley (b 1732 Albermarle County, VA - d 7 Apr 1788 Amherst County, VA. (Sources: Amherst County, VA Will BK 3 pp. 233-234; DAR 3rd Supplement; Marriage records & other Marriage bonds of Amherst County, VA; William Montgomery Sweeny; Leora Higgenbotham Sweeny; Texas DAR Roster 1976). Their children:

- 1. Sarah Hensley Franklin (died before 1782) married Joseph Ballenger, Jr. Joseph married 2nd 3 Apr 1798 Tibatha Ballow.
- 2. John Franklin (b 1740) was in Glasgow, KY in 1798 married Margaret Pamelia Dawson.
- 3. Henry Franklin, Jr (d 3 Jun 1782 Inventory 3 Aug 1782; buried Amherst County, VA) married before ca 1767 Amherst County, VA to Maryann Higginbotham (b 17 Oct 1749 Harrison Bible Record). Mary married #2 Benj. Arnold. (Sources: Amherst Co Deed Book 4; Marriage bonds & other marriage records Amherst County, VA 1763-1800; Harrison Bible Record).

Their children:

(1) Reuben Franklin (b 15 May 1769) married 2 Nov 1796 to Matilda Caroline Harrison. Reubin Harrison was surety - father of Caroline - first cousin.

- (2) Aaron Franklin (b 29 Sep 1771 d 4 Oct 1833).
- (3) Jasper Franklin (b 27 Apr 1773) married 27 Oct 1796 Amherst County, VA to Polly Brockman daughter of Elizabeth Brockman. Reubin Franklin surety.
- (4) Peachie B Franklin (b 27 Aug 1775 VA d 1842 Will probated Feb 1842 Fayette County, TN buried Fayette County, TN) married 20 Aug 1799 Amherst County, VA to Susan E Dillard (b 1783 Amherst County, VA died intestate before 1872 Fayette County, TN) daughter of James Dillard & Susannah (Pettus) Dillard. Surety Spotwood Garland.

Their children:

- A. Nancy Franklin married in VA to ____Moss.
- B. Susan Petis Franklin (b 1838) married Ware in VA.
- C. Margaret (Peggy) Franklin (b 1805 died before 5 Jan 1852 buried Franklin Cemetery, Fayette County, TN) married in VA to Charles Watts.
- D. Mary Franklin married ____Jordon.
- E. Martha Franklin married ____Brown.
- F. James Henry Franklin married ____Smith
- G. Betsy Franklin married ____Wiley
- H. Lucy Jane Franklin (b 1824 Fayette County, TN died after 1880 Fayette County, TN) married 12 Feb 1849 in TN to Thomas H Ormsby (b 1816 died after 1860 Fayette County, TN) son of Robert Cowan & Elizabeth (Judge) Ormsby.

Their child:

(A) Marcus Browning Ormsby (b 2 Nov 1853 TN or NC - d 30 May 1920 West Dallas buried Western Heights Cem) married 24 Jun 1879 to Martha Christia Floyd (b 10 Feb 1857 MS - d 5 Sep 1905 Tulia, TX).

Their child:

- 1. Robert Franklin Ormsby (b 8 Nov 1889 Pickton, Hopkins County, TX d 2 Jan 1954 Tuila, TX) married 12 Jul 1913). This is Gertrude's parents[sic].
- I. Thomas B D Franklin married ca 1845 Mary Moody.
- J. Harriot Franklin married Edward Penn.
- K. Henrietta Franklin married Smith.
- (5) Anthony Franklin (b 17 Jul 1778 d 21 Apr 1859 Bush Creek, Highland, OH) married Sep 1802 Gerrard, Lancaster, KY to Mary Polly Nelson.
- (6) Henry Tarleton Franklin (b 17 Apr 1781 Reubin Franklin, Widow / Guardian 17 Jul 1830) married to Mary Ann Gear.
- 4. Major James Franklin (b ca 1750 d 17 Jul 1813) married 15 Dec 1796 to Mary Ann Crews.
- 5. Margaret "Peggy" Franklin (b 1757 VA d 1839 buried Barren County, KY) married 9 Oct 1770 to Reuban Harrison.

One known child:

- (1) Matilda Caroline Harrison married Reubin Franklin son of Henry Franklin, Jr & Maryann Higgenbotham.
- 6. Joel Franklin (b 1757 Albemarle County, VA DAR #79429) d 1807) married Albemarle County, VA 7 Jan 1794 to Susannah Lewis daughter of Co Charles Lewis.

- 7. Samuel Franklin (b 29 Dec 1762 Amherst County, VA d May 1836) married 1 Jan 1794 to Rachel Powell daughter of Tomas Powell. (Pension Bedford County, VA)
- 8. Philadelphia Franklin married 17 Nov 1784 Amherst County, Va (consent of Father Henry Franklin) to William Smith.
- 9. Judith Franklin never married. Death will Mar 1810 probated Nov 1811.
- 10. Elizabeth Franklin married Capt. Richard Ballenger.
- 11. Phoebe Franklin married Jerimiah Franklin

Henry Franklin & Margaret Hensley Franklin

(Submitted by Martha H Thompson, 517 Dumbarton, Shreveport, LA 71106)

Henry Franklin (b 1728 - d 1 Apr 1792) married Margaret Hensley 1752. Their child:

- John Franklin, Sr (b 1740 Henrico County, VA d 4 Apr 1823 Allen County, KY) married ca 1760 to Margaret (Pamelia) Dawson.
 Their child:
 - (1) Joel Franklin (b 1780/90 Warren County, Ky d Jan 1815/18 Warren County, KY) married 24 Dec 1812 to Polly Greer daughter of Aquilla Greer. Joel fought in the War of 1812.

Their child:

A. Margaret D Franklin (b 1814 - d of smallpox) married 2 Jun 1829 Barren County, KY to Daniel Jackson Stovall (b 8 Sep 1802 Allen, Barren County, KY - d 10 May 1884 Allen County, KY) son of Drury Stovall & Nancy Finney.

Their child:

- (A) Joseph F Stovall (b 1830 Barren County, KY died before 1880 KY) married 8 Nov 1852 to Donna M Stark (b 1837 Barren County, KY) daughter of C Duncan Stark & America (Jameson) Stark.

 Their child:
 - Anna Mumford Stovall (b 10 Feb 1854 Allen County, Ky d 19 Jul 1899 Mineral Wells, TX) married 3 Nov 1868 to John L V Harston (b 13 Jan 1842 Allen County, KY - d 10 Feb 1918 Tarrant County, TX buried Watson Cemetery). Their child:
 - (a) Dan S Harston married Mattie Lou Curry. Their child:
 - a1. Jay O Harston married Francis M Compton. Their child:
 - (a1) Martha H Harston married James H Thompson.

Franklin - Harrison Bible

From: Bible & Family Records of Barren County, KY & Surrounding Areas Vol I by Eva Coe Peden, 208 Morningside Drive, Glasgow, KY 42141. This book can be found at the Dallas Public Library, Genealogy Section.

Taken from an old delapidated Bible dated 1802 and owned by Mrs. Edna (Harrison) Powell, Glasgow, KY.

Reuben Harrison and Peggy his wife was married ninth day of Oct in the year of our Lord 1770.

Betty Harrison the daughter of Reuben & Peggy Harrison was born the 24th day of Aug 1771.

Andrew Harrison was born the 21st day of Feb 1773

Matilda Caroline Harrison was born the 16th day of Apr 1775

Frances Harrison was born Dec 9th 1776

Robert Harrison was born Feb 15th 1779

William Harrison was born the 29th day of Sep 1781

Reuben Harrison was born the 18th day of Nov 1783

_____ Harrison was born the 3rd day of Mar 1786

_____ Harrison was born the 11th day of Feb 1789

_____ Harrison was born the 4th day of Jul 1791

Samuel F Harrison was born the 10th day of Nov 1794

Deaths

Robert Harrison d May 6 1860 (Robert Harrison, Sr.)

Seth Bradshaw d May the 20th 1860.

Other dates found in the Bible

Derrezer was born Dec the 8th 1792

Joney was born Friday the 24th day of Sep 1813

Jacob was born on Wednesday, 22nd day of Jan 1817

Petlina was born the 9th day of Jan 1814

George was born the 27th day of Dec 1828

Saryan was born the 9th day of Jan 1830

Jefferson was born the 3rd day of Dec 18__

Margaret was born the 18th day of Jan 183_

Airless was born the 24th day of Mar 1831

Samuel W was born the 26th day of Mar 1840

Harriet was born the 11th day of Mar 1841

Reuben Franklin was born May 15th 1769

FFRU Vol 2 - Page 25 (2nd Edition)

Aaron Franklin was born Sep 29th 1771

Jasper Franklin was born Apr 27th 1773

Peachy Franklin was born Aug 27th 1775

Anthoney Franklin was born apr 17th 1781

Mary Ann Higginbotham was born Oct 1741 (or 1749)

Aaron H Franklin departed this life Oct 4th 1833

Samuel H Franklin was born in the year of our Lord 1813, Mar 11th

Matilda C Franklin was born in the year of our Lord, 1814 Aug 25th

Henry C Franklin was born in the year of our Lord, 1835 Mar 8th

Warren County, Kentucky Wills & Settlements Will Books A & B 1797-1823

by Mary Moltenberry Rabold, Bowling Green, KY & Elizabeth Moltenberry Price, Florence, AL. (1974) Public Library, Dallas, TX.

pg 68 Joel Franklin January Term 1818

Inventory, appraised by David Maxwell, John White and James Gatewood. Inventory included slaves: Lewis, James, Samuel, Green, Thomas, woman named Aggy & child, Mary, and Nelson. Notes included one on John Franklin and one on Martin Franklin.

pg 76 Joel Franklin December Term 1818

Sales made on the 23 Dec 1817 by John Anderson administrator of estate. Sales included John Franklin, James Franklin and Martin Franklin. Sales included property reserved by Polly Franklin the widow of said Joel Franklin which is to be deducted from her part of the personal property. Negros that Polly Franklin kept the first year after the death of her husband, man named James, boy named Greenup, and girl named Mary.

pg 79 Joel Franklin February Term 1819

"Surveyed for Polly Doil late Polly Franklin 206 acres it being part of three tracts of them patent in the name of Jesse C Rowntree and the other two in the name of Thomas Budges? and bounded as followeth to wit...between the heirs of Joel Franklin deceased and Polly Doil late Polly Franklin...on the part of slaves, was allotted said Polly one negro man named James value \$800.00, one boy named Greenup value \$500.00 also one boy named Sample value \$200.00. Signed, John White and William Lowe. This allotment of Dower to Polly Doyle late Polly Franklin widow of Joel Franklin deceased in the lands and slaves whereof the said Joel died seized and possessed.

pg 94 Joel Franklin April Term - 1820

Inventory of the estate of the infant heirs of Joel Franklin decd in the hands of John Anderson used and managed as follows. Slaves hired out for the year 1818 to James Franklin, Robert Bird, William Collins, Robert Bird, William Warren, John Garner, William T. Doyle and John Brown. Land rented to William T Doyle and Claborn Bobbett.

Infant heirs of Joel Franklin deceased to John Anderson guardian Dr, included two blankets for negro man Lewis, one for Aggy; procuring deed from the heirs of Solomon Greer deceased to the heirs of Joel Franklin deceased; boarding one of the heirs of Joel Franklin for 5 months; paying teacher for 6 months schooling of Joel Franklin; Spelling book and wool hat for Joel Franklin; The price of the maintainance of Margaret D Franklin and Caroline Franklin, infant heirs of Joel Franklin deceased for the year of 1819; Clothing of Joel and boarding said Joel Franklin 7 months the year 1819.

Said infants being maintained for said terms of by William T Doyle for said Anderson by contract except for the 5 months stated above which term the said Anderson boards the said infants himself. A compensation allowed John Anderson as guardian to the infant heirs Joel Franklin Deceased. Statement returned, examined and ordered to be recorded.

I do hereby certify that William Low personally appeared before me William Feland a Justice of the peace for Warren Co and made oath that he went with John Anderson in to Logan Co when he went to procure a deed of conveyance to 200 acres of land in Barren Co from the heirs of Solomon Greer decd to the heirs of Joel Franklin decd and further states that it would take three days to go and do the business and return. December 21, 1819.

I Richard Garrett clerk of the Barren circuit court certify that John Anderson administrator of the estate of Joel Franklin decd commenced a suit on a note for one hundred and fifty dollars given by Andw Black to said decedent and recovered a judgement at the June Term 1818, Black enjoined the judgement and the injunction is still pending Decr 18th 1819. Also certifies to a suit in chancery now John Franklin against the heirs of Joel Franklin decd and John Anderson their guardian, Decr 18, 1819.

I William G Logan Deputy Clerk of Wm. Logan Clerk of the County court of Barren do hereby certify that there is a deed made from the heirs of Solomon Greer deceased to the heirs of Joel Franklin deceased which deed is for two hundred of land lying Barren in the Barrens. December 18th day 1819.

The heirs of Joel Franklin to William Thomas etc. To services in the suit of Andrew Black vs them John Franklin and John Franklin vs them in the Barren Circuit Court \$40 each. Solomon Sharp testified Mr. Thompson charged them a reasonable fee. Feby 7th 1820.

Commissioners appointed to settle with John Anderson, Administrator of the estate of Joel Franklin deceased were, John Keel, J.W. Cooke and Jno W Powel. January 27th 1820.

pg 96 Joel Franklin April Term 1820

William Anderson made oath that the account rendered by John Anderson for twenty nine days work in gathering and husking corn was due for the benefit of the estate of Joel Franklin, Jan 27, 1820.

Aquilla Greer made oath that "John Anderson Administrator of the estate of Joel Franklin deceased procured ten gallons of whiskey for the sale of the property of said decedant with cost at the rate of 75 cts per gallon", Jan 24th 1820.

Paid to Dr B.H. Hall \$10.60 for "riding in the night and other services to decd".

Note for \$14 due 25th Dec 1817 to Thomas Right dated Nov 15th 1816 and signed by Joel Franklin and John Franklin. Witt: G.W. Gundehive.

Receipts of payments in full from A. Miller, Bainbridge & Gist of Glasgow, H. Eaton. Receipt from Joseph Crockett, "\$15 in part for any attendance on him during his last illness". Receipts from Martin Franklin for assisting in taking care of the crop, 9 days pay; from B.B. Winn, executor of the estate of John Courts deceased, Barren Co for purchases made at the sale of said John Courts on Jun 21st 1817; from Dabney Turner, Administrator of Mador Ryan deceased for a note dated Oct 3, 1817 signed by Joel Franklin and Conrad Walles, Witt: John Phillips; from a note to Gustavus Hendrick dated Oct 25, 1817 signed by Joel Franklin and Berryman Haley.

Charles Harvey made oath that "he pruchased of John Anderson Administrator of Joel Franklin deceased two lots of bond and when receiving of it did not get within four barrels of the complment he was to get. Dec 18, 1819.

Inventory and statement of monies paid out of the estate to sundry persons by John Anderson Administrator included, to Doctor Hall for visit, to Doctor Bembridge, to Doctor Crockett for medical aid, B.B. Winn Administrator of John Courts estate, and to Salley Humes executors.

Dan Curd made oath that Jno. Anderson, Adms for Franklin put a note in his hands for collection amounting to \$50 given by Warner Goodin to Jos. W. Hendrick & by him assign to Thomas Oliver on which suit was brought against Oliver and a comprise took place since Oliver held a note on Franklin for \$35. Dated Mar 20, 1820.

James Franklin made oath that Doctor Hall Baindridge and Crockett attended on Joel Franklin during his last illness and that Ephraim Bridges acted as cryer at the sale of estate and that Henry Eaton "bilt" two porticos to the house of Joel Franklin. Dated Feb 29, 1820.

pg 99 Joel Franklin October 1, 1820

The following is an inventory of the proceeds of the estate of the infant heirs of Joel Franklin decd in the hands of John Anderson Gargien for the year 1820 used and managed as follows

1 negro man Sam hired to	John Garner for	\$100.00
1 Ditto Lewis hired	Archibald Miller for	75.00
1 Negro woman Aggy hired	William Doyle for	25.00
1 Negro boy Tom hired	Squire M Barrot for	15.00
1 Negro girl Mary hired	Thomas Hobson	8.00
		\$225.00

The land rented to William Doyle for three barrels corn per acre not yet received nor disposed of, but will give account of when can be collected and disposed of. Signed John Anderson Gargr.

Expenses were payment to schoolmasters of Joel Franklin for 7 months in the present year and payment for keeping Negro boy. "The other expenses of the heirs together with the cost of repairing farming will be made out when it can be ascertained.

1st Oct 1820 Signed John Garngr

Inventory and account of estate ordered to be recorded.

pg 114 Joel Franklin October Term 1821

Inventory of estate of infant heirs of Joel Franklin. Expenses include boarding and clothing Joel

Franklin, Margaret Franklin and Caroline Franklin. Returned by John Anderson, Gdn.

pg 124 Joel Franklin October Term 1822

Inventory of the proceeds of the Estate of the heirs of Joel Franklin in the hand of John Anderson gardean to said heirs and rented to William F Doyl for the year 1822 to be paid in oats at the end of the year. Negroes hired to James Franklin, Archibell Miller, Squire M. Barret. It included expenses of infant heirs of Joel Franklin, dec'd. for year 1822; boarding and clothing Joel Franklin, Margaret D Franklin, Caroline P Franklin. Tuition for Joel and Margaret.

General Index to Real Estate Conveyances, Barren County, Kentucky

Date	Grantor	Grantees	Kind of Instrument
1807	Franklin, Jas	to Nancy & Thos Stovall	D of G
	Recorded BK AA pg 153 1807 - I	Negro Girl	
1801	Franklin, Jno Margaret	to Jas Franklin	Deed
	Recorded BK A pg 92 1801 - 100	A Jessamine Co	
1803	Franklin, Jno Margaret	to Thos Akers	Deed
	Recorded BK A pg 186 1803 - 96	6 A Jessamine Co	
1803	Franklin, Jas	to Simeon Buford	Deed
	Recorded BK A pg 502 1803 - Lo	ot 9-12 Glasgow	
	Margaret	to Thos Akers	Deed
	Recorded BK B pg 7 1801 - 107	A South Fork Beaver Cr	
1806	Franklin, Jno, Sr	to Jno Franklin, Jr.	B of S
	Recorded BK B pg 113 1806 - ne	gro boy	
1807	Franklin, Jno, Sr & Margaret	to Isaac Lowe	Deed
	Recorded BK B 140 1807 - 193 A	A South Fork Beaver Cr	
1807	Franklin, Jno Sr	to Mary Rountree	Deed
	Recorded Bk B pg 141 1807 - 18	A Barren Co	
1808	Franklin, Jno & Jas	to Wm Logan	Deed
	Recorded BK B pg 157 1808 - Tr	South Fork Beaver Cr	
1811	Franklin, Jas & Jane	to Richard Garnett	Deed
	Recorded BK B pg 414 1811 - 10	0 A South Fork Beaver Cr	
1812	Franklin, Jno, Jr (Polly)	to Jno Saunders, Jr	Deed
	Recorded BK C pg 345 1812 - 10	0 A South Fork Beaver Cr	
1813	Franklin, Jas & Jenny	to Richard Garnett	Deed
	Recorded BK C pg 432 1813 - 43	A South Fork Beaver Cr	
1816	Franklin, Jas & Jane	to Pleasant Eubank	Deed

Date	Grantor	Grantees	Kind of Instrument
	Recorded BK E pg 257 1816-100	A 2 Trs South Fork Beaver Cr	
1817	Franklin, Jno (Polly)	to Allen Hunter	Deed
	Recorded BK F pg 209 1817 - 130	A Sinking Cr	
1820	Franklin, Joel	to Thos Bridges	Bond
	Recorded BK H pg 19 1815 - 200	A Barren Co	
1820	Franklin Heirs Caroline P & Margaret	C	Com D
	Recorded BK H pg 59 1820 - 200		
1821	Franklin Caroline & Margaret (Joel)	to Wm Bridges	Com D
	Recorded BK H pg 224 1821 - 72	A Barren Co	
1821	Franklin, Jno	to Bank of Kentucky	Mortgage
	Recorded BK H pg 283 1821 - 62	A Sinking Cr	
1822	Franklin, Jno & Mary Ann	to Wm Pedigo	Deed
	Recorded BK I pg 382 1822 - 101	A Fallen Timber Cr	
1823	Franklin, Jas & Jane	to Willis A Bush etal	Deed
	Recorded BK I pg 526 1823 - Lot	Glasgow	
1823	Franklin etal	to Daniel Allen	Deed
	Recorded BK J pg 80 1823 - 50 A	Green River Knobs	
1823	Franklin, Jno	to Isaac Greer	Deed
	Recorded BK J pg 172 1823 - Tr E	Barren Co	
1823	Franklin, Jno (Polly)	to Isaac Greer	Deed
	Recorded BK J pg 244 1823 - 70 A	A Barren Co	
1823	Franklin, Jno	to Isaac Moore	Deed
	Recorded BK J pg 304 1823 - 62 A	A Sinking Cr	
1823	Franklin Heirs Caroline & Margaret (Joel)	to Jno Franklin	Com D
	Recorded BK J pg 305 1823 - Tr E	Barren Co	
1824	Franklin Heirs of Joel Decd	to Isaac Greer	Com D
	Recorded BK K pg 2 1824 - 150 A	A Barren Co	
1831	Franklin, Joel	to Isaac Greer	Deed
	Recorded BK M pg 176 1831 - 33	A Sinking Cr	
1835	Franklin, Jno & Mary Ann	to David Perkins	Deed
	Recorded BK Q pg 89 1835 - 200	A Fallen Timber Cr	
1835	Franklin, Lewis (Sally)	to Jas Murrell	Deed
	Recorded BK Q pg 96 1835 - Int I	Lot Glasgow	
1836	Franklin, Reubin	to Jno Carrier	Deed
	Recorded BK Q pg 163 1836 - Tr	Barren Co	
	FFRU Vol 2 - Page		

Date	Grantor	Grantees	Kind of Instrument
1837	Franklin, Reuben	to Vardaman Goodman	Deed
	Recorded BK Q pg 316 1836 - 12	2 A Dry Cr	
1843	Franklin, Nancy (Stephen)	to Jas C Franklin	Deed
	Recorded BK R pg 108 1843 - 64	A Little Barren River	
1843	Franklin, Nancy (Stephen)	to Lewis G Franklin	Deed
	Recorded BK R pg 109 1843 - 82	A Little Barren River	
1846	Franklin, Martin	to Wm Dishman	Deed
	Recorded BK R pg 318 1845 - 20	A Barren Co	
1852	Franklin etal Elizabeth (Lewis)	to Walter H Depp	Quit C
	Recorded BK U pg 320 1845 - 10	00 A Barren Co	
1852	Franklin, Margaret (Wm H)	to Sam'l N Brents	Deed
	Recorded BK U pg 490 1852 - 10	00 A Barren Co	
1852	Franklin etal Margaret (Wm H)	to Nathan C Bradly	Deed
	Recorded BK U pg 539 1852 - 20	00 A Barren Co	
1852	1852 Franklin etal Margaret (Wm H)	to Pinkney Jarvis	Deed
	Recorded BK U pg 544 1852 - 12	25 A Barren Co	
1852	Franklin etal Margaret (Wm H)	to Sam'l P Malone	D of D
	Recorded BK U pg 551 1851 - 55	6 A Barren Co	
1853	Franklin etal Jane	to Henry Gosset	Com D
	Recorded BK V pg 240 1849 - 10	00 A Burksville Rd	
1853	Franklin, Martin	to Wm H Franklin	Deed
	Recorded BK V pg 568 1853 - 14	2 A in the Barrens	
1853	Franklin, Martin	to J Thos Wheeler	Deed
	Recorded BK V pg 569 1853 - 14	2 A in the Barrens	
1853	Franklin, Martin	to Wm H Franklin	Deed
	Recorded BK V pg 568 1853 - 14	2 A in the Barrens	
1853	Franklin, Martin	to J Thos Wheeler	Deed
	Recorded BK V pg 569 1853 - 14	2 A in the Barrens	
1853	Franklin, Martin (Wm H)	to Elizabeth P Foster etal	D-T
	Recorded BK V pg 570 1853 - 30	A Sinking Cr	
1856	Franklin, Jno G & Nancy S	to Jackson T Jordan	Deed
	Recorded BK X pg 487 1856 - 90	A Beaver Cr	
1856	Franklin etal Margaret (Wm H)	to Jas B Ratliff etal	Deed
	Recorded BK Y pg 76 1856 - 54	A Blue Springs Cr	
1856	Franklin, Milly J (Roger T)	to Jno Shannon	Deed
	Recorded BK Y pg 88 1856 - 7 A	Barren Co	

Date	Grantor	Grantees	Kind of Instrument
1856	Franklin etal Maragaret (Wm H)	to Drury Roberts	Deed
	Recorded BK Y pg 115 1855 - 126	6 A Barren Co	
1856	Franklin, Lewis G & Isabel	to Jno Thos Franklin	Deed
	Recorded BK Y pg 119 1856 - 110	A Marrowbone Cr	
1857	Franklin etal Jno & Mildred (Sam'l C)	to Henry A Crenshaw etal	Quit C
	Recorded BK Y pg 252 1856 - 339	A 3 Trs Beaver Cr	
1856	Franklin etal Geo (Jane)	to Jesse T Pedigo	Com D
	Recorded BK Y pg 442 1856 - 2 T	rs White Oak Cr	
1857	Franklin, Wm	to Wm Dishman	Deed
	Recorded BK Y pg 489 1857 - 7 A	A Barren Co	
1858	Franklin, Henry T	to Jno S Hunt	Deed
	Recorded BK y pg 529 1857 - 10 A	A Barren Co	
1857	Franklin, Jno G & Nancy S	to Wm H Emerson	Deed
	Recorded BK Y pg 569 1857 - 159	A Beaver Cr	
1858	Franklin etal Harvey T (Sally)	to Bridges & Whitney	Com D
	Recorded BK Z pg 124 1857 - 250	A Canoe Cr	
1859	1859 Franklin etal H T (Sally)	to Jas E & Thos J Whitney	Com D
	Recorded BK Z pg 494 1859 - Tr 0	Canoe Cr	
1860	Franklin, Henry F (Sallie)	to Thos Bridges	Deed
	Recorded BK 1 pg 577 1860 - 17 A	A Big Barren River	
1861	Franklin, Wm H	to Robt C Dishman	Deed
	Recorded BK 2 pg 74 1860 - 12 A	in the Barrens	
1862	Franklin etal Mary K (Reuben T)	to Jas T Bewley	Com D
	Recorded BK 2 pg 168 1862 - 130	A Peters Cr	
1862	Franklin etal Martha E & Matilda C (W C & Peachy B)	to Jas T Bewley	Com D
	Recorded BK 2 pg 168 1862 - 130	A Peters Cr	

The "Corn Stalk" Milita of Kentucky 1792-1811

by G Glenn Clift, Assistant Secretary of the Kentucky Historical Society, Frankfort, KY (1957). This book can be located at the Shreve Memorial Library, Shreveport, LA (Dec 1983).

This is a brief statutory history of the militia and records of commissions of officers in the organization from the beginning of statehood to the commencement of the War of 1812.

Commissioned Officers, 1799-1804 / Barren County Regiment (laid off Dec 22, 1799):

Franklin, John Ensign. 45th Regiment March 27, 1800 Franklin, John, Jr Lieutenant, 45th Regiment March 30, 1801 Franklin, Martin Ensign. 45th Regiment March 06, 1802

Bartholomew Stovall - Susannah (Owen ?) Stovall

(Submitted by Martha H Thompson, 517 Dumbarton, Shreveport, LA 71106) The following Stovall information is submitted because of the connections to Franklin lines.

Bartholomew Stovall (b 1735 Goochland County, VA - d ca 1807 - Will in Warren County, KY WB A pp.108ff 1807); migrated to Halifax County ca 1750 to KY in 1798 son of Thomas Stovall & Elizabeth --- (Owen?) married ca 1764 Susannah (Owen?) (b 1749 - died after 1820. Couple was in Warren County, KY in 1804. Susannah married #2 Jerimiah Doughty in 1811 (on 1820 Smith County, TN census - later was in Montgomery County, TN). Their children - Not in order):

- 1. Sarah (Sally) Stovall (b ca 1765) married #1 1788 to Elias Dobson; #2 1806 to John Devine; #3 1819 Johathan McFarland. In 1834 Sarah made deposition for her uncle, George Stovall's pension papers.
- 2. Jesse Stovall (b 15 May 1766 d 29 Aug 1838 Carroll County, MO) married 9 May 1795 prob Jessamine County, KY to Mary C Drake. He was a Justice of the Peace.
- 3. Drury Stovall (d ca 1815 War of 1812) married Nancy Finney. A son, Daniel b 1813 married Margaret Franklin. Nancy declared for benefits in 1817.
- 4. Thomas Stovall (b ca 1780 Halifax County, VA d 1845) married 24 Jan 1805 Glasgow, KY to Nancy Franklin (b 1784). Thomas left no will; had 9 children; left a large estate and a rich widow.
- 5. Nancy Stovall (b ca 1785) married 1809 married William Davis.
- 6. George Stovall (b 1789 one researcher says 1764?) married 1814 to Betty Williamson.
- 7. Edith (Edy) Stovall (b ca 1791) married 1813 to John Nicol/Nichol.
- 8. Phebe (Phoebe) Stovall (died after 1834) married Thomas Oliver. Some researchers say Phoebe married Wm T Davis. #5 is also listed as having Wm Davis as her husband. Could he have been the 1st husband of Nancy and the 2nd husband of Phoebe?.
- 9. Elizabeth Stovall (died after 1825 Allen County, KY) married William Oliver.
- 10. Delicia? Susan? Stovall (d 1807) married Thomas Dobson. Several researchers do not list a tenth child. Says a daughter possibly Susan married ca 1799/1800 in KY to Daniel Munra, Jr. (Bartholomew's will mentions Daniel as a son-in-law.

John and Margaret Franklin of Lincoln County, Kentucky

(submitted by Agnes Brooks, 5210 Powell Ave., Kansas City, KS 66106)

John Franklin was living in Lincoln County, KY in 1784. He came from Amherst County, VA. Their child:

- 1. James Franklin (b VA) married (as second wife?) 1802 Jennie Finney in Glasgow, KY. Their child:
 - (1) Nancy Franklin (b 1785 VA or KY d 1860) married 24 Jan 1805 Barren County, KY to Thomas Stovall (b ca 1750 Halifax County, VA d ca 1845 Allen County, KY).

Their child:

- A. Susan Stovall (b 1806 Barren County, KY died before 10 Dec 1849 Allen County, KY) married 9 Apr 1823 Allen County, KY to Andrew Anderson Devine (b 9 Sep 1801 Mercer County, KY d Dec 1849 Allen County, KY). Their child:
 - (A) America Devine (b 31 Dec 1830 died after 1895 Union County, KY) married 15 Jun 1849 Allen County, KY to Alfred Peter Nichols (b 20 Mar 1818 KY - d ca 1892 Union County, KY).
 Their child:
 - a. Martha Willis Nichols (b 2 Jan 1864 Miller County, MO d 27 Apr 1931 Robards, KY) married 6 Mar 1892 Union County, KY to James Columbus Hatfield (b 26 Nov 1846 Morgan County, TN d 6 Feb 1931 Robards, KY).
 Their child:
 - (a) Caroline Hatfield (b 2 Feb 1896 Union County, KY d21 Nov 1989 Tonganoxie, KS) married 27 Dec 1924 Vanderburgh County, IN to Joel Goeble Parker (b 21 Sep 1899 Webster County, KY d 16 Jan 1975 Henderson County, KY).

Their child:

a1. Agnes Lucille Parker (b 15 Aug 1927 Webster County, KY) married 31 Aug 1946 Henderson County, KY.

Henry Franklin, Sr and Margaret Hensley

(submitted by L Eunice Prater Gentry, 1126 Prairie St., Cleburne, TX 76031-6741)

Henry Franklin, Sr (b abt 1715 Orange County, VA - d Sep 1792 Amherst County, VA) married before 1737 to Margaret Hensley (b abt 1720). (Sources: *Franklin Fireplace*, DAR, *Ancestors*: Gayle K Blankenship, 24 Roberts Landing, Poquoson, VA 23662; Lucille A Wright 225 Lotus Ave., Redlands, CA 92373; Jack C Grantham, Jr, 10102 Lanshire Drive, Dallas, TX 75238). Their children:

- 1. Sarah Hensley Franklin (b ca 1737 d 1777 Pittsylvania, VA) married Joseph Ballinger.
- 2. John Franklin b abt 1740 Amherst County, VA d abt 1822/1823 KY) married Margaret

Pamelia Dawson (b abt 1740/1745 - d KY). John moved to Warren County, KY after the Revolutionary War.

Sources: The Times of Long Ago by Franklin Gorin, Deeds of Amherst County, Amherst County in the Revolution.

Their child:

- (1) Elizabeth (Betsy) Franklin (b abt 1765/1768 VA d abt 1824/1825
 - A. John Gorin, Jr (b abt 1795/1797 Fairfax County, VA d Mar 1861 Russellville, Logan County, KY) married 26 May 1819 Russellville, Logan County, KY to Eliza Francis Wilson (b abt 1803 Louisville, Jefferson County, KY d 2 Apr 1875 Russellville, Logan County, KY). Their child:
 - (A) John Curran Gorin (b 23 Jan 1841 Russellville, Logan County, KY d 13 Jul 1926 Grand Island, Hall County, NE) married 23 Aug 1864/1866 Kingston, Roane County, TN to Mildred Jane Boyd (b 8 Dec 1844 d 23 Jul 1915 Doniphan, Hall County, NE. Their child:
 - a. John Hunter Gorin (b 15 May 1887 Palisade, Hitchock County, NE - d 2 Sep 1969 Loma Linda, CA) married 29 Jun 1914 to Olive Leona Weishaar (b 3 Jan 1894 Turon, Reno County, KS - d 28 May 1955 Ingleside, Adams County, NE) Their child:
 - (a) Zira "Mildred" Gorin (b 4 May 1925 Grand Island, Hall County, NE) married 5 Dec 1949 Hubbard, Hill County, TX to Gerald Dean Prater. Their child:
 - a1. Leona "Eunice" Prater (b 21 Nov 1953 Pueblo, Pueblo County, CO) married 29 Jun 1973 Cleburne, Johnson County, TX to Harold Wayne Gentry.
- (2) James Franklin (b VA) married 18 Nov 1802 Barren County, KY to Jane/Jenney Finney. Source: Marriage Records for Barren County, KY (929.37697/E47M) (had another marriage)
- (3) John Franklin, Jr (b VA d AL) married ____ Gibson
- (4) Joel Franklin (b VA) married 24 Dec 1812 Barren County, KY to Mary (Polly) Greer.
- (5) Molly Franklin (b VA d Nashville, Davidson County, TN) married John Moss.
- (6) Margaret (Peggy) Franklin (b VA d VA) married 6 Oct 1802 Barren County, KY to James Waggoner; other marriage John McDaniel.
- (7) Sarah (Sally) Franklin (b VA d MO) married G Washington Fletcher.
- (8) Martin Franklin (b VA d ca 1806 White Sulphur Springs, VA).
- 3. Elizabeth Franklin married Richard Ballinger
- 4. Henry Franklin, Jr
- 5. James Franklin (b 1750-1759 Amherst, VA d 23 Jul 1813 Amherst, VA) married 15 Dec 1776/1796 Amherst, VA to Anna (Nancy) Crews. (Source: Lucille A Wright, 225 Lotus Ave., Redlands, CA 92373). (also married a Taylor).

- 6. Margaret (Peggy) Hensley Franklin (d 1839 Barren, County, KY) married 9 Oct 1770 to Ruben Harrison.
- 7. Phoebe Franklin (d 1842 Amherst, VA) married Jeremiah Franklin.
- 8. Joel Franklin (b 23 Sep 1757 d 19 Oct 1807 Amherst, VA) married 7 Jan 1794 Amherst, VA to Susannah Lewis. Source: Jack C. Grantham, Jr, 10102 Lanshire Dr., Dallas, TX 75238.
- 9. Samuel Franklin (b 29 Dec 1762 Amherst, VA d May 1836 Bedford County, VA) married 1 Jan 1794 Amherst, VA to Rachel Powell. (Source: Gayle K Blankenship, 24 Roberts Landing, Poquoson, VA 23662).
- 10. Philadelphia Franklin married 17 Nov 1784 Amherst, VA to William Smith.
- 11. Judith Franklin (d 18 Nov 1811 Amherst, VA).

Wilson Franklin and Elizabeth Perry

(Submitted by Edna Groetken, 1525 Court St., Sioux City, IA 51105-1524)

Wilson Franklin (b 10 Apr 1752 Rehabath, MA - died after 1810) married 20 May 1784 to Elizabeth Perry (b 30 Sep 1755). Wilson's place of residence during the Revolutionary War was Rehabath, MA and Woodstock, CT. Wilson lived in Belmont County, OK ten years and is believed to have died there. (this is questionable that he died in Belmont Co.) Taken from DAR records - Wilson was son of Joseph Franklin and Abigail Franklin who married 1 Feb 1746. Their children:

- 1. Joseph Franklin (b 26 Sep 1785) married Isabell Devold
- 2. Esther Franklin (d in infancy)
- 3. Nathan Franklin (b 9 Mar 1793). Nathan purchased land in Belmont County, OK in 1816 and was in the 1820 Census there.
- 4. Calvin Franklin (b 31 Oct 1795) married Rachel Headley.

John Franklin, a full brother of Benjamine b in Boston, MA Dec 1690 d in Boston, MA 20 Jan 1756 married (1) Mary Gooch; (2) Elizabeth Gooch (Hubart) whose son James married Hannah Wilson of Salem, MA whose son was given his mother's name Wilson. Wilson served in the Army in the Revolutionary War in the Battle of Bennington under General Stark; he served to the endo f the war. He moved to Providence, RI after his marriage where a family of several children were born including a son Joseph who was eighteen years old when the family migrated to Eastern Ohio and settled opposite to Wheeling, WV. After ten years sojourn here at age 28 Joseph married Isabell Devold in 1811 b 3 Mar 1782 d 14 Dec 1859. Joseph Franklin d 11 Oct 1845 in Henry County, IN. Children of Benjamine (1812-1878):

- 1. Elizabeth Franklin (1813-1 May 1834)
- 2. Josiah Franklin no record about 1815
- 3. Daniel Franklin (b 24 Oct 1816 d 21 May 1894)
- 4. Joseph Franklin (d 18 Nov 1845)
- 5. Wilson Franklin (d in infancy)
- 6. Washington Franklin (b 21 May 1822 d 16 Mar 1909) married Louise Hasty on 9 Nov 1843. She was born 6 Oct 1827 d 26 Feb 1906)
- 7. David (b 26 Mar 1824 d Jul 1892).

Six boys of this family became Christian Ministers. The above was researched and sent to me by a descendent of Joseph's son Benjamine.

Joseph Franklin and Isabella Devolt were married in 1811 and lived in Belmont County, OH where was born Benjamine in 1812. Soon after they moved to Noble County, OH and settled on Salt Runn Stream. Here was born Elizabeth, Josiah, Daniel, Joseph, Wilson, Washington and David. The family all became members of the Christian Church. The oldest son Benjamin became a preacher and writer during the formative years of the Christian Church, also known as Campbellites and Deciples of Christ. He was well known as a preacher in Ohio and Indiana. Joseph and Isabella moved to Henry County, IN in 1833 and settled on land near Middletown, IN Deer Creek.

Washington Franklin married Louise Hastie and lived in Middletown, IN. Children: Jane (d in infancy); Margaret; Ellen and George W (b 1 May 1851). When George was 12 yrs old (1863) the family moved to Cass County, IA which wa their home the rest of their lives. This inforantion is from a descendent of Washington Franklin who lived in Iowa.

From the Ohio Genealogical Society Index of Revolutionary War Pension Applications p. 414

Wilson Franklin Conn. BLWE 5822-100- Pvt. issued 6/11/1799 to a Sylvester Fuelbr. No papers.

Wilson Franklin moved to Eastern Ohio 1801-1803, since the pension was issued 6/11/1799 the application for pension was made in RI and issued there. It would seem he sold his one hundred acres to a Sylvester Fuller as the papers were delivered to him. The last tour of duty was from Conn served by Wilson Franklin.

Samuel Franklin and Letitia Borrows

(Submitted by Mrs. Nona Bassett, PO Box 1445, Merced, CA 95341)

Samuel Franklin (d 19 Dec 1794, Mansfield, Burlington County, NJ married 14 Jun 1785 Philadelphia, PA (Swedes Church) to Letitia Burrows of Philadelphia, PA (d 1804 Northhampton, Burlington County, NJ). Samuel d intestate - Administrator was Thomas Thorne, fellow bondsman Bethanath Hodgkinson (UB 39 p 480 District OC Vol 1 p 258) 6 Nov 1798. Unconfirmed tradition says Samuel was killed by a run-away team. Some researchers say that instead of Samuel that was killed by a run away team, that it was Hannah Hackney's father - Joseph Hackney. William son of Samuel had a son Josiah who married Hannah Hackney daughter of Joseph, Jr. Letitia d intestate - Administrator was William Deacon. At the time of Letitia's death, her sons Samuel & Benjamin were minors. William Deacon was appointed their guardian (Vol 11 pg 233 BK I & Vol 1 pg 231 BK 10).

Samuel & Letitia's children:

1. William Franklin (b 1 or 4 Nov 1786 Burlington County, NJ - d 6 Jan 1886 Butte Creek, Marion County, OR buried Miller Cemetery, Silverton, Marion County, OR) married 1 Feb 1810 to Hannah Hackney (b ca 1786 prob Chester Twp, Burlington County, NJ - d 1852 on plains enroute to OR) daughter of Joseph Hackney, Jr & Rachel (Stokes) Hackney. Although they were married in Philadelphia, PA, they were both living in Burlington County when filed intentions. William was but a small lad when his father d and tradition says at age 14 he was apprenticed out to a family named Sewell and later married their daughter - Mary. If he did, it was a short marriage. The only part that we can prove is that William was 8 when his father d; Samuel, Jr was abt 6 and Benjamin was abt 4. If there was a sister Sarah,

she could have been apprenticed out at the same time as William abt 1800 and could have been the second born. William was 18 when his mother died. William & Hannah's children:

- (1) Sarah Franklin (b 25 Sep 1812 Burlington County, NJ d 20 Sep 1880) married 25 Jul 1833 to Duran Turl Hunt.
- (2) Ruth Ann Franklin (b 28 Oct 1814 Burlington County, NJ d 2 May 1903) married 25 Dec 1832 to #1 Enock Hunt #2 16 Oct 1836 to John Miller.
- (3) Josiah Franklin (b 14 Oct 1816 Burlington County, NJ d 14 Feb 1898 Moniter, Marion County, OR buried Silverton, Marion County, OR)married 13 Jan 1839 #1 Sarah Ann Conner (b 26 Mar 1813 New Preston County, WV d 19 Nov 1879 Butte Creek, OR buried Miller Cemetery, Silverton, Marion County, OR) daughter of Robert Conner & Nancy Ann Max(s)on Conner; #2 9 Jan 1887 to Sarah Strong widow of Samuel Wilson; #3 25 Nov 1897 Marion County, OR United Bretheran Church to Almira E (Crane) Simeral (b 28 Oct 1832 d 7 Dec 1903) widow of John Simeral.

Children of Josiah & Sarah Ann (Conner) Franklin:

- A. Hannah A Franklin (b 4 Dec 1839 Washington County, IO - d 15 Feb 1912) married 25 Jan 1855 to William Carrol Hicklin.
- B. Mary Jane Franklin (b
 1 Nov 1841
 Washington County,
 IO d 21 Sep 1860)
 married 11 Jun 1858 to
 Malon O Moody.
- C. Benjamin Perry Franklin (b 7 Mar 1843 Washington County, IO- d 22 Jul 1846)
- D. Sarah Elizabeth
 Franklin (b 16 Dec
 1844 Washington
 County, IO d 8 Oct
 1930 So Jacksonville,
 FL) married 7 Jun 1860
 to Henry P Thomson (b
 1834 d 27 April 1878
 Josiah Franklin &
 believed to Portland,
 OR). be his second wife



Josiah Franklin and believed to be his second wife

E. Matilda Emeline Franklin (b 14 Oct 1848 Jackson County, OR Territory - d 24 Dec 1864 Silverton, OR) married 7 Feb 1864 to John E Buff. Their child:

- (A) John E Buff, Jr (b 24 Dec 1864)
- F. William Hackney Franklin (b 5 Aug 1850 Jackson County, OR Territory d 15 Feb 1927 Molalla, OR buried Silverton, OR) married 5 May 1875 OR to Sarah Childers (b 1861 OR died before 1885) daughter of Robert Childers married #2 24 Dec 1885 to Sarah Lucinda Gibbons (b 16 Apr 1866 New Boston, Marciol, IL d 1 Feb 1949 Mollalla, Marion County, OR) buried Miller Cemetery daughter of George Gibbons & Susan Wilson Gibbons. William Hackney Franklin's bible is in the possession of Verlie Johnson, 7755 SW 84th Ave, Portland, OR 97223.

The children of William Hackney Franklin & Sarah (Childers) Franklin are:

- (A) Mary Caroline Franklin (b 22 Jun 1874 Clackamas County, OR d 11 Aug 1935 OR buried Redmond Cemetery) married 14 Nov 1894 Wasco County, OR to #1 George Shackford Bonney (b Mar 1871 d 29 May 1906 Kendall, Whatcom County, WA) son of Benjamin Bonney. The Bonney family goes back to the Mayflower through a Snow family to Juan & Pricilla Alden: #2 1906 to Thomas Patton.
- (B) Elma Jane Franklin (b 7 Jun 1876 Redmond, OR d 12 Oct 1896) married Aug 1893 to Albert W Farnsworth.
- (C) Effie Imegene Franklin (b 14 Jul 1878 Marion County, OR-d 31 Dec 1956 Chico, CA) married #1 22 Mar 1896 to Leonides Lee; #2 23 Mar 1926 to William James Bathurst (b 1 Feb 1881 Tomales, CA -d 20 Feb 1966 buried Chico Cemetery.
- (D) Fanny M Franklin (b Jul 1880)

The children of William Hackney Franklin & Sarah Lucinda Gibbons Franklin are:

- (E) Oscar Benjamin Franklin (b 5 Dec 1888 Monitor, OR d 15 Dec 1962) buried Miller Cemetery, Silverton, OR. Never married.
- (F) Myrtle Elizabeth Franklin (b 24 Jan 1891 Monitor, OR d 25 Jan 1985 Portland, OR) married 19 Nov 1919 to Harold Frederick Warner (b 13 Apr 1882 Rutland, Vermont d 17 Oct 1938 OR) son of Frederick Smith Warner & Eva Lavina (Briggs) Warner.
- (G) Viola Edith Franklin (b 12 Jan 1894 Monitor, OR d 23 May 1982 Castle Rock, WA buried Zion Memorial Parkin OR) married 24 Dec 1912 to John William Looney (b 21 Jan 1888 Meadowbrook, OR d 20 Jun 1966 OR buried Zion Memorial Park, OR) son of David Henry Looney & Amanda Virginia (Fisher) Looney.
- (4) Benjamin Franklin (b 12 Aug 1819 Warren County, OH d 2 Dec 1870) married 9 Apr 1846 Susanna Zickafoose Metzker.
- (5) Samuel Franklin (b 1821/22) probable child of William's Brother.
- (6) Hannah Franklin (b ca 1823) married 19 Jul 1842 to #1 Jacob Evilsizer as his second wife.
- (7) Lutitea Franklin (b 29 May 1825 Warren County, OH d 1847) married 1 Jun 1843 to Samuel Flowers.
- (8) Mary Jane Franklin (b 19 May 1827 Champaign County, OH d 19 Jun 1904) married 17/18 Nov 1852 to Peter Adolphus Syron.

- (9) William Burrows Franklin (b 1831 Champaign County, OH).
- 2. Samuel Franklin (b 1788) married Patience??
- 3. Sarah Franklin (b 1790) married 11 Nov 1808 to Joseph Williams. (no proof that Sarah is their daughter. Believe she descends from 1/2 sister of Benjamin (Stateman). Need probate records.
- 4. Benjamin Franklin (b 1792) married 3 Sep 1815 to Elizabeth Whitcraft.

Marriages of Urbana, Champaign County, Ohio

Husband	Bride	Date	Page #
Franklin, Joshua	Harper, Elizabeth	22 Jun 1831	2031
Hoisington, Wm	Franklin, Polly	18 Apr 1839	3182
Spears, David	Franklin, Sarah	16 Nov 1833	2322
Franklin, J D	Beckum, Rebecca	29 Aug 1832	2184
Evrlsiger, Jacob	Franklin, Hannah	19 Jul 1842	3682
Flowers, Samuel	Franklin, Lutitia	01 Jun 1843	3810
Franklin, Elisha	Jones, Mary Ann	11 May 1843	3800
Duson, William	Franklin, Lucretia	22 Jun 1848	4704
Franklin, Gideon	Thomas, Adaline	11 Aug 1850	5133
Franklin, Electra	Kimball, Bela	24 Oct 1822	1021
Fairchild, Reuben	Franklin, Patience	05 Apr 1821	953
Wooley, Isaac	Franklin, Elizabeth	18 May 1821	972
Anderson, William	Franklin, Mary	08 May 1820	932

p410 PA records which includes East & West Jersey

Crossley, John of Burlington County, NJ Yoeman and Tamer Vickers June 14, 1785 Surety Samuel Franklin of Burlington County, NJ Witness James Trimble.

Franklin, Samuel of Burlington County, NJ Yoeman and Latitia Burrows 14 Jun 1785 Surety John Crossley of Burlington County, NJ Witness James Trimble.

Both married in Swedes Church in Philadelphia. Yoeman is a term signifying that they were land owners classed a little lower than Gentlemen. It is not known if there was a relationship between them or if they were just friends.

Pennsylvania Marriages prior to 1810

Swedes Church, Philadelphia (page 373)

10 Dec 1753	Franklin, Martha & John Connar
07 May 1800	Franklin, Jesse & Mary Force
20 Nov 1777	Franklin, Joseph & Elizabeth Ebright
14 Jun 178	Franklin, Samuel & Letitia Burrows

1830 Warren County, Ohio Census

Page	Name	Gender	< 5	5 - 10	10 - 15	15 - 20	20 - 30	30 - 40	40 - 50
pg 179	Benjamin Franklin	males							
		females		1					
pg 242	William Franklin	males			1	2			1
		females	1	2		2			1
pg 258	Benjamin Franklin	males	1	2		1			1
		females			2	1		1	
pg 251	Obediah Hackney	males	1		1	2			1
		females	1	1	1	2	1	1	

1840 Champaign County, Ohio Census

Twp	Franklin	Gender	< 5	5 - 10	10 - 15	15 - 20	20 - 30	30 - 40	40 - 50	50 - 60
Johnson	William	male		1			1			1
		female			2	1				1
Rush	Samuel	male			1	1	2			1
		female				1			1	1
Urbana	Benjamin	male						1		
		female						1		

1850 Champaign County, Ohio Census

Twp	Dwel ling	Name	Age	race/sex	occ	birth state
Johnson	244	Franklin, William	63	wm	farmer	NJ
		Hannah	63	wf		NJ
		William	19	wm	teamster	OH
	278	Morgan, James	34	wm	farmer	OH
		Hannah	32	wf		OH
		Jeremiah	11	wm		OH
		Eliza	9	wf		OH
		Jacob	3	wm		OH
		Franklin, Jane	23	wf		OH
		Flowers, Minerva	3	wf		OH

1860 Yamhill County, Oregon Census

НН	Name	Age	race /sex	Occu	Real Estate	Pers	Birth State
#419-379	Franklin, B	39	wm	Farmer	\$2,000	\$655	ОН
	Susannah	33	wf				IN
	Celestine	12	wf				IO
	Charles	3	wm				OR
	William	73	wm			925	NJ
	Metzker, ME	12	wf				IO
	Metzker, WW	10	wm				IO
	Metzker, Benjamin	27	wm				IN

1870 Yamhill County, Oregon Census

нн	Name	Age	race /sex	occu	Real Estate	Pers	Birth State
	Franklin, Ben- jamin	51	wm	Farmer	\$2500	\$930	ОН
	Susannah	42	wf				IN
	Charles	14	wm				OR
	John	9	wm				OR
	Cyrena	5	wf				OR
	Susan	2	wf				OR
	William	84	wm			\$1000	NJ

1880 Clackamas County, Oregon Census

нн	<u>Name</u>	Age	race/sex	relation	Birth St	Fa Birth St	Mo Birth St
#123-123	Franklin, Josiah	60	wm	Head	NJ	NJ	NJ
	William	95	wm	father	NJ	England	NJ

1880 Washington County, Oregon Census

нн	Name	Age	Race /Sex	Relate	Occu	Birth State	Father Birth	Mother Birth
#233-235	Hicklin, Hannah	40	wf	head		IO	NJ	NJ
	Irene	22	wf	daughter		OR	IN	IO
	Lyman	21	wm	son	farm laborer	OR	IN	IO
	Leonard	20	wm	son		OR	IN	IO
	Williams, Julia	19	wf	daughter		OR	IN	IO
	Hicklin, Arthur	10	wm	son		OR	IN	IO
	Clara	8	wf	daughter		OR	IN	IO
	Williams, V.B.	25	wm	son-in-law		IL	England	IN
	Franklin, William	96	wm	grandfather	blind	NJ	England	NJ
	Alexander, Olele	4	wf	boarder		OR	OR	?

FFRU Vol 2 - Page 43 (2nd Edition)

Calendar of Wills 1791-1795 New Jersey

1791, May 22 Franklin, Lydia, of Cape May County; will of. Son Stephen Hand, a bed and gun. Son, Ashbury Smith, Bible and other books. Daughter, Mary Schillinger, bed and bedding, etc., all wearing apparel; and she has choice either to keep Lydia Moore or not until she comes of age. Granddaughter, Betsy Hand, a bed. My 3 children, Stepehn Hand, Ashbury Smith and Mary Schillinger, the residue. Executors - sons, Stephen Hand and Ashbury Smith. Witnesses - Richard Shaw, Jas. Reed, Eben Newton. Proved Dec 10, 1791. 1791, Aug 3 and Dec 10 Inventory, \$106.14 made by Eben Newton and Jeremiah Edmonds. (File 549E)

<u>1794, Dec 19</u> Franklin, Samuel, of Mansfield, Burlington Co Int. Adm'r Thomas Thorne. Fellow-bondsman - Bethanath Hodgkinson Lib. 33, p. 480. 1794, Dec 20, Inventory, \$426.7.9; made by Joseph Ellison and Joseph Brown (File 1154OC)

1804, Nov 20 Franklin, Letitia of Northampton Twsp., Burlington Co Inventory \$721.00 made by Levi Norcross and William Woolman. Sworn to by William Deacon, Jr., Nov. 29, 1804. (file 12168C)

Inventory & Appraisement

DRT in VOL A Pg 27: 27 Nov 1804 account allowed OC Vol 2 Pg 14 Nov 1805: 29 Nov 1804 Franklin, Letitia of Northampton Twp, Burlington Co Inventory \$721.00 made by Levi Norcross and William Woolman. Sworn to by William Deacon, Jr 29 Nov 1804 File 12-168C.

I, Abraham Brown, Surrogate of the County of Burlington do certify that on the twenty ninth day of Nov in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and four - administration of the goods

and chattels rights and credits which were of Letitia Franklin, late of the County of Burlington, who died intestate was granted by me to William Deacon, Jr. who is duly sworn authorized to administer the same according to law.

DR this accomplant	\$721.00
ON	88.09
Bal in Accomplant hands	\$632.90

We have not proved that Sarah who married Joseph Williams 24 Nov 1808 was a sister, but think she was. Record said Joseph Williams, sometimes called Joseph Franklin, he was related to Benjamin Franklin, a descendent of his sister.

A Jonathan Williams represented Benjamin Franklin when he brought suit against Samuel Hall. He wrote his sister Jane Meacham a letter that "He meant to force payment of a laggard debtor, who had failed to pay either principle or interest in seven years". He was another nephew, Samuel Hall who had married a daughter of James Franklin, Jr in Newport and was now a printer of Essex Gazette in Salem, MA. John Adams, an attorney, brought suit July 1772. Hall paid a hundred pounds sterling the following Jan and in delayed payment half as much again Massachusetts Money a little over 200 lbs which Franklin gave to his Sister Jane.

James Franklin, Jr had married 1 May 1742 Eunice Barnes. They had a daughter Lois Franklin b 25 Nov 1742, she married Samuel Hall abt 1763/64 and they had a daughter Elizabeth (Betsy) Hall b 1764. The mother, Lois, d 1765/66 as Samuel Hall married #2 9 Jun 1766 to Mary Hurd of Bos-

ton. Samuel Hall was the son of Jonathan Hall and Enna Fowle. Her bro Daniel Fowle, printer of New Hampshire Gazette.

Betsy was in the home of the Franklins on Milk St but she also must have been raised by the Barnes Family. She married Thomas Barnes in 1784 and d 11 May 1831. Thomas Barnes d 1855.

In Samuel Hall's will he makes a bequest to Mrs. Thomas Barnes and his wife Elizabeth of Brookfield. She being next of kin to Samuel Hall.

As for relation of Jonathan Williams to Benjamin Franklin, he would be a nephew.

Anne Franklin (b 5 Jan 1686/87 Boston, MA daughter of Josiah Franklin & Ann Child married 10 Jul 1712 to William J Harris of Ipswich. Anne Harris d 16 Jun 1729. They had 3 daughters; Grace Harris (b ca 1714) married Jonathan Williams; Second daughter married Wood; third daughter married Johnson. One of their children married Capt Clark.

Jonathan Williams, a Lawyer, and Grace Harris had 8 children: Joseph, William, Nancy, Jonathan (had a daughter - Christine), John, Sarah, Franklin, Franklin

In Josiah's will 17 Jan 1744/45 - "to my daughter Ann Harris deceased, her children, one single share ninth part of the appraised value thereof.

In the early records most of the Franklins didn't know what relationship the blond girl on Milk Street was to the Franklins, called Betsy, but reported to be a relative...(1) Josiah's son James;(2) James' son James;(3) James' daughter Lois;(4) Lois' daughter (5) Elizabeth Betsy Hall who married Thomas Barnes.

Members of the Buell Train 1847 to Oregon

(Article submitted by Nona gives very interesting and lengthy details about this wagon trip to Oregon. Anyone interested in receiving a copy of this document can write either Nona or myself. We felt it necessary to extract the Franklin data only at this time).

In addition to the Buells & Conners, the following were on this wagon train:

Josiah Franklin age 31 yrs

Sarah Ann Conner age 34 yrs wife of Josiah Franklin sister of William, Nathan & Job Conner. Children of the above

- 1. Hannah Franklin age 8 yrs, married later to William C Hicklin
- 2. Mary Jane Franklin age 6 yrs, married later to Malon O Moody
- 3. Sarah Elizabeth Franklin age 3 yrs, married later to Henry P Thomson.

Also on the train was Josiah Franklin's sister Ruth Ann (Franklin) Hunt; husband Miller Hunt; John & family.

William Franklin father of Benjamin & wife Hannah (Hackney) died on plains. Father of Josiah & Ruth of 1847 Wagon Train.

Mary Jane Franklin daughter of William and her daughter (54) Minerva Jane Flowers b 1847. Mary Jane married Peter A Syron 1852 in OR and Minerva later md Samuel Eads.

Two men in the wagon train lived to be over 100 years old - James Reed Syron and William Franklin.

Josiah Franklin was in Washington County, IO in 1840 census, probably was there when daughter Hannah A Franklin was born 4 Dec 1839). Sarah d 19 Nov 1879 on the home place, Butte Creek, buried in the Miller Cemetery, Silverton, Marion, OR. Husband md 2nd 9 Jan 1887 to Sarah Strong, widow of Samuel Wilson. She d 28 Sep 1896 and is also buried in the Miller Cemetery. Josiah married #3 25 Nov 1897 to a Mrs. A.E. Simeral, a widow with at least 2 sons on probate records, L. Simeral & W.L. & C.J. Simeral, so may have been 3 sons. Haven't found out anything more on her.

Josiah Franklin & wife Sarah Conner and 3 children and his sister, Ruth Ann (Franklin) Hunt, Miller & Husband John Miller with 4 children, one child dying 18 Oct 1847.

Probably more on train but this is all we have a record of.

Letter #1 written to Sarah (Franklin) Thomson (pg 24 #D) (from mother or sister)

Oct 29, 1871 E. Florence (East Florence, NJ?)

Sunday evening - all gone to bed the house quite[sic]. I received your letter saying your family was better and that you was at work a little. I am glad to hear that you and yours are comfortable and I hope you all will be blessed with health and strength.

I have not got any of that pepsin yet but I hope to get some soon as I can. Don't you think your stomach may be troubled with worms - a girl lived with me that spit up her vitals every meal. She could hardly keep anything down. I gave her a teaspoon of bitters that I had, before each meal and she kept down her food. Then she went to live with another woman. She did not have any medicine to take and she threw up her food and worms with it so there was no mistake about it. I will write the receipt for making it, it is good for the stomach and all bilious diseases and cures the bilious colic without fail.

2 oz. Alors	1 oz gum myrrh	1 oz mace
1 oz cinnamon	1 oz cloves	1 oz ginger
1 oz salts of niter	2 oz gamboge	

Put some of the powder in good liquor and take a little or make it into pills if you choose. Take a little at first.

I hope you will be better before this reaches you. I will send the other if I can get it. Jane says I must send you some gizzard peelings she thinks they will do you good because they help her.

We have had a wedding in the neighborhood. Miss Libbie Whipple was married the 25th to Norvel Smith. You know him, he lived just below Wolcott Hill School house when you was a little boy and lives there yet. I think he was old enough to get a wife that is 28.

Pa has not gone away yet and I don't think he will. His health is good - better than it has been for a long time and I hope it will continue. He has a good deal of law and auctioneering to attend to and as long as he is busy and has enough to do, he won't think so much of going away.

October has been a very pleasant month here. A few hard frosts and a few days ago a little snow now but pleasant for this time of year.

The fire in Chicago was dreadful. Many more burned than they supposed at first - many hundreds have perished. There has been great fires in the Northern part of Michigan and in Wisconsin and Minnesota. The pine forests have burned over sweeping whole villages in its course. Hundreds of men, women, children, cattle and wild beasts were driven into the lake and perished. Those that escaped are homeless and destitute such distress never came into this country before and I hope never will again. I know that the judgements of the Lord are right but we may pray for mercy which He has promised to those that seek Him. I hope we shall be prepared for what lies before us for we know that the day when trouble will come upon us let us rely on His Goodness and trust His mercy for He is more willing to give the Holy Spirit to those that ask Him than earthly parents are to give good gifts unto their children. May the Lord guide and protect us and save us all from sin.

Give my love to E. I wish I could see her. Tell George to be a good boy. I want to see him very much. Send his picture when you can.

H.P.T. take a little of this package before eating.

Letter #2 to Mrs. Henry P Thomson,(pg 24 #D) East Portland, OR

October 14, 1882 Elwood, Atlantic County, NJ

To my Niece:

I owe you an apology for not answering your kind note to me long time ago but the fact is I mislaid it and forgot the address. Do not think it was intentional on account of our differences in religious views. Believe me I am not so bigoted as that. I received your postoffice address since dark and am now in my office trying as best I may to hold converse with you. I did not get your name hence I direct to Mrs. Henry P Thomson. In church matters I am still a Methodist and am licensed as a local preacher, a poor one I assure you. My age renders me quite unfit for active service. I was 69 the second of this month, my health is not good yet I do most all of my own work as well as some of my neighbors work. I have quite a severe cough especially in the morning when first I awake but God blesses me with a good appetite and has thus far given me enough to eat. My weight is now 145 pounds. I am a good Templar and Chaplain of the Lodge -

Sunday 3 1/2 pm: I was broke off last night by a business call and this forenoon I rode five miles and spoke from I Cor. 2nd chapter, 2rd verse. Was home at dinner and now devote a few moments with you. I hope that Pauls sentiments may express your views as well as mine - no bickering about non essentials. The great theme of life should be Christ or rather Jesus Christ and Him Crucified. Believe me our intercourse will not be cut off on any such grounds as you suggest. I shall be happy to hear from you at any and all times.

We live within 24 miles of Old Ocean and in a healthy climate. No frost here as yet and sun shines as bright as June. We have beans in all stages from blooms to the ripe bean...and for desert at dinner..enjoyed a good ripe watermelon. Flowers in abundance. Wife's health is not good, yet she does her own work. We keep a horse and two cows. Daughter Mary left her youngest, a boy with us, he is quite a lad and rode with me to church today.

I shall try and send this off by tomorrows mail and will anxiously look for an answer and forgiveness for my seeming neglect. Jane or Ione and I correspond often and you are near the pacific I am

a neighbor to the Atlantic our correspondence should go over the breezes of each and my desire is that each of us at the last may be wafted by the bales of glory into the heaven of ever lasting peace. My daughter Grace lives in Vineland about 20 miles away. I have no items of news that would interest you. Please send my a newspaper and I will return the compliment.

Monday pm: Have to go to Philadelphia tonight on a pioneer case and must now bid you and yours an affectionate adieu.

Chas B Thomson

return address (if not delivered within ten days) return to Chas B Thomson, Notary Public, Commissioner of Deeds, Justice of the Peace and real estate agent, Elwood, NJ.

(He calls her niece..so he must be a brother of Henry Thomsons' father. His nephew Henry Thomson died four years and 5 or 6 months before this letter was written. Also great nephew George Thomson followed his father in death in Aug 1879. So he, Chas B Thomson didn't have a blood relative alive from her. The Jane he mentions in his letter is one mentioned in letter written in 1871 (mother or sister of Henry) Probably sister as don't think Pa would be thinking of leaving.

Letter #3 written by Mrs. Herman Link, PO Box 5886, South Jacksonville, FL

Sept 11, 1930

Mrs Irene Montross, RR U Box 94, Clovis, CA:

I am writing to ask you if you can do anything for your Aunt, Mrs. S E Thomson who is and has been in my home for the past 5 years. We took her into our home as an act of christian charity, when she was being ejected from her little house she occupied. In all those 5 years I have cared for her as if she were my own mother and she loves me devotedly but now she is failing very fast and the doctor says the end is near at hand. I have tried all these years to get in touch with her relatives but could never get any reply to my letters. The Catholic of this Parish also the doctor is treating her will bear out my statements. Please answer this at once and oblige.

Letter #4 written by Mrs Herman Link

Sept 27, 1930

My dear friend:

I received your letter and was very glad to hear from you in regards to Mrs Thomson you ask of her to write to you but I am sorry to tell you she can't see nor hear - she is as helpless as a baby. I am in bad health. As to any property she has lost everything. So if she passes away I will send you word. Right now, I will send you the pictures, I will send them all to you. Enclosed you will find one of her taken 5 years ago. May God bless and care for you. I am too sick to write anymore. The doctor says she may pass out most anytime, her age is very old. I will let you know when the end comes.

Letter #5 Oct 4, 1930

To: Mrs. Harold F Warner, Rt 5, Box 141, Portland, OR

To my cousin Myrtle: (pg 25 (F)) Sarah Franklin Thomson

I am writing you to let you know I got a letter from South Florida saying S E Thomson was there and very sick. I did not know if you had heard or not. So am sending you a copy of all I got. I wrote Aunty, but that woman says she is blind and deaf so cannot read or hear anything in letter. She wanted me to send some money but we cannot. It has been hard times for us. Just one drought year after another until we mortgaged this year and put in a pump to irrigate with. So hope next year may be better.

I did not expect you can help her either, but you would like to know so will send you the copies. I know it must be Aunty for the woman sent me a picture of her. Though it is much older, it still looks like her still in many ways so I felt it was her. I don't know anything about the last years of her life or plans but she used to plan and want to be



laid by her husband and son Uncle Henry Thomson and George when she was laid to her last rest. As it seems to be the last we can do for her I would like to have it done that way. If we might all do a little it seems as if it might be done. I would like to know what you think of it and right away if you can. I know it will make no difference to our God where we sleep on his resurrection day if our name is in His book of life but if she wanted it that way I would too. I think most of us would. I would try to put in at least 5 dollars with all best wishes I am your cousin Irena Montross with love to all hope you are as well and can write me soon what to do.

p.s. I don't know a thing of the cost of anything like the shipping.

(Matilda (Franklin) Buff (pg 24E) died at or of childbirth. Her sister Sarah E Thomson took the baby and nursed it with her own son born the same year, but wasn't successful..the baby died an infant.

David Franklin and Elizabeth (Ayres) Franklin

Submitted by Vivian Zollinger, RR 2, Box 49, Gosport, IN 47433. She descends from two separate Franklin families who settled in Owen County, IN before 1830. Her library recently received a gift of *John Franklin An American Hero and His Progeny* donated by the author Dorsey Wayne Franklin. The Library also contains *Descendants of Jonathan Franklin of Burke County, NC and Owen County, IN* 1977 by Elizabeth P Robinson. She has largly used these sources for info. It is her understanding that some descendants from the Fleming Franklin line are in TX.

Info submitted by Nona Bassett, PO Box 1445, Merced, CA 95351-1445 has been incorporated. Any discrepancies should be discussed between those working on these lines. We would like to be informed, however, so that correct information can be passed on to our members).

David Franklin (b England) married 18 Jan 1713 to Elizabeth Ayres (b 1605 Dorchester, Suffolk County, MA) consent of Moses Ayres & Elizabeth (Tolman) Ayres. Their children:

- 1. Elizabeth Franklin (b 15 Jun 1714 Boston, MA)
- 2. Anna Franklin (b 18 Sep 1815 Boston, MA)
- 3. David Franklin (b 24 May 1719 Boston, MA)
- 4. Jonathan Franklin (b 21 Jan 1720/21 Boston, MA d young)
- 5. John Franklin (b 6 May 1725 Boston, MA d young)
- 6. William Franklin (b 7 Feb 1726/27 Boston, MA).
- 7. John Franklin (b 2 Jun 1729 Boston, MA d ca 1813-1818 Burke County, NC Will dated 4 Jun 1813 Prob. Jan 1819) married before 1760 to Phebe Parker (b ca 1740-45 d before 1821 Burke County, NC buried Connelly Springs near Morganton, Burke County, NC) daughter of Nathaniel Parker? John was in King George's War, French & Indian Wars & Revolutionary War.

Their child:

- (1) John Franklin, Jr (b 1760 Stump Ft., VA d 30 Sep 1837 Burke County, NC buried Connelly Springs, Morganton, Burke County, NC) married 20 Aug 1797 #1 Polly Erwin; #2 ca 12 Jul 1817 to Nancy Wallace? John had 13 children with both wives and fought in the Revolutionary War.
- (2) David Franklin (b ca 1765 or 1762 Probably in VA d DeKalb County, GA).
- (3) Moses Franklin (b ca 1765 probably Rowan County, NC d 1829 or 1830 Franklin County, TN) married Burke County, NC to Elizabeth
- (4) Jonathan Franklin (b ca 1774 prob. Burke County, NC d 1870 Owen County, IN) married #1 ca 1792 to Rachel ____ (b 1774-79 NC d ca 1803 NC); #2 ca 1805 to Jennie Hood (b ca 1774 or 84 d 1826); #3 (?) 6 Mar 1831 Owen County, IN to Mary Johnson.

Jonathon & Rachel's children are:

A. John Franklin (Col) (b 9 Jul 1793 Burke County, NC - d 16 May 1857 buried near Lexington, McLean County, IL) married 1814 near Raleigh, NC to Mary D Puett. Came into IN 1816 owned 500 acres South of Spencer in Clay Twp., owned a ferry. (Nona's info indicates that Mary D Pruett the daughter of John & Mary Puett was born 21 Aug 1795 NC - d 26 Jan 1894 near Lexington, IL buried Scroggin Cemetery, Lexington, IL. John & Mary Franklin's children are:)

- (A) Mahala Franklin (b 23 Apr 1813 NC d 13 Mar 1854) married 1838 Sion Bray.
- (B) Emily Franklin (b 20 Oct 1817 d 25 Nov 1849) married #1 John Everman; #2 David Mull.
- William Millikin Franklin (b 13 Feb 1820 d 29 Apr 1907 Spencer, IN) married 6 May 1844 to Mary Dorothy Ritter (b 17 Jan 1827 Jessamine County, KY d 20 Jun 1901 Spencer IN. Their children:
 - a. Alice Franklin (b 1845 d 1846)
 - b. Mary M Franklin (b 1848 d 1849)
 - c. Virginia Franklin (b 27 Sep 1851 d 13 Mar 1919) married 15 Sep 1872 to Samuel Owen Pickens.
 - d. Eudora Franklin (b 26 Aug 1854) married 8 Nov 1874 to Nathaniel David Cox.
 - e. Nannie Belle Franklin (b 1857 d 1859)
 - f. Benjamin Franklin (b 1 Apr 1860) married 15 Apr 1885 to Flora Bellis.
 - g. Rose Franklin (b 1863 d 1880) never married.
 - h. Ida Franklin (b 15 Aug 1866) married 21 May 1896 to Charles Wood.
 - i. William Franklin (b 15 Nov 1868 d 29 Jan 1913) married 19 Feb 1901 to Eloisia Ritchie.
- (D) Nancy Franklin (b 14 Mar 1822 Spencer, IN d 16 Jul 1909) married 15 Aug 1839 to George McNaught.
- (E) Harriet Franklin (b 9 Jul 1824 Spencer, IN d 31 Mar 1864) married 1842 Charles William Long.
- (F) John Franklin (b 15 Oct 1826 Spencer, IN d 21 Sep 1908) married 20 Oct 1846 Amanda Melvina Fitz Allen Hyneman.
- (G) Elizabeth Franklin (b 15 Feb 1829 Spencer, IN d 5 Dec 1922) married 15 Nov 1847 Dr Seldon Marcellus Payne.
- (H) Noah Franklin (b 29 Jun 1831 Spencer, IN d 13 Feb 1932) married 29 Jun 1854 to Sarah Catherine Spawr.
- (I) James Nelson Franklin (b 17 Mar 1834 Spencer, IN- d 29 Jul 1918) married 24 Dec 1862 Sarah Prevost Chace.
- (J) Wesley Puett Franklin (b 15 Mar 1837 Georgetown, IN d 3 Aug 1920) married 23 Mar 1858 Hannah Puett (a second cousin).
- (K) Joseph Fletcher Franklin (b 8 Feb 1840 d 13 Jul 1841).
- B. Samuel Franklin (b Oct 1795 d 1876-79 furied Franklin Cemetery, Owen County, IN.) married 1814 Burke County, NC to Lydia Davis. Came into IN 1821 was a carpenter. (Nona Bassett's info indicates that Lydia's maiden name was Baker and she & Samuel had a child Lucy who married John H Ooley. She included a copy of a letter written in 1959 from H.J. Baker of Crawfordsville, IN seeking info on Samuel Franklin & date of marriage to Lydia Baker & marriage of Lucy Franklin who married John H Ooley. He states that Samuel was the son of Jonathan Franklin b 1774 and the grandson

- of John Franklin b 1710 who came from England).
- C. Mary Franklin (b Burke Co. NC).
- D. Thomas C Franklin (b 5 Dec 1801 Burke County, NC d 1889 Owen County, IN) married #1 1816 to Dorothy "Dolly" Davis; #2 1852 to Ersley Cl?; #3 ca 1875 to Elizabeth Easton. Came into IN by 1822.

(Nona Bassett's info indicates a child born to this union:)

a. John Franklin married 28 Oct 1844 to #1 Jane Elliott (d 28 Sep 1853; #2 Susan J Moore.

John & Jane's children:

- aa. John Thomas Franklin
- bb. Joseph Samuel Franklin (b 4 Aug 1894) married Mattie Smith. They had a grandson - William Wirt Franklin, Jr of Fresno, CA.
- cc. James D Franklin

John & Susan's children:

- dd. Roberts Burns Franklin
- ee. Highland Mary Franklin
- ff. Dorothy Franklin
- gg. George (Mack) Franklin
- hh. Della Franklin
- E. William Franklin (b ca 1800 Burke County, NC d ca 8 Jun 1870 buried Hartville, Wright County, MO) married Margaret "Petta" Williams. Possibly married #2 after 1851 to Elizabeth Chambers.
- F. David Franklin (b Burke County, NC died before Sep 1851) married 18 Jul 1822 to Sarah Stephens.
- G. Henry Franklin (b ca 1803 Burke County, NC) married 19 Feb 1825 Owen County, IN to Katharine Stansbury. Came into IN ca 182?. (according to Nona Bassett this Henry married Dorothy Davis).

Jonathon Franklin & Jennie (Hood) Franklin's children:

- A. Jonathon Franklin (b 1806 NC) married 13 May 1828 Owen County, IN to Polly Elmira Holt.
- B. Moses Franklin (b 10 Feb 1810 TN or Burke County, NC d 8 apr 1894 buried Hedings Chapel Cem., Owen County, IN) married 5 Mar 1831 Owen County, IN to Mary Johnson. Came into IN ca 1828.
- C. James Franklin (b ca 1814 TN died before 1884) married 30 Oct 1834 Owen County, TN to Susan "Sally" Vest.
- D. Abner Franklin (b 19 May 1812 Burke County, NC d 9 Aug 1889 buried Spencer, Owen County, IN) married 4 May 1833 Owen County, IN to Malinda Evans. Abner's son Joseph was killed in the Civil War.
- E. Joseph Franklin (b ca 1813) Died in Civil War??

- F. Jane Franklin (b ca 1818 TN d 11 Nov 1852 IN buried Chambersville Cem., Owen County, IN) married6 Dec 1832 Owen County, IN to James Evans (b ca 1813 Pulaski County, KY) son of Alexander Evans & Rachel (Ashley) Evans. James married #2 Winifred Hawkins.

 Their child:
 - (A) Polly Ann Evans (b 1842 d 1913 Owen County, IN) married 12 Mar 1857 to Joseph Lee Harkins (b 20 Apr 1840 Shelby County, IN d 3 Jul 1908 Owen County, IN) son of John Harkins & Mary (Lee) Harkins.

Their child:

- a. Vivian O Harkins (b 4 Apr 1894 d 16 Nov 1987 Owen County, IN) married 27 Jan 1911 to Charles Wampler (b 27 Dec 1890 d 8 Jan 1969 Owen County, IN).(another Franklin Line through Charles Wampler follows)
- G. Jacob Franklin (b ca 1816-20
- H. Joshua Franklin (b 17 Dec 1822 TN d 18 Oct 1903 buried Clay Twp, Owen County, IN) married 16 Jan 1848 Owen County, IN to Eliza Franklin (Elliot).
- I. Richard Franklin (may be same as G)
- J. Pleasant Franklin (b ca 1830 d 16 Mar 1863 La Grange, TN) married 9 Jan 1853 Owen County, IN to Nancy Vaughn. Pleasant was in Co H 97th Inf and was killed in the Civil War.
- (5) Samuel Franklin (b ca 1780 Burke County, NC d 12 Jul 1857 or 37 buried Pisgah Cem, Linville Falls, NC) married 6 Aug 1800 Macklenburg County, NC to Dorcus Burns? or Parker?. Dorcus was known as "Stooping Granny" in later life.
- (6) Jemima Franklin (B Oct 1767 Burke County, NC d 7 Jun 1854 buried Franklin County, TN) married #1 Daniel McCoy; #2 Wm Griffin; #3 Thomas Wakefield (his 4th marriage).
- (7) Phebe Franklin married Thomas Brown (?). Was in New Albany, Floyd County, IN after 1821.
- (8) Anna Franklin
- (9) Lydia Franklin
- (10) Mary Franklin
- (11) Rachel Franklin (b Feb 1790 Burke County, NC d 12 apr 1851 Franklin County, TN) married ca 1805 to George Tipps. They had 9 children.
- (12) ? Franklin
- 8. Jonathan Franklin (b 24 Oct 1734)

John Franklin and Nancy T (or P) Franklin

(submitted by Vivian Zollinger, RR 2, Box 49, Gosport, IN 47433)

John Franklin (b 1787 Probably Wayne County, KY or VA - d 24 Dec 1859 in Wayne County, KY - cause of death neuralgia) son of John Franklin was a farmer - married #2 Nancy T or P (b ca 1807 KY). The first 5 children listed were probably by another wife.

- 1. Fleming Franklin (b ca 1804 Wayne County, KY) married Elizabeth Jones. Their child:
 - (1) Isaac "Ike" G Franklin (b ca 1823 KY) married 8 May 1845 Owen County, IN to Malinda Caroline Coffey (b 6 Mar 1825 IN) daughter of Elijah Coffey & Mary Constance "Polly" (Dryer) Coffey. Isaac was in the Civil War. He resided in Putnam County, MO 1856 or so until ca 1864 or later. Malinda married #2 18 Oct 1873 Owen County, IN to Joshua Webb. Malinda remarried a man by the name of Webb, who was a doctor. It seems her first husband, Franklin, deserted his family when the children were small and they never did hear from him again.

Isaac & Malinda's children are:

- A. Mary E Franklin (b ca 1846 Owen County, IN) married 20 Nov 1864 Putnam County, MO to George William Lewis. He & Mary were preachers & stock keepers in KS.
- B. Nancy Jane Franklin (b 27 Mar 1848 Owen County, IN d 21 Nov 1933 buried Chambersville Cem., Owen County, IN) married 27 May 1879 or 26 May 1878 Monroe County, IN to Joseph Riley Wampler. Joseph Riley Wampler's mother and Nancy Jane's father were brother and sister making them first cousins.
- C. Rosetta C Franklin C (b ca 1851 IN) married 1 Jun 1869 Owen County, IN to Isaac "Will" Claman or Clagman. Clamen was a peddler in Indianapolis "Clayman's Tea & Coffee"
- D. William Franklin (b 29 Jan 1854 Owen County, IN d 4 May 1905 buried Chambersville Cem., Owen County, IN). William was a barber.
- E. Susan Franklin (b ca 1857 Putnam County, MO d prob. Indianapolis, Marion County, IN) married Walter? Toomey.
- (2) Mary Ann "Polly" Franklin (b 18 Oct 1825 in d 12 May 1910 buried Chambersville Cem., Owen County, IN) married Joseph Harvey Wampler.
- (3) Jonathan Austin Franklin (b 26 Feb ? IN d as a young boy).
- (4) Samuel D Franklin (b 11 Feb 1835 IN d 29 Jan 1916 buried Chambersville Cem., Owen County, IN) married #1 Harriet Beswick (d 1870);#2 4 Mar 1872 Ave Elizabeth Allen. Sam was drafted 3 Apr 1865.
- (5) Catherine Rebecca Franklin (b 1 Jan 1838 or 11 Nov 1837 IN d 1894 buried Clay Twp., Owen County, IN) married 19 Feb 1865 to J F Moreland.
- (6) Morgan S Franklin (b 6 Apr 1841 IN d 27 Apr 1865 Mound City, AR. Was a Pvt in the Civil War; killed on ship Sultana at Mound City, AR.
- (7) America Elizabeth Franklin (b 8 May 1847 IN d 16 Jan 1893 buried Chambersville Cem., Owen County, IN) married Henry Stodsdell.
- 2. Shelby Franklin (b KY) married Jane Trent.
- 3. Isaac F Franklin (b KY)
- 4. Julia A Franklin (b ca 1812 KY)

- 5. Elvira Franklin (b ca 1814 KY) married 31 Aug 1845 Wayne County, KY to James Davidson.
- 6. Polly A Franklin (b CA 1832 KY d 1859) married 22 Jul 1853 Wayne County, KY to Nathaniel Stringer.
- 7. Benjamin Franklin (b ca 1833 KY)
- 8. Henry Franklin (b ca 1835 KY)
- 9. Amanda Franklin (b ca 1837) married 3 Nov 1859 to Nathaniel Stringer. (Nathaniel must have married Amanda after Polly died).
- 10. Green Berry Franklin (b ca 1838)
- 11. Artimisa Franklin (b ca 1846)

(2nd edition note: There were two photos in the original edition at this point, but the quality was too poor to be included in this edition/ed)

John Franklin and Frances (Crow?) Franklin

(Submitted by Billye A Tyson, 3717 Palo Duro NE, Albuquerque, NM 87110)

John Franklin (b ca 1826 KY) married Frances Crow? (b 1830 AR). John was on the 1850 Quachita County, AR census and the 1860 Johnson County, TX Census. Their child:

- 1. John Riley Franklin (b 14 May 1851 Quachita County, AR?) married 22 Sep 1870 Milam County, TX to Margaret Isabell Brian (b 7 Jun 1844 NC d 13 May 1918 Hico, Hamilton County, TX.) daughter of John B Brian & Rachel Keller?. Their child:
 - (1) John Henderson Franklin (b 16 Jul 1871 Milam County, TX d 3 Dec 1947 Rockdale, Milam County, TX) married 19 Feb 1893 Milam County, TX to Daisy Clementine Keen (b 24 Aug 1874 Allendale, Wabash County, IL d 2 Jul 1967 Rockdale, Milam County, TX) daughter of Levi Compton Keen & Sarah (Madden) Keen.

Their child:

A. Keen Franklin (b 28 Jan 1899 Milam County, TX - d 7 Sep 1984 Temple, Bell County, TX) married 7 Aug 1920 Milam County, TX to Jewel Shaffer (b 8 Jan 1902 Gardner, Milam County, TX - d 20 Jun 1985 Rockdale, Milam County, TX) consent of Dr Claude Shaffer & Elizabeth Ahronia (Ellis) Shaffer.

Their child:

(A) Billye Ahronia Franklin (b 22 Jun 1922 Milam County, TX) married 15 Apr 1945 Calvert, Robertson County, TX to Robert Kenny Tyson (b 26 Oct 1921 Calvert, Robertson County, TX - d 10 May 1977 Houston, Harris County, TX).

1880 Coryell County, Texas Census - Bible Record

Ed, 2nd edition: I don't know what this is - it doesn't seem to be a census record, nor does it seem to be a bible record...

нн?	Name	Age	Birth state	???	Birth County?
#29 1/2	John R(iley) Franklin	27	AR	m 9/22/1870	Milam County, TX ?
	Margaret E. (Brian-Rush)	35	NC		
	John H(enderson)	8	TX		Milam Co
	Alice	7	TX		Tarrant Co
	Ophelia	5	TX		Coryell Co
	William B(enjamin)	1	TX		Coryell Co

1880 Milam County, Texas Census

Ed, 2nd Edition: If this is indeed 1880, then it is missing quite a few columns

Page	Name	Age	Birth
p50	Nichalas Crow	45	AR
	Elizabeth A (Williamson)	42	ОН
	Dempson ^a	17	TX-Van Zant Co

a. (Dempson claimed to be cousin to John H Franklin)

Johnson County, Texas Marriage Rec Vol I

Husband	Wife	Date
John Franklin	Easter Williams	8/10/1859
Reuben Crow	Mary Jane Blodgett	12/05/1859
Nichalas Crow	Elizabeth A Williamson	08/11/1860

1860 Johnson County, Texas Census

НН	Name	Age	Birth State	Note
#61	John Franklin	34	KY	(related?)
	Easter (Williams)	19	MO	
	James J	11	AR	
	Anderson Franklin	29	KY	
	John R	8	AR	
	Narcissa Frances	2	TX	
	Isham Franklin	22	KY	
	Elizabeth A Williamson	21	OH	
	Nancy C (Busbee)			
	Vice E	2	МО	bro/son? of Ephraim Franklin 1860 Collin County, TX; all in Saline County, AR 1850.

1850 Quachita County, Arkansas Census

Page	Name	Age	Birth state	
p58	John Franklin	24	KY	(related?)
	Frances (Crow?	20	AR	
	James	1	AR	
p43	Isaac Franklin	25	AR	
	Elizabeth (Nelson)	20	GA	
p59	Levi Crow	24	AR	
	Elizabeth	58	SC	
	Kizziau	45	VA	
	Reubin	20	AR	
p58	James Crow	24	AR	
	Thomas	18	AR	
	Mary	19	TN	
	Nicholas	16	AR	
	Levi	2	AR	
	Jepe	14	AR	
	Mary	2/12	AR	

FFRU Vol 2 - Page 57 (2nd Edition)

1852 Calhoun County, Arkansas Deed Bk A p144

Henry C Crow to Levi P Crow attest: John Franklin, Reuben Crow.

Rush / Franklin Family Bible

Henderson C Rush & Margaret J Brian was married June 7th, 1866

John R Franklin & Margaret J Rush was married Sep 22nd A.D. 1870

Henderson Rush d Dec 24, 1869 age 37 yrs 6 mo 5 days

John H Franklin b Jul 16, 1871

Allis Franklin was born Nov 3, 1872

Ophelia Franklin was born Aug 9, 1875

W B Franklin was born Jun 7, 1878

Mary Susan Franklin was born Aug 4, 1880

Mary Susie Franklin b Aug 4, 1880

Jasper Collin Franklin was born Jul 28, 1882

Dora E Franklin was born Jjan 16, 1886

Ernest E Franklin was born Jun 9, 1890

David H Franklin was born Jun 27, 1888 and departed this life Jul 15, 1888

Henderson C Rush was born 1832 on Jun 19th.

Margaret J Rush was born Jun 7, 1844

John R Franklin was born May 14, 1851

James (J or I) Franklin b Mar 19, 1848

Lewis Franklin and Milly Stone

(submitted by Bonnie Sutton Hayes, 8979 Campbell Rd., El Grove, CA 95624)

Lewis Franklin (b ca 1758 Norfolk, VA - d 20 Mar 1842) married 21 Mar 1787 Henry County, VA by Joseph Anthony to Milly Stone (b ca 1767 Henry County, VA - died between 1841-1842) daughter of Eucebious Stone & Susanna Ballard. (Sources *History of Franklin's of Henry County, VA*). Lewis was a Rev. War Soldier who enlisted in Surry County, NC in 1778, having moved from Orange County, VA - served 10 months. He then moved back to Orange County, VA in the Fall of 1778 and served as a Guard in Charlottesville, Albemarle County, VA. In the Winter of 1779 he removed to Henry County, VA where he also served with General Green and was at the surrender of Cornwallis. He drove a wagon with provisions & received a pension at 74 yrs old (13 Nov 1832) Children are:

1. Stephen Franklin (b ca 1786 Henry County, VA - d 1 May 1880 Metcalfe County, KY) married 11 Jun 1810 Henry County, VA to Nancy Clark (b 1772 Henry County, VA - d 20

Nov 1857 Barren County, KY - now Metcalfe) daughter of Henry & Nancy F Clark. Stephen was in the War of 1812 - Battle of New Orleans. Their child:

- (1) Elizabeth Ann Franklin (b 11 Apr 1811 Henry County, VA d 4 Sep 1895 Pike County, IL buried Mason Cemetery, Pike County, IL) married #1 13 Dec 1831 to James Harvey Sutton. James was killed by Indians. Elizabeth moved back to KY then went to IL. She married #2 Joseph S Davis. Elizabeth & James Harvey Sutton's child:
 - A. Lewis G Sutton (b Jul 1850 Boone County, MO d 25 Mar 1927 Bellview, Calhoun County, IL) married 4 Jun 1871 Calhoun County, IL to Rachael Rebecca Ann Zumwalt (b 10 Sep 1855 Bellview, Calhoun County, IN d 10 Jul 1929 Kampsville, Calhoun County, IL. Their child:
 - (A) Thomas Allen Sutton (b 9 Sep 1892 Bellview, Calhoun County, IL, d 21 Aug 1972 Carthage, Hancock County, IL buried Oakwood Cemetery) married 19 Mar 1913 to Carrie Cathryn Vetter (b 22 Mar 1895 Carlin Prec., Calhoun County, IL d 26 Sep 1978 Carthage, Hancock County, IL).

 Their child:
 - a. Wilbert Allen Sutton (b 27 Mar 1921 Baytown, Calhoun County, IL) married 31 Oct 1942 to Berniece Evelyn Worthington (b 13 Sep 1922 Bushnell McDon., IL). Their child:
 - (a) Bonnie Louise Sutton (b 25 Nov 1950 Macomb, McDon., IL)
- 2. Eveebius (Seb) Franklin (b ca 17-- Henry County, VA) married 2 Sep 1821 to Felecik Franklin.
- 3. Milly P Franklin (b Henry County, VA d 1885) married Barton Kyrtle 1857.
- 4. Nancy Franklin (b ca 1815 Henry County, VA) married Danish Reely 1832.
- 5. Jeremiah M Franklin (b 21 Mar 1801 Henry County, VA d Feb 1890) married 1825 to Lucy Murphy Rowland.
- 6. Susanah Franklin (b ca 1792 Henry County, VA) married 8 Dec 1810 to Benjamin Glass.
- 7. Mary "Polly" Franklin (b ca 1800 Henry County, VA d 1851).
- 8. George Walker Franklin (b ca 1803 Henry County, VA) married 24 Nov 1835 to Jane Gossett.
- 9. Lewis Franklin (b ca 1807) married 10 Oct 1841 to Elizabeth Renick.
- 10. John Franklin (b Henry County, VA) married 27 Sep 1814 to Nancy Stone.
- 11. William Henry Franklin (b ca 1811 Henry County, VA d Jun 1901) married 1830 Martha C "Patsy" Hundley.

Queries

Members may submit queries for publication as space permits. Non-members may submit one query. All queries must state a Franklin connection. The following abreviations are used: b=born; d=died; bet=between.

Margaret Dawson married John Franklin ca 1760. They lived in Warren County, KY. Her father was Martin Dawson and she is named in his will of 1808. Which Martin Dawson was this.

Henry Franklin, the father of John above died 1792. His wife was Margaret Hensley. I would like more info on them. Who was their parents. (Martha H Thompson, 517 Dumbarton, Shreveport, LA 71106).

Who were parents of Wilson Franklin (first name may have been James Wilson) b ca 1788/1798 SC or Ga - d 1832/40 married to Temperance "Tempy"??? (b ca 1788 GA - d 1866/69 Covington County, AL. All known children b in AL were:1) Unknown daughter b 1820; 2) Mary b 1821?; 3) William H b 1823 - d 25 Nov 1896; 4) James Wilson b Oct 1825; 5) John Anderson b 1827? d 2 Oct 1909; 6) Serena J b 1830? d 19??; 7) Green T b 1832? d 19??.

Wilson only appears on 1830 census after that it is Tempy as head of HH. Looking at census neighbors 1850 back, it appears Wilson may have married a widow Tempe Straught (on 1820 census with 3 young daughters).

Any info will be greatly appreciated. Will exchange all I have. (Ira Franklin, 1316 Colonial Way, Alabaster, AL 35007).

Seeking info on John Thomas Franklin (b between 1823-1826 probably St Tammany Parish or St Helena Parish, LA). John Thomas was son of Ralph & Tabitha (Galloway) Franklin. He married Apr 1847 to Sarah Ann Williams in Catahoula Parish, LA. They moved to the East Texas area abt 1852-1853. They were in the HH of Josiah Phelps on 1860 Hardin County, TX census, Big Sandy Area. Their children: 1) David - listed on 1850 Catahoula Parish, LA census. No mention of this name later; 2) William Manuel, my great grandfather (b 21 Mar 1848 Catahoula Parish, LA) married Frances Jane McMahon Aug 1850, Grimes County, TX; 3) Mary Elizabeth (b ca 1850 LA); 4) Thomas Henry (b ca 1854 Catahoula Parish, LA) married Nancy McClelland; 5) John M (b ca 1857 TX); 6) Harriett Sarah Jane (b ca 1858 TX) married Wm Calloway Jackson; 7) Allen Howell (b 1860 Hardin County, TX) (?).

John Thomas Franklin may have served in the Confederate Army. No info on him or Sarah Ann after 1860.

Will be happy to exchange info. This is another line from Thomas and Jememia (Morris) Franklin. (Gwen Franklin McLelland, 617 Richfield Drive, San Antonio, TX 78239 (512) 655-5067).

Would like to correspond with anyone researching the Franklin, Benton, Snider and/or Grimes lines. Would like to know the father of Thomas H Benton (b 1862 TX) married Josephine Grimes (b 6 Jan 1870 TX - d 8 Jul 1958 Manning, Angelina County, TX). It is our belief that his father is L C Benton (b 1826 TN) who may have been the son of Jesse Benton from Trinity County, TX. Thomas & Josephine were married 8 Mar 1888 in Angelina County, TX and were the parents of Lula Benton (b 24 May 1890 Angelina County, TX - d 14 Jun 1934 Nacogdoches, Nacogdoches County, TX) who married 26 Sep 1911 Angelina County, TX to Charlie William Franklin (b 21 Jun 1898 TX - d 14 Feb 1988 Zavalla, Angelina County, TX).

Pheba Snider (b 1864 TX - d 23 Dec 1935) married 30 Oct 1891 Angelina County, TX to William Plumer Franklin, Jr (b 1853/1856 Caldwell Parish, LA - d 22 Jun 1908 Terrell, Kaufman County, TX). Who were her parents???

Who was the father of Daniel Grimes (b 1841 TX/AL) who married Sarah Ann McVey (b 1849 FL)??? Daniel & Sarah were the parents of Josephine Grimes.

Any help would be greatly appreciated. (Mrs. Thomas Franklin (Ethel), Rt 2, Box 143, Kemp, TX 75143).

I need info about Edward Franklin (b ca 1770 in Maryland). He married Miriam Newton in 1809 Duplin County, NC. He was in Screven County, GA in 1820. In 1850 he was in Lowndes County, GA living with the Timothy Bryant family. Timothy had married Sarah Franklin in 1830 in Bulloch County, GA. Who were Edward's parents? Where where his children's names and birthdates? (Joyce S Gatlin, PO Box 346, Steinhatchee, FL 32359).

Seeking info on Jackson (John) Franklin who married Pamelia Owen ca 1840 in VA, possibly in the Lynchburg area. The following comes from the 1850 and 1860 census: 1850 - family in Lebanon, Wilson County, TN; 1860 - family in St Louis, MO. Children of Jackson and Pamelia: Benjamin, Alexander, Martha, Henry, Mary, Robert Fulton, Sarah and Charles.

I need marriage record and parents of Jackson and Pamelia. I would enjoy corresponding with members of this Franklin line. I am happy to share info and pay for copies and postage. (Mrs Harold E Miller, 1684 Firth Road, Inverness, IL 60067).

The following is a photograph from the Spring 1907: <u>Back Row</u>: Esther (b 1887) and Susan (b 1855-1914 <u>Center Row</u>: Robert Fulton Franklin (b 1855-1914) Lettie Franklin Gossling (b 1883 - 1957) Mary Franklin Harrington (sis/o Robert) <u>Bottom Row</u>: Ida (1896 - 1972 Gene (1899 - 1977 Ernest Gosling holding Norman Gossling (b Oct 1906)



Lilian (Harold) Miller shares the following brief history about the above photo:

The older people in the picture are Robert Fulton Franklin and his sister Mary (Franklin) Harrington, children of Jackson Franklin & Pamelia Owen. Jackson & Pamelia married in VA ca 1840 and four of their nine children were born there.

The family moved to Lebonon, Wilson County, TN abt 1847. Mary was born there ca 1848 and Robert Fulton on 13 May 1855.

By 1860 Jackson and his family resided in St Louis, MO where two more children were born (a son John W was born TN)

Robert Fulton Franklin married Sarah Elizabeth O'Haver in the 3rd Baptist Church, St Louis, MO 17 Jul 1880. Nine children were born to this union. Mary Ellen b 1892 - d 1893; Octavia d 1902 at the age of 17. Two of the nine children were sons - Fredrick married and had one daughter. Adolph Jackson Franklin had one son, Robert who has two sons and two grandsons. They will be the only ones to carry on this line of the Franklin name.

Sarah Elizabeth (O'Haver) Franklin died in 1903. Her death certificate says "Exsanguniation Abortion". My best guess - she bled to death having a miscarrage. She was 43 years old and left 7 living children age 22 to age 3. The younger children were raised by Letitia, the eldest daughter. The five sisters in the picture married and raised their families in St Louis area. They remained close until parted by death. Aunt Essie (back row-left) identified the people for me in 1984 when she was 97 years old. She will be 105 this summer. Aunt Essie said the picture was taken in 1906 or 1907 at their home on Greenwood Boulevard in Maplewood, MO, a St Louis Suburb.

Corrections/Suggestions/Soundoff/Announcements

<u>Family Reunion</u>: Descendents of John W Franklin (b 1860 Trinity County, TX - d 1935 Sabine County, TX) & Melissa Jane Renfro (b 1858 Rankin County, MS - d 1917 Sabine County, TX): June 20, 1992 Ellen Trout Park, Lakefront Pavilion, Lufkin, TX. Contact your Editor for directions

Louisiana Genealogical & Historical Society announces their Annual Meeting, Saturday, April 11, 1992 8:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m. at the Ramada Inn, 1480 Nicholson Dr., Baton Rouge, LA 70802; telephone (504) 387-1111. Registration 8:00 a.m. Registration fee (members) \$22; (non-members) \$25 add \$5 if mailed after March 15, 1992. Speaker: James L Hansen, State Historical Society of Wisconsin, Reference Librarian and Genealogical Specialist. Topics (1) Draper Manuscripts; (2) Naturalization Records and Passenger Lists; (3) Tracing your Ancestores in Newspapers; (4) and What You do When You Hit a Brick Wall. James Perrin, Louisiana Genealogical & Historical Society will speak on Confederate Research.

<u>"le Baton Rouge"</u>, Baton Rouge Genealogical & Historical Society, PO Box 80565, Baton Rouge, LA 70898-0565 announces the following upcoming events:

<u>April 29-May 2 - 1992</u> - National Genealogical Society Conference in the States, Jacksonville, Fla. Hosted by the Jacksonville Genealogical Society.

<u>June 2-5, 1992</u> - National Genealogical & Society Conference in the States, Buffalo, NY - Hosted by the Western New York Genealogical Society. Contact the Western New York Genealogical Society for location.

<u>June 1-4, 1994</u> - National Genealogical Society Conference in the States, Houston, TX - Hosted by the Clayton Library Friends. Contact Clayton for location.

<u>The Family Tree</u> announces a one day class, Friday or Saturday, June 26/27, 1992 entitled Tracking your Steps through North Carolina; donation \$12.50. Miss Merle Baker, Instructor. Held at The Ellen Payne Odom Genealogy Library Auditorium, Moultrie, GA 31776.

Texas 1910 Census

Here it is April and I'm not finished with the Franklins in Texas in 1910 yet and the 1920 census is almost in the libraries. I really need to have some input from the readers about these after 1900 census. Elaine has ordered the 1920 soundex for Franklins already. On the 1910 I take the names from the soundex, then I go directly to the census to get full infor. Sometimes the names are not to be found, are too faded to read or just not readable. If you don't find your name here, use other records, such as tax, land or many others to locate your person. Follow all your clues. I had a cousin that thought her ancestor was married in Greenville, TX, when it was Greenville AL.

These are listed by ED number, then dwelling, unless otherwise specified, place of birth of person, father, mother in that order for head of house. No place of birth listed for child indicates that it is same as child above. Only head of house and other than Franklin names indexed.

(Cherokee created 1846 from Nacogdoches County, TX)

<u>CHEROKEE</u> 17/SHEET 7B: Soundex lists a FRANKLIN but FRAMPTON is all I found: (Coke created 1889 from Tom Green County, TX)

- COKE 21/SHEET 6: DAVIS Jeff head 49 TX MS VA; BE wf 39 TX; FRANKLIN ED G boarder 18 TX:
- Dallas created 1846 from Nacohgdoches & Robertson County, TX)
- DALLAS 24/PG 12A: FRANKLIN Paul roomer 27 NC:
- DALLAS 29/241: FRANKLIN Benj' head 32 KS PA VA; Nora wf KS;
- <u>DALLAS</u> 29/241: FRANKLIN Mattie head wd 41 FL GA FL; Minnie Lou daughter 16 TX; Ruby Lee daughter 15; Howard B son 10:
- DALLAS 56/SHEET 12A:FRESHMAN Sam head 46 Prusia Prusia; ?? wf 22 IL RUSSIA RUSSIA; Ben son 2 TX; FRANKLIN Sarah m/l 49 RUSSIA; Isabell sis/l 14 IL; Ida sis/l 12 IL:
- <u>DALLAS</u> 57/SHEET 10A: ?ARRAL Lunisa head 48 IL TN IL; FRANKLIN Hodges head 64 TN VA TN; McCAIN Gertie g/d 17 TX KY TN;
- <u>DALLAS</u> 105/SHEET 10A: FRANKLIN Charles head 35 LA GER GER; Ada wf 32 NC; BURTAN Mary s/daughter 15 GA; Margaret s/daughter 11 GA; Catherine s/daughter 9; Joseph s/son 6 TX:
- <u>DALLAS</u> 109/SHEET 10B: FRANKLIN C head 49 TN TN TN; AM wf 40 KY; Nora daughter 12 TX; John son 9; James C son 5; ??lpha daughter 1/12:
- (DeWitt created 1846 from Goliad, Gonzales & Victories County, TX)
- <u>DEWITT</u> 47/144: MANNING Warren W head 27 TX TN TN; Elsie wf 28 TX; Richard B son 6/12 TX; FRANKLIN Conzada m/l 70 TN MO TN; MANNING Bula B neice 8 TX; BUCKNER Leonard neph 21 TX:
- (Erath created 1856 from Bosque & Coryell County, TX)
- ERATH 24/64: WHITE Jessie E head 54 AR TN AR; Mary J wf 54 AR; FRANKLIN Willie adopted son 15 TX TX TX; AOMOR Nellie 10 TX TX TX:
- ERATH 28/70: FRANKLIN Wesley C head 43 TN TN TN; Frances J wf 34 AR; Lizzie R daughter 14 OK; Richard O son 12; Ethel B daughter 8 AR; Lillian F daughter 5 OK; Alma F daughter 7/12 TX:
- ERATH 33/215: FRANKLIN Daniel head 52 TN AL AL; Sudie wf 38 AL;
- (Falls created 1850 from Limestone & Milam County, TX)
- FALLS 61/SHEET 10A: FRANKLIN Rodford head 31 TX; Carrie wf 24 TX:
- (Foard created 1891 from Hardman, Knox, King, & Cottle County, TX)
- FOARD 110/SHEET 3A: BROWN Wm head 51 AL SC NC; Sarah E wf AL; FRANKLIN Fannie J s/daughter 25 TX; Mattie P s/daughter 22; Federick s/son 20; Pearl L s/daughter 17; Lola P s/daughter 14; Wilma B s/son 5; Marshall s/son 3:
- (Freestone created 1850 from Limestone County, TX)
- FREESTONE 20/185: FRANKLIN Earnest M 38 TX AL TX; Etta wf 22 TX; Earnest son 3; Hillary E son; Lester H bro 27:
- FREESTONE 22/87: FRANKLIN Dave head 49 TX AL AL; Mandy wf 42 MS; Minnie daughter 16 TX; Annie daughter 13; Aubra son 12; Lloyd son 10; Beulah daughter 7; Guy son 7/12L
- FREESTONE 27/153: FRANKLIN Wm B head 47 KY KY KY (works Railroad); Ruth V wf 31 TX TN TN; Lucile daughter 8; Mary Ruth daughter 4; Analee daughter 3:
- FREESTONE 19/197: FRANKLIN John C head 25 TX AL TX; Fannie A wf 17 TX; Wm L son 4/12; (COMPILER'S NOTE: These are my grandparents and Wm L should read Pelham Gordon, the name of their first son, rather than Wm L which is Fannie's father's name, the father was also the census taker.) EDWARDS Frances A gm 72 AL SC AL; Bawden, Stella s/l 25 TX: CRETSINGER Newet neph 1:

- (Frio created 1858 from Atascosa, Bexar & Uvalfe County, TX)
- FRIO 48/184: FRANKLIN JH head 30 TX TX TX; Jessie wf 22 TX; A??
- son 4 TX; Ora? son 2; Armata daughter 2/12:
- FRIO 47/105: FRANKLIN Alex M hired hand 15 TX TX TX:
- (Galveston created 1838 from Brazoria County, Tx)
- <u>GALVESTON</u> 42/40: FRANKLIN Juluis head 27 TX GER GER; Tresea mother GER GER GER; S Maurine daughter 3 TX:
- GALVESTON 48/163: FRANKLIN Robt M head 70 SC GA GA; Sarah F wf 62 KY KY KY; Mattie A daughter 28 TX; KEMP Carrie daughter 42; KEMP Franklin C g/s 12; KEMP Robt g/s 10; KEMP Sarah B g/d 9; QUEEN Richard lodger 48:
- NOTE: I could not find the key to locating in Galveston.
- (Grayson created 1846 from Fannin County, TX)
- GRAYSON 75/292: FRANKLIN Claud T head 25 TX TX TX; Alice wf 26 AL; Bertha daughter 5 TX; Willie daughter 2; Archie son 8/12:
- GRAYSON 81/SHEET 5A: FRANKLIN Geo W head 49 GA GA; Georgie T wf 46 Ga; Mollie E daughter 21 AL; H??? daughter 16; G Earl son 14; Tempa G daughter 9; DENOSS Fannie boarder 60;
- GRAYSON 91/SHEET 17A: FRANKLIN James E head 32 GA GA GA; Mary E wf 25 TX; Birdie E daughter 8 TX; Katie E daughter 5; Laura L daughter 3; James son 2; Charlie E son 2/12:
- <u>GRAYSON</u> 93/SHEET 4: TURNER JC head 65 TN VA TN; Aurora wf 50 TN; (6 children) FRANKLIN Elizabeth cousin 43 TN TN TN;
- GRAYSON 62/SHEET 20A: FRANKLIN Henry head 45 GA GA; Minnie wf 25 GA; Sammie B son 9 TX; 3 daughter ages 2, 3, 7 b: TX; FRANKLIN Mande niece 14 GA;
- GRAYSON 95/160: HOFFY Geo W head ?? GA; Sallie wf 60 GA; PAYNE Catherine h/keeper 22 TX; FRANKLIN Ben neph 26 GA; FRANKLIN B??? neice 19 GA:
- GRAYSON 95/229: FRANKLIN James M head 24 GA GA GA: Nancy wf 22 MS;
- Bessie Mae daughter 9 TX; Maggie L daughter 7; Bertha E daughter 5:
- GRAYSON 105/SHEET 3A: FRANKLIN John S head 41 TX; Sara I wf 30 TX; Alice M daughter TX; Ruby dau:
- GRAYSON 104/SHEET 6B: FRANKLIN ????? head 34 TX; Dora wf 32 GA; Everett son 13 TX; Ira B daughter 12; Peachie daughter 10; Claude son 8; Ore daughter 6; Guy son 4; Abner son 1 1/2:
- (Hale created 1876 from Bexar & Young County, TX)
- <u>HALE</u> 110/29: There were two FRANKLIN'S listed on soundex for this county but I could not find either one.
- (Hill created 1853 from Navarro County, TX)
- HILL 172/253: FRANKLIN Thomas C 60 LA LA LA; Mary A wf 53 LA; 3 son ages 17 24 26 b: TX:
- HILL 172/SHEET 5B: FRANKLIN Charles head 26 LA LA LA; Ida wf 21 TX; 3 daughter ages 5/12 2 4:
- HILL 172/SHEET 5A: FRANKLIN Wm head 49 LA LA LA; Lenora wf 36 TX; Jessie son 18 TX; Estel son 16; Lola daughter 9; Etta daughter 8; Ara daughter 6; Ada daughter 4; Douglas son 2; Cecil son 8/12:
- HILL 164/SHEET 10B: FRANKLIN Charles A head 25 TX LA LA; Ruby wf 16 TX;
- HILL 164/SHEET 10A: FRANKLIN Oliver G head 29 TX; ?? wf 23 TX; Ollie son 5 TX; Arthur J son 1:
- (Titus created 1846 from Red River & Bowie County, TX)

- TITUS 133/152: COKER Charlie head 27 TX TN LA; FRANKLIN Warm bro 33 TX LA LA:
- <u>TITUS</u> 133/82: FRANKLIN DW head 59 NC NC NC; Alice wf 46 MS; Norman son 17 MS; Maud daughter 14; Alvis son 12; Valira daughter 9; Dorie daughter 7 TX; Loise son 2:
- TITUS 136/67: FRANKLIN Wm M head 55 MS VA MS; Martha J wf 54 Ga; Dollie daughter 20 TX:
- TITUS 141/14: FRANKLIN John head 23 TX IL AR; Betty wf TX; GESION J boarder 16 AL:
- TITUS 141/150: FRANKLIN James head 66 AL NC IL; Rosene wf 56 LA AL LA:
- TITUS 141/239: FRANKLIN OB head 61 AL VA VA; Drew son 30 AL; Joyce daughter 24; Cade son 20 TX:

(Travis created 1840 from Bastrop County, TX)

TRAVIS 65/142: FRANKLIN Claude head 35 TX NC NC; Clara wf 30 TX GER GER; Maggie daughter 3 TX; Claudine daughter 1:

TRAVIS 65/206: FRANKLIN Edward A head 63 NC NC NC; Annie wf 58 NC; Edward R 40 NC; Ethel wf of ER 39 TX; Ethel daughter 6 TX; Carry daughter 5; Vivian daughter 28 TX:

TRAVIS 58/179: SMITH Sara head 62 TX MS LA; FRANKLIN Marilla cou 69 TX:

(Tyler created 1846 from Liberty County, TX)

TYLER 157/81: FRANKLIN Wade boarder 21 TX MS TX:

(Walker created 1846 from Montgomery County, TX)

WALKER 164/148: HARMON Wade H head 58 SC SC SC; FRANKLIN Julia housepeeper 57 SC SC SC:

WHARTON 170/93: FRANKLIN Christopher C head 52 KY KY KY; Theron son 24 TX KY KY; BOWERMAN Jim hired man 29 TN; Melinda servant 28 TN; Nancy B hired man's daughter 7/12 TX:

WHARTON 172/143: FRANKLIN John boarder 28 KS IN IN:

WHEELER 218/214: FRANKLIN Melvin head 41 IOWA; Cary wf 47 IOWA GER GER; Raymond son 14 Iowa; Clyde H son 12; Dora daughter 9:

(Wichita created 1858 from Youngland District)

WICHITA 224/264: FRANKLIN Marion E head 38 TX LA LA; Lilly wf 32 TX; Ruth daughter 4 TX:

(Wise created 1856 from Cooke County, TX)

WISE 252/81: FRANKLIN Al???? head 26 TN TN KY; Maggie wf 26 TX; JD son 5 OK; Timmie son 3; Travis son 6/12:

WISE 252/102: FRANKLIN Henry J head 40 TN NC TN; Hattie wf 39 TN; Essie daughter 13 TX; John Wesley son 7 TX:

WISE 262/377: FRANKLIN Jesse L head 49 TX TN AR; Nora daughter 18 TX; ??? daughter 14; Ch???? J son 17:

(Wood created 1850 from Van Zandt County, TX)

WOOD 125/283: FRANKLIN Albert head 23 AR AR MS; Belle wf 22 OK SC AL; Ida M daughter 2 OK; Essie daughter 1 OK:

WOOD 126/83: FRANKLIN James head 48 TX AL AR; Etta wf 31 TX; Lura daughter 8 TX; Clyde son 5; Roy son 3; Ben son 3/12; CRAIG Henry servant 16 TX:

<u>Mississippi Memories, Vol I #4</u> covers: Probate Dockets & Will Packets Index, Copiah County; Godbold - Sample Cemetery, Franklin County; 1790-1873 Mississippi Patents; Mississippi Supreme Court Cases; 23rd Mississippi, Plenitude Invincebles Volunteers; I O O F, Capital Lodge, Jackson; Baptist Association, 1927 Lincoln County; Mississippi Marriages Soundex.

Names 1	Index	Lunisa Ashley	64	Robert Black	26
		Rachel	53	Andrew	27
3. G		Ayres	33	Andw	27
No Surname		Elizabeth	50	Blodgett	27
(?)		Moses	50	Mary Jane	56
Elizabeth	50	Wioses	30	Bobbett	30
Patience	40	_		Claborn	26
Rachel	50	\mathbf{B}		Bonney	20
Temperance	60	Babb		Benjamin	39
(Slave)	00	Prillyn Francis Asbury	21	George Shackford	39
Aggy	26, 27, 28	Badillo	21	Borrows	39
Airless	25, 27, 26	G	17	Letitia	37
Derrezer	25	Baindridge	1,	Bounds	37
George	25	Hall, Dr.	28	Thomas	20
Green	26	Balillo	20	Bowen	20
Greenup	26	G	17	B.Z. "Belle"	22
Harriet	25	Ballard	-,	Bowerman	22
Jacob	25	Susanna	58	Jim	66
James	26	Ballenger	50	Melinda	66
Jefferson	25	Joseph, Jr.	22	Nancy B	66
Joney	25	Richard, Capt	24	Boyd	00
Lewis	26, 27, 28	Ballinger		Mildred Jane	35
Margaret	25	Joseph	34	Bradly	33
Mary	26, 28	Richard	35	Nathan C	31
Nelson	26	Ballow		Bradshaw	01
Petlina	25	Tibatha	22	Seth	25
Sam	28	Barnard		Bray	
Samuel	26	Elizabeth	22	Sion	51
Samuel W	25	Barnes		Brents	
Saryan	25	Elizabeth	45	Sam'l N	31
Thomas	26	Eunice	44	Brian	
Tom	28	Thomas	45	John B	55
		Barret		Margaret Isabell	55
A		Squire M.	29	Margaret J	58
		Barrot		Brian-Rush	
Adams		Squire M	28	Margaret E.	56
John	44	Bathurst		Bridges	
Akers		William James	39	Ephraim	28
Thomas	29	Beatty		Thos	30, 32
Thos	29	Sarah E	21	Wm	30
Alden	20	Beckum		Briggs	
Juan	39	Rebecca	40	Eva Lavina	39
Pricilla	39	Bell		Brockman	
Alexander	42	Mattie	8	Elizabeth	23
Olele	43	Bellis		Polly	23
Allen	20	Flora	51	Brown	
Daniel	30	Bembridge	20		23
Elizabeth	54	Doctor	28	Abraham	44
Anderson	26 27 29 20	Benton	<i>c</i> 1	John	26
John William	26, 27, 28, 29	Jesse	61	Joseph	44
Anthony	27, 40	L C	61	Sarah E	64
	58	Lula	61	Thomas	53
Joseph Aomor	30	Thomas H Beswick	61	Wm	64
Nellie	64	Harriet	54	Bryant	C1
Arnold	04	Bewley	34	Timothy	61
Benjamin	22	Jas T	32	Buckner	<i>(1</i>
Arral	22	Bird	34	Leonard	64
1 111 (11		DIIU		Buell	

	45	Collins		Curry	
Buff		Williams	26	Mattie Lou	24
John E	38	Compton			
John E, Jr.	39	Francis M	24	D	
Matilda Franklin	49	Connar			
Buford		John	41	Davidson	~~
Simeon	29	Conner		James	55
Burns		Job	45	Lorenzo Dow	20
Dorcus	53	Nathan	45	Narcissa Jane	21
Burrows	40	Robert	38	Rachel Jane Davis	20
Latitia	40	Sarah	46	_ ** - **	50
Letitia	37, 41	Sarah Ann	38, 45	Dorothy "Dolly"	52 52
Burtan	64	William	45	Dorothy "Dolly" Harriet	8
Catherine	64 64	Cooke J.W.	27	Jeff	64
Joseph Managerat	64 64	Cornwallis	21	Joseph S	59
Margaret	64	General	58	Lydia	51
Mary Busbee	04	Courts	30	William	33
Nancy C	57	John	28	Wm T	33
Bush	31	Cox	20	Dawson	33
Willis A	30	Nathaniel David	51	Margaret	60
Willis A	30	Craig	31	Margaret (Pamelia)	24
~		Henry	66	Margaret Pamelia	22, 35
C		Crane	00	Martin	60
Carpenter		Almira E	38	Deacon	
Jessie Houston	22	Crawford	30	William	37
Carrier		Caroline	2	William, Jr.	44
Jno	30	Martha Crockett Lowe	2, 3	Denoss	
Carson		Crenshaw	, -	Fannie	65
Elbert Hillard	3	Henry A	32	Depp	
Lena	3	Cretsinger		Walter H	31
Chace		Newet	64	Devine	
Sarah Prevost	51	Crews		America	34
Chambers		Mary Ann	23	Andrew Anderson	34
Elizabeth	52	Nancy	35	John	33
Child		Crockett		Devold	
Ann	45	Doctor	28	Isabell	36
Childers		Joseph	28	Devolt	
Robert	39	Crossley		Isabella	37
Sarah	39	John	40	Dillard	
Christian		Crow		James	23
J	15, 16	Elizabeth	57	Susan E	23
James	15	Elizabeth A (Williamson)	56	Dishman	22
Clagman	~ 4	Frances	55	Robt C	32
Isaac	54	Henry C	58	Wm	31, 32
Claman	~ A	Hiram J	8	Dobson	22
Isaac	54	James	57	Elias	33
Clark	15	Jepe	57	Thomas	33
Capt.	45 59	Kizziau	57 57	Doil	26
Henry	58	Levi	57 59	Polly	26
Nancy F	59	Levi P	58 57	Doughty Jeremiah	33
Nancy F Clay	39	Mary Nichalas	57 56	Doyle	33
Ciay	20	Nicholas	56 57	Polly	26
Coffey	20	Nicholas Reuben		William	28
Elijah	54	Reubin	56, 58 57	William T	26, 27
Malinda Caroline	54	Thomas	57	Drake	20, 27
Coker	54	Curd	31	Mary C	33
Charlie	66	Dan	28	Dryer	33
211d1 110	00	Dun	20	2.,01	

Mary Constance Profity 54 Jane/Jenny 3.5 Jane 44, 66 de de de la Daniel 3.4 Annie 6.4, 66 de de la Daniel 6.4, 60 de la Daniel 6.4, 60 de la Daniel 4.4, 60 de la Daniel 4.5, 60 de la Daniel 4.5, 60 de la Daniel 4.6, 60 de la Daniel 4.5, 60 de la Daniel	M G ((D 11))	5 4	Y /Y	25		4.~
Bessis Marie Franklin	Mary Constance "Polly"	54	Jane/Jenny	35	Anne	45
Duson Fisher Anthony 23 William 40 Amanad Virginia 39 Arana 65 E Gescher Fleetcher Arana 26 E Gowers Archie 65 Eads Minerya June 45 Arthur 65 Eaton Samuel 39, 40 Aubra 65 Eaton March Cristia 23 B 7, 14, 17, 42 H. 28 Force B B 7, 14, 17, 42 Henry 28 Mary 41 B F 14, 17, 17, 17 Ebright Forther B B 7, 14, 17, 42 42 14 <t< td=""><td></td><td>2</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>		2				
William 40 Amanda Virginia 39 Ara 6.5 E G Wishington 35 Archie 6.5 Eads Flowers 4 Archie 6.5 Eads Minerva Jane 42 Arthur 6.5 Easton 5 Amuel 39, 40 Autrinisa 6.5 Eaton 4 Samuel 39, 40 Autrinisa 6.6 Eaton 4 Marcha Christia 23 B B 71,41,74 72 H. 28 Force B B 14 15 Henry 28 Mary 41 B F Hardeman 16,17 4 Ebright Fortner B F Hardeman 16,17 4 Elizobeth 41 Eddie Oleva 21 Babe 14 Elmonds Fortner B F Hardeman 16,17 6 Evan 14 Elizobeth 3 Bell 6 6 Evard Fowle B B F Hardeman 11,65,66		2	•	24, 33		
E Fleecher Arnuma 2 E Gowshington 35 Archie 65 Eads Howers 42 Arrhur 65 Samuel 45 Minerva Jane 45 Arrhurisa 55 Easton Samuel 39, 40 Aubru 19 Eaton Marrha Christia 23 B 7, 14, 17, 42 Elizabeth 28 Force B B 1, 41, 17, 42 Henry 28 Mary 41 B F 1, 16, 15 Ebright 41 Eddic Oleva 21 B F 1, 16, 15 Elbright 41 Eddic Oleva 21 Babe 1, 16, 16 15 Elmonds Forther B B 1, 14 16 17 Edmonds Forther B BC 7 Jeremiah 44 Lucy 3 Belic 6 Edwand Foster Ben 1, 15, 56		40		39	•	
E G Washington 35 Archic 65 Eads Minerva 42 Arthur 65 Samuel 45 Minerva Jane 45 Arthur 65 Easton Samuel 39, 40 Aubra 64 Elizabeth 52 Floyd Augusta Fuller 7, 14, 17, 42 H. 28 Force B B 7, 14, 17, 42 Henry 28 Mary 41 B F 14, 15 Ebright Fortner B F Hardeman 16, 17 14 Edido Oleva 21 Babe 14 16 Edward 41 Eldic Oleva 21 Bac 6 6 Edward 41 Elizabeth P 31 Benj 11, 65, 66 6 Edward 64 Damiel 45 Benjim 16 4 Edward 64 Damiel 45 Benjim 39, 40, 41, 43, 51, 55, 61 8 8 8 11, 65, 66 6 <	***************************************	10		37		
Flowers	10			35		
Samuel 45 Minerva Jane 45 Artimisa 55 Easton Samuel 39, 40 Aubra 64 Elizabeth 52 Floyd Augusta Fuller 19 Eaton Martha Christia 23 B 7, 14, 17, 42 H. 28 Force B B 14, 15 Ebright Forner B B 14, 15 Ebright Forner B B H Artdeman 16, 17 Elizabeth 41 Eddie Oleva 21 Babe 14 Edmonds Foster Bc Ben 11, 65, 66 Edward Foster Ben 11, 65, 66 Edwards Fowle Benjarin 39, 40, 41, 43. Edwards Fowle Benjarin 39, 40, 41, 43. Elizabeth P 51 Benjarin 39, 40, 41, 43. Franklin Benjarin 39, 40, 41, 43. Forlis Franklin Benjarinin 40, 44, 45, 51, 55, 61 <td< td=""><td>Ł</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>Armata</td><td></td></td<>	Ł				Armata	
Easton	Eads		Minerva	42	Arthur	
Elizabeth		45	Minerva Jane	45	Artimisa	55
Martha Christia 23 B 7, 14, 17, 42 H. 28 Force B B 14 Henry 28 Mary 41 B F 14, 15 Ebright Fortner B B Hardeman 16, 17 Elizabeth 41 Eddic Oleva 21 Babe 14 Edmonds Fosha BC 7 Jeremiah 44 Lucy 3 Belle 666 Edward Foster Ben 11, 65, 66 Edward Foster Ben 11, 65, 66 Edwards Fowle Ben 11, 65, 66 Edwards Fowle Ben 11, 65, 66 Edwards Fowle Ben 39, 40, 41, 43, Frances A 64 Emma 45 Benjamin 39, 40, 41, 43, Frances A 64 Emma 45 Stella 64 Emma 45 Ellicott Franklin Benjamin Perry 38 Ellicott Benjamin 65 Ellizabeth Ahronia 55 A M 64 Ellison A 7, 17 Ellizabeth Ahronia 55 A M 64 Ellison A 7, 17 Ellizabeth Ahronia 55 A M 64 Ellison A 7, 17 Ellizabeth Ahronia 55 A M 64 Ellison A 7, 17 Ellizabeth Ahronia 55 A M 64 Ellison A 7, 17 Ellizabeth 44 Aaron 23, 26 Ellison A 7, 17 Ellizabeth Abore 7, 52, 65 Erwin Aaron 23, 26 Ellison Ahore 7, 52, 65 Erwin Ahore 7, 52, 65 Erwin Ahore 7, 52, 65 Erwin Alice M 65 Ellisane Sa Albert 66 Evans Alice M 65 Evans Alice M 65 Evans Alice Alice Alice Alice Ellison Alice Alice Alice Alice Everman Alice Alice Alice Alice E				39, 40		
H.		52			•	
Henry		20		23		
Ebright Fortner B F Hardeman 16, 17 Elizabeth 41 Eddie Oleva 21 Babe 14 Edmonds Fosha BC 7 Jeremiah 44 Lucy 3 Belle 66 Edward Foster Ben 11, 65, 66 Edward Foster Ben 11, 65, 66 Edward Fowle Benj F 14 Edwards Fowle Benj F 14 Edwards Bawden 64 Daniel 45 Benjamin 39, 40, 41, 43, 61 Frances A 64 Emma 45 Benjamin 39, 40, 41, 43, 61 Frances A 64 Emma 45 Benjamin 39, 40, 41, 43, 61 Frances A 64 Emma 45 Benjamin W 22 Eliza 53 Franklin Benjamin W 22 Eliza 53 A				4.1		
Elizabeth	•	28		41		
Edmonds		41		21		
Determinh		41		21		
Edward Foster Ben		44		2		
Evan			•	3		
Edwards		14		31		
Bawden 64 Daniel 45 Benjamin 39,40,41,43,43,44,45,51,55,61 44,45,51,55,61 44,45,51,55,61 44,45,51,55,61 38 Elliot Benjamin Perry 38 Benjamin W 22 22 Benjamin W 22 22 Benton Collier 22 Benton Coller				31		
Frances A 64		64		45		39, 40, 41, 43,
Stella Elliott 64 Franklin Benjamin Perry 38 Elliza 53 Franklin Benjamin W 22 Jane 52 Franklin Benton Collier 22 Jane 52 Franklin Bertha 65 Ellis A 7,17 Bertha E 65 Ellison A T 13 Bessie Mare 65 Ellison A T 13 Bessie Marie 2 Joseph 44 Aaron 23, 26 Betsy 23 Emerson Aaron H 26 Beulah 64 Wm H 32 Abigail 36 Billye Ahronia 55 Erwin Abor 7, 52, 65 Birdie E 65 Folly 50 Ada 64, 55 C 64 Eubank Adolph Jackson 62 Cade 66 Pleasant 29 Ailcey (Kelly) 3 Calvin 22 2,27,29,30 Alexander	Frances A	64				
Eliza	Stella	64				
Jane 52	Elliott		Franklin		Benjamin W	22
Ellis A 7, 17 Bertha E 65 Elizabeth Ahronia 55 A M 64 Bessie Mae 65 Ellison A T 13 Bessie Marie 2 Joseph 44 Aaron 23, 26 Betsy 23 Emerson Aaron H 26 Beulah 64 Wm H 32 Abigail 36 Billye Ahronia 55 Erwin Abner 7, 52, 65 Birdie E 65 Polly 50 Ada 64, 65 C 64 Eubank Adolph Jackson 62 Cade 66 Pleasant 29 Ailcey (Kelly) 3 Calvin 36 Evans Al????? 66 Caroline P 29, 30 James 53 Albert 66 Carrie 64 Malinda 52 Alex M 65 Carrie 64 Polly Ann 53 Alice 2,51,56,65,66 Carry 66 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>Benton Collier</td> <td></td>					Benton Collier	
Elizabeth Ahronia 55 A M 64 Bessie Mae 65 Ellison A T 13 Bessie Marie 2 Joseph 44 Aaron 23, 26 Betsy 23 Emerson Aaron H 26 Betulah 64 Wm H 32 Abigail 36 Billye Ahronia 55 Erwin Abner 7, 52, 65 Birdie E 65 Polly 50 Ada 64, 65 C 64 Eubank Adolph Jackson 62 Cade 66 Pleasant 29 Ailcey (Kelly) 3 Calvin 36 Evans Al????? 66 Caroline P 29, 30 Alexander 53 Albert 66 Caroline P 29, 30 James 53 Alex M 65 Carrie 64 Malinda 52 Alexander 61 Carry 66 Everman Alice M 65 Catherine Rebecca		52				
Bellison						
Joseph 44 Aaron H 23 Betsy 23 Emerson Aaron H 26 Beulah 64 Wm H 32 Abigail 36 Billye Ahronia 55 Erwin Abner 7, 52, 65 Birdie E 65 Polly 50 Ada 64, 65 C 64 Eubank Adolph Jackson 62 Cade 66 Pleasant 29 Ailcey (Kelly) 3 Calvin 36 Evans Al????? 66 Caroline P 2, 27, 29, 30 Alexander 53 Albert 66 Caroline P 2, 27, 29, 30 James 53 Alex M 65 Carrice 64 Malinda 52 Alexander 61 Carry 66 Polly Ann 53 Alice 2, 51, 56, 65, 66 Cary 66 Everman Alice M 65 Catherine Rebecca 54 John 51 Allen Howell <t< td=""><td></td><td>55</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>		55				
Emerson Aaron H 26 Beulah 64 Wm H 32 Abigail 36 Billye Ahronia 55 Erwin Abner 7,52,65 Birdie E 65 Polly 50 Ada 64,65 C 64 Eubank Adolph Jackson 62 Cade 66 Pleasant 29 Ailcey (Kelly) 3 Calvin 36 Evans Al????? 66 Caroline 2, 27, 29, 30 Alexander 53 Albert 66 Caroline P 29, 30 James 53 Alex M 65 Carrie 64 Malinda 52 Alexander 61 Carry 66 Polly Ann 53 Alice 2, 51, 56, 65, 66 Carry 66 Everman Alice M 65 Catherine Rebecca 54 John 51 Allen 2 Cathie 18 Evilsizer Allen Howell 60 Cecil <td></td> <td>4.4</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>		4.4				
Wm H 32 Abigail 36 Billye Ahronia 55 Erwin Abner 7,52,65 Birdie E 65 Polly 50 Ada 64,65 C 64 Eubank Adolph Jackson 62 Cade 66 Pleasant 29 Ailcey (Kelly) 3 Calvin 36 Evans Al????? 66 Caroline 2,27,29,30 Alexander 53 Albert 66 Caroline P 29,30 James 53 Alex M 65 Carrie 64 Malinda 52 Alexander 61 Carrie 66 Polly Ann 53 Alice 2,51,56,65,66 Cary 66 Everman Alice M 65 Catherine Rebecca 54 John 51 Allen 2 Cathie 18 Evilsizer Allen Howell 60 Cecil 65 Jacob 39 Allise 58 C	-	44				
Erwin Abner 7, 52, 65 Birdie E 65 Polly 50 Ada 64, 65 C 64 Eubank Adolph Jackson 62 Cade 66 Pleasant 29 Ailcey (Kelly) 3 Calvin 36 Evans Al????? 66 Caroline 2, 27, 29, 30 Alexander 53 Albert 66 Caroline P 29, 30 James 53 Alex M 65 Carrie 64 Malinda 52 Alexander 61 Carrie 66 Polly Ann 53 Alice 2, 51, 56, 65, 66 Carry 66 Everman Alice 2, 51, 56, 65, 66 Carry 66 Everman Alice M 65 Catherine Rebecca 54 John 51 Allen Howell 60 Cecil 65 Jacob 39 Allis 58 Celestine 42 Evrlsiger Alma F 64 <t< td=""><td></td><td>32</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>		32				
Polly 50 Ada 64, 65 C 64 Eubank Adolph Jackson 62 Cade 66 Pleasant 29 Ailcey (Kelly) 3 Calvin 36 Evans Al???? 66 Caroline 2, 27, 29, 30 Alexander 53 Albert 66 Caroline P 29, 30 James 53 Alex M 65 Carrie 64 Malinda 52 Alexander 61 Carry 66 Polly Ann 53 Alice M 65 Catherine Rebecca 54 Polly Ann 53 Alice M 65 Catherine Rebecca 54 Polly Ann 51 Allen 2 Cathie 18 Everman 51 Allen 65 Catherine Rebecca 54 Levilsizer Allen Howell 60 Cecil 65 Jacob 39 Allis 58 Celestine 42 43, 61, 64, 65 J		32				
Eubank Adolph Jackson 62 Cade 66 Pleasant 29 Ailcey (Kelly) 3 Calvin 36 Evans Al????? 66 Caroline 2, 27, 29, 30 Alexander 53 Albert 66 Caroline P 29, 30 James 53 Albert 66 Caroline P 29, 30 James 53 Alex M 65 Carrie 64 Malinda 52 Alexander 61 Carry 66 Polly Ann 53 Alice 2, 51, 56, 65, 66 Cary 66 Everman Alice M 65 Catherine Rebecca 54 John 51 Allen 2 Cathie 18 Evilsizer Allen Howell 60 Cecil 65 Jacob 39 Allis 58 Celestine 42 Evrlsiger Alma F 64 Charles H 18 Alvin 2 Charlie William <t< td=""><td></td><td>50</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>		50				
Pleasant 29 Ailcey (Kelly) 3 Calvin 36 Evans Al????? 66 Caroline 2, 27, 29, 30 Alexander 53 Albert 66 Caroline P 29, 30 James 53 Alex M 65 Carrie 64 Malinda 52 Alexander 61 Carry 66 Polly Ann 53 Alice 2, 51, 56, 65, 66 Carry 66 Everman Alice M 65 Catherine Rebecca 54 John 51 Allen 2 Cathie 18 Evilsizer Allen Howell 60 Cecil 65 Jacob 39 Allis 58 Celestine 42 Evrlsiger Alwa F 64 Charles H 18 Jacob 40 Alvie Earl 3 Charles H 18 Alvin 2 Charlie William 61 Fairchild Amanda 55 Christopher C	•					
Evans Al????? 66 Caroline 2, 27, 29, 30 Alexander 53 Albert 66 Caroline P 29, 30 James 53 Alex M 65 Carrie 64 Malinda 52 Alexander 61 Carry 66 Polly Ann 53 Alice 2,51,56,65,66 Caty 66 Everman Alice M 65 Catherine Rebecca 54 John 51 Allen 2 Cathie 18 Evilsizer Allen Howell 60 Cecil 65 Jacob 39 Allis 58 Celestine 42 Evrlsiger Alma F 64 Charles 42,43,61,64,65 Jacob 40 Alvie Earl 3 Charles 42,43,61,64,65 Jacob 40 Alvis 66 Charlie William 61 Feirchild Amanda 55 Christopher C 66 Feirchild America Elizabeth		29				
Alexander 53 Albert 66 Caroline P 29, 30 James 53 Alex M 65 Carrie 64 Malinda 52 Alexander 61 Carry 66 Polly Ann 53 Alice 2,51,56,65,66 Cary 66 Everman Alice M 65 Catherine Rebecca 54 John 51 Allen Mowell 60 Cecil 65 Jacob 39 Allis 58 Celestine 42 Evrlsiger Alma F 64 Charles H 18 Jacob 40 Alvie Earl 3 Charles H 18 Alvin 2 Charlie B 65 Jacob 40 Alvie Earl 3 Charles H 18 Alvin 2 Charlie William 61 Feirchild Amanda 55 Christopher C 66 Fairchild Analee 64 Clarissa "Clercy" 22	Evans			66		
James 53 Alex M 65 Carrie 64 Malinda 52 Alexander 61 Carry 66 Polly Ann 53 Alice 2, 51, 56, 65, 66 Cary 66 Everman Alice M 65 Catherine Rebecca 54 John 51 Allen 2 Cathie 18 Evilsizer Allen Howell 60 Cecil 65 Jacob 39 Allis 58 Celestine 42 Evrlsiger Alma F 64 Charles H 18 Jacob 40 Alvie Earl 3 Charles H 18 Alvin 2 Charlie E 65 Felanchild Amanda 55 Christopher C 66 Fairchild Ambrose Hundley Sevier 21 Clara 66 Reuben 40 America Elizabeth 54 Clarissa "Clercy" 22 Farnsworth Analee 64 Claud T 65	Alexander	53	Albert	66		
Polly Ann 53 Alice M 65, 66 Cary 66 Everman Alice M 65 Catherine Rebecca 54 John 51 Allen 2 Cathie 18 Evilsizer Allen Howell 60 Cecil 65 Jacob 39 Allis 58 Celestine 42 Evrlsiger Alma F 64 Charles H 42 Jacob 40 Alvie Earl 3 Charles H 18 Alvin 2 Charlie E 65 F Alvis 66 Charlie William 61 Fairchild Ambrose Hundley Sevier 21 Clara 66 Fairchild America Elizabeth 54 Clarissa "Clercy" 22 Farnsworth Analee 64 Claud T 65 Albert W 39 Anderson 57 Claude 65, 66 Feland Andrew 17 Claudine 66 William	James		Alex M		Carrie	
Everman Alice M 65 Catherine Rebecca 54 John 51 Allen 2 Cathie 18 Evilsizer Allen Howell 60 Cecil 65 Jacob 39 Allis 58 Celestine 42 Evrlsiger Alma F 64 Charles 42, 43, 61, 64, 65 Jacob 40 Alvie Earl 3 Charles H 18 Alvin 2 Charlie H 18 Alvin 2 Charlie William 61 Fairchild Amanda 55 Christopher C 66 Fairchild Ambrose Hundley Sevier 21 Clara 66 Reuben 40 America Elizabeth 54 Clarissa "Clercy" 22 Farnsworth Analee 64 Claud T 65 Albert W 39 Anderson 57 Claude 65, 66 Feland Andrew 17 Claudine 66 William					Carry	66
John 51 Allen 2 Cathie 18 Evilsizer Allen Howell 60 Cecil 65 Jacob 39 Allis 58 Celestine 42 Evrlsiger Alma F 64 Charles 42, 43, 61, 64, 65 Jacob 40 Alvie Earl 3 Charles H 18 Alvin 2 Charlie B 65 Alvin 2 Charlie William 61 Fairchild Amanda 55 Christopher C 66 Fairchild Ambrose Hundley Sevier 21 Clara 66 Reuben 40 America Elizabeth 54 Clarissa "Clercy" 22 Farnsworth Analee 64 Claud T 65 Albert W 39 Anderson 57 Claude 65, 66 Feland Andrew 17 Claudine 66 William 27 Andy Tyler 16 Clyde 66		53			•	
Evilsizer Allen Howell 60 Cecil 65 Jacob 39 Allis 58 Celestine 42 Evrlsiger Alma F 64 Charles 42, 43, 61, 64, 65 Jacob 40 Alvie Earl 3 Charles H 18 Alvin 2 Charlie E 65 Alvis 66 Charlie William 61 Fairchild Amanda 55 Christopher C 66 Reuben 40 America Elizabeth 54 Clarissa "Clercy" 22 Farnsworth Analee 64 Claud T 65 Albert W 39 Anderson 57 Claude 65, 66 Feland Andrew 17 Claudine 66 William 27 Andy Tyler 16 Clyde 66						
Jacob 39 Allis 58 Celestine 42 Evrlsiger Alma F 64 Charles 42, 43, 61, 64, 65 Jacob 40 Alvie Earl 3 Charles H 18 Alvin 2 Charlie E 65 Charlie William 61 Charlie William 61 Fairchild Amanda 55 Christopher C 66 Reuben 40 America Elizabeth 54 Clarissa "Clercy" 22 Farnsworth Analee 64 Claud T 65 Albert W 39 Anderson 57 Claude 65, 66 Feland Andrew 17 Claudine 66 William 27 Andy Tyler 16 Clyde 66		51				
Evrlsiger Alma F 64 Charles 42, 43, 61, 64, 65 Jacob 40 Alvie Earl 3 Charles H 18 Alvin 2 Charlie E 65 Farrobild Amanda 55 Christopher C 66 Fairchild Ambrose Hundley Sevier 21 Clara 66 Reuben 40 America Elizabeth 54 Clarissa "Clercy" 22 Farnsworth Analee 64 Claud T 65 Albert W 39 Anderson 57 Claude 65, 66 Feland Andrew 17 Claudine 66 William 27 Andy Tyler 16 Clyde 66		20				
Jacob 40 Alvie Earl Alvin 3 Charles H 18 Charlie E 18 Charlie E 18 Charlie E 18 Charlie E 65 Charlie E 65 Charlie William 61 Charlie William 66 Charlie William 67 Claud 65 Charlie William 67 Claud 67 Claud 65 Charlie William 67 Claud 67 Claud 67 Claud 67 Claud 66 Charlie William 67 Claud 67 Claud 67 Claud 67 Claud 67 Claud 67 Claud 67 Claud <th< td=""><td></td><td>39</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></th<>		39				
F Alvin 2 Charlie E 65 Fairchild Amanda 55 Christopher C 66 Reuben 40 Ambrose Hundley Sevier 21 Clara 66 Reuben 40 America Elizabeth 54 Clarissa "Clercy" 22 Farnsworth Analee 64 Claud T 65 Albert W 39 Anderson 57 Claude 65, 66 Feland Andrew 17 Claudine 66 William 27 Andy Tyler 16 Clyde 66		40				
F Alvis Amanda 66 Charlie William 61 Charlie William Fairchild Reuben Ambrose Hundley Sevier 21 Clara 66 Charlie William Reuben 40 America Elizabeth 54 Clarissa "Clercy" 22 Clara Farnsworth Analee 64 Claud T 65 Claude Albert W 39 Anderson 57 Claude 65, 66 Claude Feland Andrew 17 Claudine 66 Claude William 27 Andy Tyler 16 Clyde 66 Clyde	Jacob	40				
Fairchild Ambrose Hundley Sevier 21 Clara 66 Reuben 40 America Elizabeth 54 Clarissa "Clercy" 22 Farnsworth Analee 64 Claud T 65 Albert W 39 Anderson 57 Claude 65, 66 Feland Andrew 17 Claudine 66 William 27 Andy Tyler 16 Clyde 66						
FairchildAmbrose Hundley Sevier21Clara66Reuben40America Elizabeth54Clarissa "Clercy"22FarnsworthAnalee64Claud T65Albert W39Anderson57Claude65, 66FelandAndrew17Claudine66William27Andy Tyler16Clyde66	\mathbf{F}					
Reuben 40 America Elizabeth 54 Clarissa "Clercy" 22 Farnsworth Analee 64 Claud T 65 Albert W 39 Anderson 57 Claude 65, 66 Feland Andrew 17 Claudine 66 William 27 Andy Tyler 16 Clyde 66	Fairchild					
Farnsworth Analee 64 Claud T 65 Albert W 39 Anderson 57 Claude 65, 66 Feland Andrew 17 Claudine 66 William 27 Andy Tyler 16 Clyde 66		40				
Albert W 39 Anderson 57 Claude 65, 66 Feland Andrew 17 Claudine 66 William 27 Andy Tyler 16 Clyde 66						
Feland Andrew 17 Claudine 66 William 27 Andy Tyler 16 Clyde 66		39				
			Andrew			
Finney Anna 50, 53 Clyde H 66		27	Andy Tyler		Clyde	66
	Finney		Anna	50, 53	Clyde H	66

C 1	<i>c.</i> 1		-1 -4	*****	- 4
Conzada	64	Etta	64, 65, 66	Hillary E	64
Cyrena	43	Eudora	51	Hodges	64
D B	13	Eveebius (Seb)	59	Howard B	64
D Benjamin	11	Everett	65	I M	13
DF	14	Fannie	64	Ida	51, 64
Dan	14	Fannie Ann	12	Ida M	66
Daniel	2, 36, 64	Fannie J	64	Ira B	65 57
Daniel Caleb	21	Fanny M	39	Isaac	57
Daniel E	12	Federick	64	Isaac "Ike" G	54
Daniel Jarvis	20	Felecik	59	Isaac F	54
Danny Roule	3	Fleming	50, 54	Isabel	32
Dave	64	France Jane (McMa		Isabell	64
	6, 50, 52, 60	Frances	57	Isham	57
David H	58	Frances J	64	Isiah	13
Della	52	Frances Rebecca	12	Issac	7
Dempson	56	Francis Marion	12	JA	13, 15
DJ	7	Fred E	18	J B	17, 18
Dollie	66	Freddie Whittle	18	J C	18
Dollie Eva	2	Fredrick	62	J Conrad	18
Dora	65, 66	G Earl	65	J D	15, 40
Dora E	58	GH	17	JJ	13
Dorie	66	G T	13	J L	8, 13
Dorothy	52	G W	17	J M	18
Dosha	2	Geo	32	JО	13
Douglas	65	Geo E	19	JТ	13, 19
DW	66	Geo W	65	J W	13
ES	19	George	14, 17	J W, Jr.	16
E., Col.	19	George (Mack)	52	JA	7
Earnest	64	George W	37	Jackson	62
Earnest M	64	George Walker	59	Jackson (John)	61
Easter	57	George Washington	n 12	Jacob	2, 53
Ed G	64	Georgie T	65	James 2	26, 28, 29, 34, 35,
Edward	22, 61	Gideon	40		52, 57, 58, 65, 66
Edward A	66	Green Berry	55	James A J "Jim"	20
Edward R	66	Green T	60	James A, Dr., Jr.	18
Effie Dora	2	Guy	64, 65	James Allen	12
Effie Imegene	39	ΗŤ	32	James C	64
Electra	40	Hal	19	James D	52
Elisha	40	Hannah	39, 40, 42, 45	James E	65
Elizabeth 21	1, 24, 31, 35,	Hannah A	38, 46	James Henry	23
36, 40, 5	0, 51, 57, 65	Hardin P	19	James Howard	21
Elizabeth (Ayres)	50	Harriet	51	James Isaiah	2, 3
Elizabeth (Betsy)	35	Harriet Alice	22	James J	57
Elizabeth Ann	59	Harriett Sarah Jane	60	James Johnson	12
Ellen	37	Harriot	23	James M	65
Elma Jane	39	Harvey T	32	James Nelson	51
Elsie	64	Hattie	66	James Sanford	12
Elvira	55	Henrietta	23	James Weeden	12
Emily	51		24, 52, 55, 60,	James Wilson	60
Emma Blout	17	- , -,	61, 65	James, Jr.	44
Emma G	18	Henry C	26		31, 32, 37, 42, 53
Emma M	18	Henry F	32	Jarvis	20
Ephraim	57	Henry J	66	Jas	29, 30
Ernest E	58	Henry M	19	Jas C	31
Essie	66	Henry T	32	Jasper	23, 26
Estel	65	Henry Tarleton	23	Jasper Collin	58
Esther	36	Henry, Jr.	22, 23, 35	JB	7
Ethel	66	Henry, Sr.	22, 34	JD	66
Ethel B	64	Highland Mary	52	Jememia (Morri	
			0.40 1.7111		

Jemima	53	Lester H	64	Mary C "Polly"	21
Jennie (Hood)	52	Letitia	44, 62	Mary Caroline	39
Jenny	29		30, 31, 58, 59	Mary E	54, 65
Jeremiah	36, 59	Lewis G	31, 32	Mary Elizabeth	60
Jerimiah	24	Lewis M	8, 18	Mary Ellen	62
Jesse	41	Liddy	2	Mary Ellen Cornel	
Jesse Howard	21	Lillian F	64	Mary J	17
Jesse L	66	Lilly	66	Mary Jane	18, 38, 39, 45
Jesse Lawson	22	Lizzie	12	Mary K	32
Jesse Sanford	12	Lizzie R	64	Mary M	51
Jesse W	21	Lloyd	64	Mary Ruth	64
Jessie	65	Lois	44	Mary Susan	58
JH	7, 65	Loise	66	Mary Susie	58
JL	7	Lola	65	Matilda C	26, 32
Jno	29, 30, 32	Lola P	64	Matilda Emeline	38
Jno G	32	Lorenzo Dow	20	Mattie	64
Jno Thos	32	Lucile	64	Mattie A	65
Jno, Jr.	29	Lucretia	40	Mattie Emma	2
Jno, Sr.	29	Lucy	51	Mattie P	64
	5, 27, 28, 29,	Lucy Jane	23	Maud	66
, ,	30, 35, 36	Lula C	20	Maud Bristow	19
John 19, 22, 26	5, 27, 33, 34,	Lura	66	Melvin	66
	1, 52, 54, 55,	Lutitea	39	Michael	8
56, 57, 58, 5		Lutitia	40	Mildred	32
John (Col)	50	Lydia	44, 53	Milly J	31
John Abraham	12	M	7	Milly P	59
John Anderson	60	M C	12	Minnie	64
John C	12, 64	MES	12	Minnie Lou	64
	2, 22, 56, 58	Maggie	66	MM	7
John Henderson	55, 56	Maggie Jane	18	Mollie	12
John M	60	Maggie L	65	Mollie E	65
John R	57, 58	Mahala	51	Molly	35
John Riley	55, 56	Major James	23	Morgan S	54
John S	65	Mande	65	Moses	50, 52
John Thomas	52, 60	Mandy	64	Myrtle Elizabeth	39
John W	63	Maragaret	32	N H	12
John Wesley	66		30, 31, 33, 37	N J	12
John William	20	Margaret "Peggy"	23	N S	12
John, Jr.	33, 35, 50	Margaret (Peggy)	23, 35		31, 33, 34, 51,
John, Sr.	24	Margaret (Peggy) H		reality 23,	
Jonathan	50, 53		20	Nancy E	59, 65 12
Jonathan Austin	50, 55 54	Margaret B Margaret D	24, 27, 29	Nancy Lane	54
Jonathon	52	Margaret E.	56	Nancy Sanc	32
	7, 41, 44, 52	Marilla J	66	Nannie Belle	51
Joseph Fletcher	7, 41, 44, 52 51	Marion E	66	Narcissa Frances	57
Joseph Samuel	52		64		
-	8, 40, 53	Marshall Martha		Nathan Nathaniel Johnson	36 12
Joshua Josiah 13, 36, 3			23, 41, 61 20	Nettie D	
	8, 43, 45, 46	Martha C			18 51
Joyce Judith	66 24 36	Martha E Martha Elizabeth	12, 32 12	Noah Nora	
Julia	24, 36		66	Norman	64, 66
	66 5.4	Martha J			66
Julia A	54		28, 31, 33, 35	O B	12
Julius	65	Mary 12, 17, 2	23, 40, 52, 53,	OB	66
JW Votice E	7	Mary "D-11- "	60, 61	Octavia	62
Katie E	65 5.5	Mary "Polly"	59 20	Oliver	65
Keen	55	Mary Ann	30	Ollie	65
Laura L	65	Mary Ann "Polly"	54	Ophelia	56, 58
Lavra	20	Mary Ann (Hargrov		Ora	18, 65
Lenora	65	Mary C	12	Ore	65

	20				
Oscar Benjamin	39	Samuel D	54		3, 37, 41, 42,
Owens Patience	13 40	Samuel H Sara I	26 65		0, 51, 52, 54
Paul	64		8, 40, 61, 64	William Augusta William Benjamin	12 56
Peachie	65	Sarah (Sally)	35	William Burrows	40
Peachie B	23	Sarah Ann	20	William Cain	12
Peachy	26, 32	Sarah Ann (Conner)	38	William Green	2, 3
Peachy B	32	Sarah Elizabeth	2, 38, 45	William H	60
Pearl L	64	Sarah F	65	William Hackney	39
Pearly	2	Sarah Hensley	22, 34	William Henry	59
Pelham Gordon	64	Sarah Shields	12	William M	12
Perry	7	Serena J	60	William Manuel	18, 60
Phebe	53	Shelby	54	William Millikin	51
Philadelphia	24, 36	Sol	12	William Plumer, Jr.	61
Phoebe	24, 36	Stepany	19	William Wirt, Jr.	52
Pleasant	53	Stephen	31, 58	Willie	64, 65
Polly	26, 30, 40	Steve	16	Wilma B	64
Polly A	55	Sudie	64	Wilson	36, 37, 60
Poston Bounds	20	Sula Oseola	2	WL	7
R G	12	Susan	43, 54	Wm	32, 65
Rachel	53	Susan Jane	12	Wm B	64
Ralph	3, 60	Susan Petis	23	Wm H	31, 32
Ralph Gibson	2	Susanah	59	Wm L	64
Ralph Morris	2	Susannah	42, 43	Wm M	66
Ralph Morris "Rafe		T B	18	WP	7
Raymond	66	ΤH	14	Franklyn	
Rebecca	19	T J	12	J D Î	8
Reuben	22, 25, 31	Tempa G	65	Freshman	
Reuben T	32	Theron	66	Ben	64
Reubin	23, 30	Thomas	2, 61	Sam	64
Richard	53	Thomas B	3	Fuller	
Richard O	64	Thomas B D	23	Sylvester	37
Robert	62	Thomas Benjamin	2	•	
Robert Burns	52	Thomas C	52, 65	G	
Robert Fulton	61, 62	Thomas Harrison	12	G	
Robert Henry	12	Thomas Henry	60	Galloway	
Robert Morris	12	Thos D	14	Tabitha	3, 60
Robt M	65	Tibatha (Galloway)	60	Gargien	
Rodford	64	Timmie	66	John Anderson	28
Roger T	31	Tom O	18	Garland	
Rose	51	Travis	66	Spotwood	23
Rosene	66	Tresea	65	Garner	
Rosetta C	54	Valira	66	John	26, 28
Roy	66	Vernon	2	Garnett	
Rubert "Rube" Virg		Viola Edith	39	Richard	29
Ruby	65	Virgil G	3	Garngr	
Ruby Lee	64	Virginia	51	John	28
Ruth	66	Vivian	66	Garrett	
Ruth Ann	38, 45	W B	58	Richard	27
Ruth N	18	W C	32	Gatewood	
Ruth V	64	WH	13	James	26
S A	13	W M	15	Gear	
S Maurine	65	W P	14	Mary Ann	23
Sallie	32	WW	12	Gentry	2-
Sally	30, 32	Wade	66	Harold Wayne	35
Sam'l C	32	Warm	66	Gesion	
Samanthy	2	Washington	36, 37	J	66
	36, 37, 39, 40,	Wesley C	64	Gibbons	20
	41, 44, 51, 53	Wesley Puett	51	George	39

Lucinda	39	B.H., Dr.	27	Hensley	
Sarah Lucinda	39	Dr.	28		2, 24, 34, 60
Gibson	2-	Elizabeth	44	Hicklin	4.0
C1	35	Elizabeth Betsy	45	Arthur	43
Glass	70	Jonathan	45	Clara	43
Benjamin	59	Samuel	44, 45	Hannah	43
Goad	10	Hand	4.4	Irene	43
James Magazat Shaaklay	19	Betsy	44 44	Leonard	43
Margaret Shockley Gooch	19	Stephen Harkins	44	Lyman William C	43 45
Mary	36	John	53	William Carrol	38
Goodin	30	Joseph Lee	53	Hickman	36
Warner	28	Vivian O	53	Elizabeth	2, 3
Goodman	20	Harmon	33	Higgenbotham	2, 3
Vardaman	31	Wade H	66	Maryann	23
Gorin	31	Harper	00	Higginbotham	23
John Curran	35	Elizabeth	40	Mary Ann	26
John, Jr.	35	Harrington	10	Maryann	22
Zira "Mildred"	35	Mary Franklin	62	Hill	22
Gosling		Harris	~ -	WJC	15, 16
Ernest	62	Ann	45	Wm JC	15
Gosset		Anne	45	Hobson	
Henry	31	Grace	45	Thomas	28
Gossett		William J	45	Hodgkinson	
Jane	59	Harrison		Bethanath	37, 44
Gossling		Andrew	25	Hoffy	
Lettie Franklin	62	Betty	25	Geo W	65
Norman	62	Frances	25	Sallie	65
Graham		Matilda Caroline	22, 25	Hoisington	
Sarah Jane	21	Peggy	25	Wm	40
Green		Reuban	23	Holt	
General	58	Reuben	25	Polly Elmira	52
Greer		Robert	25	Hood	
Aquilla	24, 27	Ruben	36	Jennie	50
Isaac	30	Samuel F	25	Hubart	
Polly	24, 35	William	25	Elizabeth	36
Solomon	27	Harston		Hughes	•
Gresham	2	Dan S	24	Anvolene V	20
Elizabeth	3	Jay O	24	Humes	20
Griffin	52	John L V	24	Salley	28
Wm Crima a	53	Martha H	24	Hundley	50
Grimes	61	Hart Harriett Henrietta	21	Martha C "Patsy"	59
Daniel Josephine	61 61		21	Hunt Duran Turl	38
Gundehive	01	Harvey Charles	28	Enock	38
G.W.	27	Hastie	20	Jno S	32
G. W.	21	Louise	37	John	45
		Hasty	31	Miller	45
H		Louise	36	Ruth Ann Franklin	46
Hackney		Hatfield	20	Hunter	10
Hannah	37, 45	Caroline	34	Allen	30
Joseph	37	James Columbus	34	Hurd	
Joseph, Jr.	37	Hawkins		Mary	44
Obediah	41	Winifred	53	Hurdt	
Hagroves		Headley		Addie	22
Mary Ann	3	Rachel	36	Hyneman	
Haley		Hendrick		Amanda Melvina Fitz	z Allen 51
Berryman	28	Gustavus	28		
Hall		Jos. W	28		
	F	FRU Vol 2 - Page 73	3 (2nd Edition)	
	-			,	

J		Herman	48	Susanna Zickafoose	39
Jackson		Little	21	WW	42
William Calloway	60	Ambrose Hundley Sevier	21 21	Miller	20
Jameson		Ewen Marion	21	A Archibald	28 28
America	24	James	21		28 29
Jarvis		Logan William	29	Archibell John	
Mary "Polly"	19				38, 46
Pinkney	31	William G	27	Lilian (Harold)	62
Jaye		Long Charles William	<i>5</i> 1	Montross	49
Matilda Louise	21	Charles William	51	Irena	49 48
Johnson		Looney	20	Irene	48
	45	TT	39	Moody	2
Mary	50, 52	Henry	39	Henry Allen	30. 45
Verlie	39	Low	27	Malon O	38, 45
Jones		William	27	Mary	23
Elizabeth	54	Lowe	20	Minnie Caroline	3
Keton	16	Isaac	29	Moore	20
Mary Ann	40	Martha Crockett	2	Isaac	30
Jordan		William	26	Lydia	44
Jackson T	31			Susan J	52
Jordon		\mathbf{M}		Moreland	
	23			JF	54
Judge	23	Madden		Morgan	
Elizabeth	23	Sarah	55	Eliza	42
Elizabeth	23	Mainning	<i>c</i> 1	Hannah	42
T 7		Elsie Franklin	64	Jacob	42
K		Malone	21	James	42
Keel		Sam'l P	31	Jeremiah	42
John	27	Manning	- 4	Morris	
Keen		Bula B	64	Jememia	61
Daisy Clementine	55	Richard B	64	Jemima	3
Levi Compton	55	Warren W	64	Thomas	3
Keller		Max(s)on	20	Morse	
Rachel	55	Nancy Ann	38	Cathrine	2 3
Kemp		Maxwell	2.5	John, Sr.	3
Carrie	65	David	26	Lucy Caroline	3
Franklin C	65	Mayblum	0	Moss	
Robt	65	N	8		23
Sarah B	65	McCain	- 1	John	35
Kidwell	32	Gertie	64	Mull	
B.E.	22	McClelland		David	51
Lavada	22	Nancy	60	Munra	
Kimball		McCoy		Daniel	33
Bela	40	Daniel	53	Murphy	
Kyrtle	.0	McDaniel	2-	Sidney	22
Barton	59	John	35	Murrell	
Burton	37	McFarland		Jas	30
_		Jonathan	33		
L		McMahon		N	
Lee		Frances Jane	60		
Leonides	39	McNaught		Nelson	
Mary	53	George	51	Elizabeth	57
Lewis	55	McVey		Mary Polly	23
Craig Tipton, Dr.	20	Sarah Ann	61	Newton	
George William	54	Meacham		Eben	44
Ida	21	Jane	44	Miriam	61
Susannah	23, 36	Metzker		Nichols	
Link	23, 30	Benjamin	42	Alfred Peter	34
Lilik		M.E.	42	Martha Willis	34

Nicol/Nichol		John	28	Rowland	
John	33	Pickens	20	Lucy Murphy	59
Norcross	33	Samuel Owen	51	Rowntree	37
Levi	44	Powel	51	Jesse C	26
2011		Jno W	27	Rush	
0		Powell		Henderson	58
0		Rachel	24, 36	Henderson C	58
O'Haver		Tomas	24	Margaret J	58
Sarah Elizabeth	62	Prater		Ryan	
Oliver		Gerald Dean	35	Mador	28
	33	Leona "Eunice"	35		
Thomas	28	Presley		C	
William	33	Mary Jane	3	\mathbf{S}	
Ooley		Pruett		Saunders	
John H	51	Mary D	50	Jno, Jr.	29
Ormsby		Puett		Schillinger	
Marcus Browning	23	Hannah	51	Mary	44
Robert Cowan	23	John	50	Scott	
Robert Franklin	23	Mary	50	Lula Margaret	20
Thomas H	23	Mary D	50	Sevier	
Owen		•		John	11
Pamelia	61, 62	0		Sewell	
Susannah	33	Q			37
		Queen		Shaffer	
P		Richard	65	Claude, Dr.	55
_				Jewel	55
Parker		R		Shannon	
	53			Jno	31
Agnes Lucille	34	Ransom	_	Sharp	
Joel Goeble	34	Florence	3	Solomon	27
Nathaniel	50	Ratliff		Shaw	
Phebe	50	Jas B	31	Richard	44
Pate	_	Reed		Shawn	
Lula	3	Jas.	44	Frank	22
William Riley	3	Reely	~ 0	Shockley	
Patton	20	Danish	59	Margaret	19
Thomas	39	Renfro		Simeral	
Payne	- -	Melissa Jane	63	A.E.	46
Catherine	65	Sabine	63	Almira E Crane	38
J.	15	Renick	7 0	C.J.	46
John	14	Elizabeth	59	John	38
Seldon Marcellus, Dr.	51	Right	27	L.	46
Peck	20	Thomas	27	W.L.	46
Joe Padias	20	Ritchie Eloisia	£ 1	Smith	22
Pedigo Jesse T	32	Ritter	51	A .1.1	23
Wm	30	Mary Dorothy	51	Ashbury	44
Penn	30	Robbins	31	Eav Mae	3
Edward	23	Abigail	3	Mattie	52
Perkins	23	Roberts	3	Norvel	46 66
David	30	Drury	32	Sara William	24, 36
Perry	30	Rogers	32	Snider	24, 30
Elizabeth	36	Elizabeth "Lizza" Ann	3	Sinder	61
Pettus	30	Ross	3	Pheba	61 61
Susannah	23	Herbert Duane	2	Snow	01
Susannah (Pettus)	23	Rountree	2	BIIUW	39
Phelps	43	Mary	29	Spawr	39
Josiah	60	Rowe	2)	Catherine	51
Phillips	00	John W "Frank"	21	Spears	31
4 44444400		ANTHE ALTERNATION	∠ 1	118.713	

David	40	T		Nancy	50
Stafford		_		Walles	
Sallie	17	Thomas		Conrad	28
Stansbury		Adaline	40	Wampler	
Katharine	52	William	27	Charles	53
Stark	0-2	Thompson		Joseph Harvey	54
C Duncan	24		27	Joseph Riley	54
Donna M	24	James H	24	Ware	51
Stephens	21	Thomson		ware	23
Sarah	52	Chas B	48	Warner	23
Stephenson	32	George	48	Frederick Smith	39
Viola	22	Henry	49	Harold F. (Mrs)	49
Stodsdell	22	Henry P	38, 45, 47	Harold Frederick	39
Henry	54	Henry P (Mrs)	47	Warren	3)
Stokes	34	SE	49	William	26
Rachel	37	Sarah E	49	Washington	20
Stone	37	Sarah Franklin	46, 49	George	12
Eucebious	58	Thorne		L.M.H.	14, 15, 16
Milly	58	Thomas	37, 44	Watts	14, 13, 10
Nancy	59	Tibbs		Charles	23
Stovall	39	Delores Sue	21	Webb	23
Anna Mumford	24	Tipps		Joshua	54
Bartholomew	33	George	53	Weishaar	34
Daniel Jackson	24	Tolman		Olive Leona	35
Delicia Delicia	33	Elizabeth	50	Wheeler	33
	24, 33	Toner		J Thos	31
Drury Edith	24, 33	D	14	Whipple	31
Elizabeth	33	Dave	14	Libbie	46
	33	Townsend		Whiteraft	40
George Jesse	33	J	17	Elizabeth	40
	24	Trent		White	40
Joseph F Nancy	29, 33	Jane	54	Gracie Ivalee	21
Phebe	29, 33	Trimble		Jessie E	64
Phoebe	33	James	40	John	26
Sarah	33	Turner			64
Susan	33, 34	Aurora	65	Mary J Whitney	04
Thomas	29, 33, 34	Dabney	28	Jas E	32
	29, 33, 34	JC	65	Thos J	32
Straught Tempe	60	Tyson		Wiles	32
Stringer	00	Robert Kenny	55	Melissa Agnes	21
Nathaniel	55			Wiley	21
Strong	33	\mathbf{V}		Wiley	23
Sarah	38, 46	•		Williams	23
Sutton	30, 40	Vaughn		williams	45
Bonnie Louise	59	J	15, 16, 17	Christine	45
James Harvey	59 59	JТ	16	Easter	56, 57
Lewis G	59 59	Nancy	53	Franklin	45
Thomas Allen	59	Vest		G.M.	8
Wilbert Allen	59	Susan "Sally"	52	John	45
Sweeny	39	Vetter		Jonathan	44, 45
Leora Higgenbotham	22	Carrie Cathryn	59	Joseph	40, 44, 45
William Montgomery	22			Julia	43
Syron	22	\mathbf{W}		Margaret "Petta"	52
James Reed	16			Nancy	45
Peter A	46 45	Waggoner		Sarah	3, 45
Peter Adolphus	39	James	35	Sarah Ann	5, 45
reter Auorphus	39	Wakefield		V.B.	43
		Thomas	53	v.b. William	45
		Wallace		Williamson	43

Betty	33	(State Of)	10	Logan County	27
Elizabeth A	56, 57			Russellville	35
Nancy C	57	\mathbf{G}		Metcalfe County	59
Vice E	57			Pulaski County	53
Wilson		Georgia	- 4	Robards	34
Eliza Francis	35	Bulloch County	61	Union County	34
Hannah	36	Dekalb County	50	Warren County	24, 26, 27, 33
Samuel	38, 46	Lowndes County	61	Wayne County	54, 55
Susan	39	Screven County	61	Webster County	34
Winn					
B.B.	28	I		L	
Wood		Illinois			
	45	Calhoun County	59	Louisiana	<i>C</i> 1
Charles	51	Baytown	59	Caldwell Parish	61
Wooley		Kampsville	59	Catahoula Parish	60
Isaac	40	Hancock County	37	St Tammany Parish	3, 60
Woolman		Carthage	59		
William	44	Marciol	37	\mathbf{M}	
Worthington		New Boston	39	Massachusetts	
Berneice Evelyn	59	McDonough County	37	Salem	36
		Bushnell	59	Mississippi	30
${f Z}$		Macomb	59	Copiah County	66
		McLean County	37	Franklin County	
Zumwalt	50	Lexington		•	ole Cemetery 66
Rachael Rebecca Ann	59	Scroggin Cer	metery 50	Lincoln County	66
		Pike County		Monroe County	19
DI T 1		Mason Cemetery	59	Rankin County	3, 63
Place Inde	ex	Wabash County	3,	Missouri	-,
		Allendale	55	Boone County	59
		Indiana		Carroll County	33
\mathbf{A}		Crawfordsville	51	Maplewood	62
Alabama		Floyd County		Miller County	34
Covington County	13, 60	New Albany	53	Putnam County	54
Tuscaloosa	13, 55	Georgetown	51	Saint Louis	62
Arizona	10	Henry County	37	Wright County	
Payton	20	Marion County		Hartville	52
Arkansas		Indianapolis	54		
Madison County		Middletown	37	N	
Asher	21	Monroe County	54		
Mound City	54	Owen County	50	Nebraska	
		C1 1 '11 C	F 4	Adams County	
Polk County		Chambersville Cemete		Adams County	2.5
Old Dallas	21	Chambersville Cemete Clay Township	53, 54	Ingleside	35
Old Dallas Quachita County	55, 57	Clay Township Spencer	53, 54 51	Ingleside Hall County	
Old Dallas		Clay Township	53, 54	Ingleside Hall County Doniphan	35
Old Dallas Quachita County	55, 57	Clay Township Spencer	53, 54 51	Ingleside Hall County Doniphan Grand Island	
Old Dallas Quachita County Washington County	55, 57	Clay Township Spencer Vanderburgh County	53, 54 51	Ingleside Hall County Doniphan Grand Island New Jersey	35 35
Old Dallas Quachita County Washington County	55, 57	Clay Township Spencer Vanderburgh County	53, 54 51	Ingleside Hall County Doniphan Grand Island New Jersey Burlington County	35 35 38, 40
Old Dallas Quachita County Washington County C California	55, 57 19, 21	Clay Township Spencer Vanderburgh County K Kansas	53, 54 51	Ingleside Hall County Doniphan Grand Island New Jersey Burlington County Mansfield	35 35 38, 40 37
Old Dallas Quachita County Washington County C California Chico	55, 57 19, 21	Clay Township Spencer Vanderburgh County K Kansas Reno County	53, 54 51 34	Ingleside Hall County Doniphan Grand Island New Jersey Burlington County Mansfield Northampton To	35 35 38, 40 37
Old Dallas Quachita County Washington County C California Chico Tomales	55, 57 19, 21	Clay Township Spencer Vanderburgh County K Kansas Reno County Turon	53, 54 51 34 35	Ingleside Hall County Doniphan Grand Island New Jersey Burlington County Mansfield Northampton To	35 35 38, 40 37 ownship 44
Old Dallas Quachita County Washington County C California Chico Tomales Colorado	55, 57 19, 21	Clay Township Spencer Vanderburgh County K Kansas Reno County Turon Tonganoxie	53, 54 51 34	Ingleside Hall County Doniphan Grand Island New Jersey Burlington County Mansfield Northampton To North Carolina Burke County	35 35 38, 40 37 ownship 44 50, 52, 53
Old Dallas Quachita County Washington County C California Chico Tomales Colorado Pueblo County	55, 57 19, 21 39 39	Clay Township Spencer Vanderburgh County K Kansas Reno County Turon Tonganoxie Kentucky	53, 54 51 34 35 34	Ingleside Hall County Doniphan Grand Island New Jersey Burlington County Mansfield Northampton To North Carolina Burke County Connelly Spring	35 35 38, 40 37 ownship 44 50, 52, 53
Old Dallas Quachita County Washington County C California Chico Tomales Colorado Pueblo County Pueblo	55, 57 19, 21	Clay Township Spencer Vanderburgh County K Kansas Reno County Turon Tonganoxie Kentucky Allen County	53, 54 51 34 35 34 24, 33, 34	Ingleside Hall County Doniphan Grand Island New Jersey Burlington County Mansfield Northampton To North Carolina Burke County Connelly Spring	35 35 38, 40 37 ownship 44 50, 52, 53 ston 50
Old Dallas Quachita County Washington County C California Chico Tomales Colorado Pueblo County Pueblo Connecticut	55, 57 19, 21 39 39 39	Clay Township Spencer Vanderburgh County K Kansas Reno County Turon Tonganoxie Kentucky Allen County Barren County 23, 2	53, 54 51 34 35 34 24, 33, 34 4, 25, 27,	Ingleside Hall County Doniphan Grand Island New Jersey Burlington County Mansfield Northampton To North Carolina Burke County Connelly Spring Morgan Duplin County	35 35 38, 40 37 ownship 44 50, 52, 53
Old Dallas Quachita County Washington County C California Chico Tomales Colorado Pueblo County Pueblo	55, 57 19, 21 39 39	Clay Township Spencer Vanderburgh County K Kansas Reno County Turon Tonganoxie Kentucky Allen County Barren County 23, 2	53, 54 51 34 35 34 24, 33, 34 4, 25, 27, 34, 35, 59	Ingleside Hall County Doniphan Grand Island New Jersey Burlington County Mansfield Northampton To North Carolina Burke County Connelly Spring Morgan Duplin County Linville Falls	35 35 38, 40 37 ownship 44 50, 52, 53 ston 50 61
Old Dallas Quachita County Washington County C California Chico Tomales Colorado Pueblo County Pueblo Connecticut Woodstock	55, 57 19, 21 39 39 39	Clay Township Spencer Vanderburgh County K Kansas Reno County Turon Tonganoxie Kentucky Allen County Barren County 23, 2 33, 3 Glasgow 28, 3	35 34 35 34 24, 33, 34 4, 25, 27, 34, 35, 59 33, 34, 35	Ingleside Hall County Doniphan Grand Island New Jersey Burlington County Mansfield Northampton To North Carolina Burke County Connelly Spring Morgan Duplin County Linville Falls Pisgah Cemeter	35 35 38, 40 37 ownship 44 50, 52, 53 ston 50 61 y 53
Old Dallas Quachita County Washington County C California Chico Tomales Colorado Pueblo County Pueblo Connecticut	55, 57 19, 21 39 39 39	Clay Township Spencer Vanderburgh County K Kansas Reno County Turon Tonganoxie Kentucky Allen County Barren County 23, 2 33, 3 Glasgow Henderson County	35, 54 51, 34 35, 34 24, 33, 34 4, 25, 27, 34, 35, 59 33, 34, 35 34	Ingleside Hall County Doniphan Grand Island New Jersey Burlington County Mansfield Northampton To North Carolina Burke County Connelly Spring Morgan Duplin County Linville Falls Pisgah Cemeter Rowan County	35 35 38, 40 37 ownship 44 50, 52, 53 ston 50 61 y 53 50
Old Dallas Quachita County Washington County C California Chico Tomales Colorado Pueblo County Pueblo Connecticut Woodstock	55, 57 19, 21 39 39 39	Clay Township Spencer Vanderburgh County K Kansas Reno County Turon Tonganoxie Kentucky Allen County Barren County 23, 2 33, 3 Glasgow 28, 3	35 34 35 34 24, 33, 34 4, 25, 27, 34, 35, 59 33, 34, 35	Ingleside Hall County Doniphan Grand Island New Jersey Burlington County Mansfield Northampton To North Carolina Burke County Connelly Spring Morgan Duplin County Linville Falls Pisgah Cemeter	35 35 38, 40 37 ownship 44 50, 52, 53 ston 50 61 y 53

Wake County		Montgomery County		Boling	3
Raleigh	50	Morgan County	34	Liberty County	3
		Roane County	25	Cleveland	3
0		Kingston	35 33	Limestone County	3, 17
Ohio		Smith County White County	20, 22	Thornton	3 2
Champaign County	39, 41, 42	Wilson County	,	Livingston	7
Urbana	40	Lebonon	61 62	Llano County Lufkin	/
Highland County		Texas	02	Lakefront Pavilion	n 63
Bush Creek	23	Angelina County	61	Milam County	55, 56
Warren County	39, 41	Manning	61	Rockdale	55, 56
Oklahoma	,	Zavalla	61	Mineral Wells	24
Belmont County	36	Bell County	12	Mitchell County	12
Marshall County		Temple	55	Morris County	12
Willis	21	Big Sandy Area	60	Nacogdoches County	
Muskogee County		Bosque County	7	Nacogdoches	61
Muskogee	21	Brazos County	11	Navarro County	12
Tulsa	21	Burleson County	7	Nueces County	12
Wagoner County		Burnet County	7	Parker County	7, 12, 22
Porter	21	Calahan County	7	Springtown	22
Oregon	20, 42	Cherokee County	63	Weatherford	22
Clackamas County	39, 43	Clay County	22	Polk County	3, 12
Jackson County	38, 39	Coke County	64	Livingston,	3
Marion Silverton		Collin County	7, 20, 21, 57	Red River County	7
Miller Ce	metery 46	Comanche County	12	Robertson County	
Marion County	38, 39	Coryell County	56	Calvert	55
Butte Creek	36, 39	Dallas County	12, 64	Rockwell County	7
Mollalla	39	Dewitt County	64	Sabine County	63
Meadowbrook	39	El Paso County	12	San Jacinto County	3
Monitor	39	Erath County	3, 12, 64	San Saba County	12
Portland	38, 39	Falls County	12, 64 12	Tarrant County	7, 12, 24, 56
Redmond	39	Fannin County Foard County	64	Titus County	12, 66
Silverton	39	Freestone County	64	Travis County	66
Miller Cemetery	39	Frio County	12, 65	Trinity County	61, 63
Wasco County	39	Galveston County	12, 65	Apple Springs Tulia	3 23
Yamhill County	43	Grayson County	7, 12, 65	Tulia Tyler County	66
•		Grimes County	3, 7, 60	Van Zant County	56
P		Gum Slough	2, 7, 00	Walker County	66
_		Morse Cemetery	2	Warren County	60
Pennsylvania	25.44	Hale County	65	Wharton County	66
Philadelphia	37, 41	Hamilton County		Wheeler County	66
		Hico	55	Wichita County	66
R		Hardin County	60	Wilson County	7
Rhode Island		Harris County		Wise County	66
Providence	36	Houston	55	Wood County	66
Trovidence	30	Henderson County	12	·	
a		Hill County	65	${f V}$	
S		Hubbard	35	•	
South Carolina		Hopkins County		Vermont	20
Chester County	3	Pickton	23	Rutland	39
Richland County	3	Jasper County	2	Virginia	22
		Buna	2, 3	Albemarle County Charlottesville	23 58
T		Johnson County	55, 57	Amherst County22, 2	
		Cleburne	35	Bedford County	25, 24, 54, 56
Tennessee	22	Kaufman County	12	Goochland County	33
Fayette County	23 50, 53	Terrell	61 12	Halifax County	33, 34
Franklin County La Grange	50, 53 53	Lee County Leon County	12	Henrico County	24
La Grange		•) (2 - 1 E 114		

Henry County	58, 59
Lincoln County	34
Orange County	58
Pittsylvania	34
Stump Ft.	50
White Sulphur Springs	35
W	
Washington	20
Castle Rock Whatcom County	39
Kendall	39
West Virginia	
Wheeling	36